From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Trader Joe"s Proposal @ 555 Fulton - Oct 17 Item 10
Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 10:09:59 AM

Attachments: 2019 HVNA T & P 555 Fulton Trader Joe"s.pdf

Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309|Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Jason M Henderson <Jhenders@sonic.net>
Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:28 AM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>

Cc: Flores, Veronica (CPC) <Veronica.Flores@sfgov.org>; Brown, Vallie (BOS) <vallie.brown@sfgov.org>;
Simley, Shakirah (BOS) <shakirah.simley@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Dennis
Richards <drichards20@gmail.com>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>

Subject: Trader Joe's Proposal @ 555 Fulton - Oct 17 Item 10

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear President Melgar and fellow Planning Commissioners

Please find attached a letter from HVNA's Transportation and Planning Committee regarding the proposed Trader

Joe's at 555 Fulton. Thank you
-ih

Jason Henderson
San Francisco CA
94102
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The HAYES VALLEY Neighborhood Association | nvNa

October 17, 2019

San Francisco Planning Commission
Cc: Veronica Flores, Legislative Affairs

SF Planning Department
1650 Mission Street Suit 400
San Francisco CA 94103
elizabeth.white@sfgov.org

Re: 555 Fulton Street Grocery Store Special Use District, Proposed Planning Code Text
Amendment

Dear Planning Commissioners

The Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association has been closely involved with the 555 Fulton site
since initial proposals to redevelop in 2005. The site has changed owners and more recently 555
Fulton has been plagued with poorly managed construction, rule-breaking, and a generally
uncooperative developer. A hard-fought deal to bring in a grocer was mysteriously broken last
year.

We have now learned Trader Joe’s is interested in the site, but with new arrangements. Our
community continues to have concerns about affordable groceries and fresh food (rather than
plastic-wrapped and processed food) and also the scale of the liquor portion of this outfit. Yet
putting that aside, this letter is focused on the traffic impacts, and the lack of inclusion of traffic
mitigations in the item you are considering today.

HVNA’s transportation and planning committee met with Trader Joe’s representatives on
Monday October 14" — 3 days ago. The meeting included extensive discussion of parking and
traffic and our members were emphatic that this needs to be taken seriously for this type of
grocery outlet to work.

The lifting of the formula retail ban should include conditions and codification of transportation
impacts and mitigations. The planning memo in front of you is underwhelming and
disappointing. There is no acknowledgement of the traffic impacts, impacts on cyclists and
pedestrians, and especially the hazards of cars turning left into and out of the 70+-car garage.

The CU and other legislative actions to enable this grocer must include concrete and clear traffic
mitigation policies. These include:
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Reducing the car parking (ideally to zero) and shifting the basement parking to other uses such
as storage or logistics for the retail. Trader Joe's representatives pointed out that they have a
store that has no parking (4™ St SF) and another store that has 30 parking spaces (Berkeley -
University Ave). Reducing the parking at 555 Fulton will make this a much more suitable
grocery store for this dense part of the city.

Customers can walk, cycle, and use public transit, and Trader Joe’s can implement a delivery
system using e-cargo bicycles and other small, nimble vehicles. Trader Joe’s and a uncooperative
developer are extracting great value from the community and externalizing their negative
impacts of traffic onto the community. You can address this by either eliminating or reducing the
parking in the site.

If parking is preserved, there will be hazardous conditions from left turning vehicles into and out
of the garage. In this case, the SFMTA can install a narrow median on Fulton to restrict turns.
This was discussed previously when a different grocer was considered at the site. This needs to
be part of the conditions of approval for this store (if it keeps parking).

If Trader Joe’s is allowed to keep parking, the planning code should be amended to require that
either TJ’s charge for the parking, or provide discounts and incentives to customers who do not
drive to the store. For example, free delivery for customers who arrive on foot, by cycling, or
transit. Or reduced prices on final sales. It is patently unfair for customers who do not drive to
have to pay for the parking.

Make cycling a key part of the project, not an afterthought

Cycling is a realistic and feasible means for shopping, and many new innovations and
configuration of bicycles make it easy to carry groceries. The catchment area of this site is very
suitable for cycling but Trader Joe’s has a bad track record for bicycle parking in San Francisco.
Other stores have little to no bicycle parking, or the bicycle parking is located in a way that
discourages cycling. Ample bicycle parking, with racks spaced appropriately and securely,
should be required in front of the store, and with high visibility and security. Additionally, there
is opportunity to install a bicycle hire station on Laguna and Hayes, in front of the store entrance
and this should be done promptly.

At HVNA’s meeting with Trader Joe’s (October 14 2019) their representatives said that they
listen to their costumers. Of course this is what businesses do. But Trader Joe’s (and the
developer of 555 Fulton) must also listen to the surrounding community. The lifting of the
formula retail ban for this store is providing immense value to a developer that has been a bad
actor. As planning commissioners you can remedy some of this by including codification of
transportation impacts and mitigations described above. Vague promises and assurances from
TJ’s and 555 Fulton LLC are not acceptable. We look forward to seeing a strong cycling,
pedestrian, and transit oriented grocer at this site, and not a hazardous traffic nightmare.

Sincerely





Jason Henderson

Chair, Transportation & Planning Committee
Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association

300 Buchanan Street, #503

San Francisco, CA

94102

(415)-255-8136

Jhenders@sonic.net
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Lydia; Chris Foley; Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);

Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda;
Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO CLOSE HALL OF JUSTICE TO
MAKE WAY FOR FUTURE JUSTICE CAMPUS

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:15:57 AM

Attachments: 10.17.19 Justice Campus.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309,Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 6:07 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO CLOSE HALL OF
JUSTICE TO MAKE WAY FOR FUTURE JUSTICE CAMPUS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 17,2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO CLOSE
HALL OF JUSTICE TO MAKE WAY FOR FUTURE

JUSTICE CAMPUS

Vacating the seismically unsafe Hall of Justice by 2021 will make room for future
consolidated campus comprised of rehabilitation and treatment placements as well as
facilities for the District Attorney’s Office, Adult Probation, Public Defender’s Office, Police
Department, Sheriff’s Department, and the Superior Courts

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a long-awaited plan to
achieve San Francisco’s longstanding priority of closing the Hall of Justice to make way for a
future consolidated Justice Campus. This plan means that San Francisco will be moving all
incarcerated people out of the seismically unsafe Bryant Street wing of the building no later
than July 2021, to coincide with the previously announced administrative exit.

The long-term vision for the Hall of Justice site and adjacent parcels includes a consolidated
Justice Campus to focus on victim’s services and the rehabilitation and treatment of
offenders. The future site will incorporate administrative space, courts, and centralized best
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LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 17, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PLAN TO CLOSE
HALL OF JUSTICE TO MAKE WAY FOR FUTURE
JUSTICE CAMPUS

Vacating the seismically unsafe Hall of Justice by 2021 will make room for future consolidated
campus comprised of rehabilitation and treatment placements as well as facilities for the
District Attorney’s Office, Adult Probation, Public Defender’s Office, Police Department,

Sheriff’s Department, and the Superior Courts

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a long-awaited plan to achieve
San Francisco’s longstanding priority of closing the Hall of Justice to make way for a future
consolidated Justice Campus. This plan means that San Francisco will be moving all incarcerated
people out of the seismically unsafe Bryant Street wing of the building no later than July 2021, to
coincide with the previously announced administrative exit.

The long-term vision for the Hall of Justice site and adjacent parcels includes a consolidated
Justice Campus to focus on victim’s services and the rehabilitation and treatment of

offenders. The future site will incorporate administrative space, courts, and centralized best
practices in criminal and social justice services for all people. The Campus will co-locate
facilities including the Sheriff’s Department, Adult Probation, the Public Defender’s Office, the
District Attorney’s Office, and the Superior Courts, returning those operations that were
relocated to temporary leased spaces as part of the Hall of Justice exit. The Campus will include
a mix of mental health beds, substance use treatment beds, reentry transitional housing for people
exiting the criminal justice system, and jail beds, if necessary.

“We need to reform our criminal justice system to reduce incarceration, but we also need places
to hold people accountable for their actions and to offer rehabilitative services,” said

Mayor Breed. “While we work to implement this long-term Justice Campus, it’s important that
we move incarcerated individuals out of the existing Hall of Justice as soon as we can and we are
exploring all options to transfer people to better and more humane conditions.”

“Working together we can create a service center that will serve the needs of the residents of
San Francisco,” said Sheriff Vicki Hennessy. “By moving forward in a thoughtful and fair
manner in coordinating all our resources we can find the best outcomes for those whose lives
intersect the justice system.”

This long-term project is currently slated for construction starting as early as 2028, with

demolition of the Hall’s Bryant Street wing funded in 2025. The Mayor plans to explore

accelerating this much-needed initiative with the Capital Planning Committee. Specific designs
1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

for the building layout, types and number of beds required, and physical space will be
determined through an implementation group directed by the City Administrator.

“Exiting the Hall of Justice has been a top priority of the City’s 10-Year Capital Plan since its
first publication,” said City Administrator Naomi M. Kelly who also chairs the Capital Planning
Committee. “We have made good progress with the administrative exit in sight, we can make
way for an efficient, safe, and rehabilitation-focused justice campus downtown.”

San Francisco will continue working to reduce the number of people held at County Jail 4 at 850
Bryant. This will include new investments in pre-trial assessments and sentencing reforms, and is
supported by the Mayor’s significant investment in behavioral mental health beds and substance
use beds, which help divert people to services instead of incarceration. Mayor Breed has also
overseen a significant expansion of pretrial release services through the San Francisco Pretrial
Diversion Project, support for the Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion program that redirects
individuals to community-based services, and the creation of a pretrial release unit at the Public
Defender’s Office.

In summer 2021, the remaining administrative functions at 850 Bryant will be relocated.

Mayor Breed’s plan calls for relocating the remaining incarcerated individuals out of County Jail
4 by to an alternative facility on a temporary basis until construction of the future campus is
complete. San Francisco is currently exploring the fiscal and physical feasibility of several new
options, including out-of-county facilities, but no location has been determined yet.

HiH
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practices in criminal and social justice services for all people. The Campus will co-locate
facilities including the Sheriff’s Department, Adult Probation, the Public Defender’s Office,
the District Attorney’s Office, and the Superior Courts, returning those operations that were
relocated to temporary leased spaces as part of the Hall of Justice exit. The Campus will
include a mix of mental health beds, substance use treatment beds, reentry transitional housing
for people exiting the criminal justice system, and jail beds, if necessary.

“We need to reform our criminal justice system to reduce incarceration, but we also need
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
accelerating this much-needed initiative with the Capital Planning Committee. Specific
designs for the building layout, types and number of beds required, and physical space will be
determined through an implementation group directed by the City Administrator.

“Exiting the Hall of Justice has been a top priority of the City’s 10-Year Capital Plan since its
first publication,” said City Administrator Naomi M. Kelly who also chairs the Capital
Planning Committee. “We have made good progress with the administrative exit in sight, we
can make way for an efficient, safe, and rehabilitation-focused justice campus downtown.”

San Francisco will continue working to reduce the number of people held at County Jail 4 at
850 Bryant. This will include new investments in pre-trial assessments and sentencing
reforms, and is supported by the Mayor’s significant investment in behavioral mental health
beds and substance use beds, which help divert people to services instead of incarceration.
Mayor Breed has also overseen a significant expansion of pretrial release services through the
San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, support for the Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion
program that redirects individuals to community-based services, and the creation of a pretrial
release unit at the Public Defender’s Office.

In summer 2021, the remaining administrative functions at 850 Bryant will be relocated.
Mayor Breed’s plan calls for relocating the remaining incarcerated individuals out of County
Jail 4 by to an alternative facility on a temporary basis until construction of the future campus
is complete. San Francisco is currently exploring the fiscal and physical feasibility of several
new options, including out-of-county facilities, but no location has been determined yet.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Race, Patrick (CPC)

Subject: FW: Case #2019-016-016927CWP, Willie Woo Woo Park

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:05:59 AM

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

From: Dennis Hong <dennisj.gov88@yahoo.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 3:58 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; p.Race@sfgov.org; Board of Supervisors, (BOS)
<board.of supervisors@sfgov.org>

Subject: Case #2019-016-016927CWP, Willie Woo Woo Park

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Good morning Commissioners; | would like to chime in here and give my full support
for item number 1- Case #2019-016-016927CWP which is on your 10/17/2019
agenda. My name is Dennis Hong a resident of San Francisco, formally of District 3,
now living in District 7. I'm sorry | will be unable to attend this meeting. Please use my
email as a justification for my approval/support. I'm not sure which commission will
approve this. Either way I'm hoping that the Planning Commission will pass this along
as my full support for the Willie “Woo Woo” Wong Park Renovation.

Commissioners and everyone, we really need this approval / action, as soon as
possible. In my opinion; Currently it is unsafe and mostly un-healthy. Recently | have
made a few trips up there and it is obvious it needs help. As | understand it, it has
been semi-flipped a few times but still needs a bit more work. | also believe the
Portsmouth Square/Park is being considered in the budget for the same reasons.
Here to | have submitted some of my thoughts | had at the time at the public
meetings.

| grew up in Chinatown in the 50's-70's. All too often when | used the Tennis Courts
up there, all too often | was chased of the tennis court/s. Only because the fences
were too low and or | was unable to keep the ball in my own court. Still to this day |
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use the playground for the limited sunshine and eating my take out dim sum from the
local tea house. Surprising it has survived after all these years. Don't tell anyone that.
But having said that not long ago | sent an email in support of this work when it was
being considered. At this time one of my main beefs with these playgrounds
especially in Chinatown/Portsmouth Park was the use of the material used in the
sand box/pit and surfaces. Due to the environment down there, some of the material
used gets contaminated with debris, i.e., pigeon/bird and rodent droppings and etc.
To me this is a very unhealthy condition for the kids to play in, but then that's my
observation. There are a lot of new products, and unique surfaces that can be used
and when installed per the mfg specs. But right now, some of the existing surface
mats are uneven and causing a tripping hazards up there.

Thank you all for listening and reading my rambling email on this issue. | too look
forward to you all in approving this item; but mostly the residences of Chinatown and
especially the kids that use it. Should anyone have any question to this email, please,
reach back to me with your question/concerns.

Finally, in approving this item, please put this on a priority list and expedite it. | have
no comments on the physical plan/layout. But mostly for the safety issues. Other
parks have successfully done this with out the use of a sand box. | believe there is a
park in the SOMA area but don't recall the name of the park that has done a
wonderful job here.

All the Best, DHsf:




From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 463 Castro Street (Flying Falafel)
Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:05:33 AM

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

From: Tony Fox <sftonyfox@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 4:58 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>

Subject: 463 Castro Street (Flying Falafel)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Commissioners,

I'm writing to urge you to not take Discretionary Review on 463 Castro Street and approve the project as proposed.
This is very transparently an attempt on the part of one business to block a competitor from entering the market and
offering a better product. We should not be using our public processes to enrich private interests at the expense of
our residents, small businesses, and neighborhoods.

Thank you,
Tony Fox

Sent from my iPhone
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Flying Falafel Debacle! 463 Castro Street
Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:05:28 AM

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309]Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Nathan Eads <neads@slack-corp.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 5:47 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin
(CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>
Subject: Flying Falafel Debacle! 463 Castro Street

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissioners,

I'm writing to urge you to not take Discretionary Review on 463 Castro Street and approve the
project as proposed. This is very transparently an attempt on the part of one business to block a
competitor from entering the market and offering a better product. We should not be using our
public processes to enrich private interests at the expense of our residents, small businesses, and
neighborhoods.

Thank you,
Nathan Eads
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Sanchez, Diego (CPC)

Subject: FW: Supporting revoking parking on Kern St. (File 190794)

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:05:17 AM

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

From: Philip Zeyliger <philip.zeyliger@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 6:56 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Supporting revoking parking on Kern St. (File 190794)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.
Dear Planning Commission,
| live in Glen Park, and | write to support Supervisor Mandelman's proposal to limit parking
expansion, including revoking the special dispensation for a parking lot on Kern St. That lot is
practically on top of the BART station, and would be much better used as multi-family housing.

Many thanks,

-- Philip Zeyliger
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Flores, Veronica (CPC)

Subject: FW: Trader Joe"s at 555 Fulton

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:05:09 AM

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

From: Molly Alarcon <mollyalarcon@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 7:45 PM

To: Brown, Vallie (BOS) <vallie.brown@sfgov.org>

Cc: Simley, Shakirah (BOS) <shakirah.simley@sfgov.org>; Krywenko, Caleb (BOS)
<caleb.krywenko@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Trader Joe's at 555 Fulton

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Supervisor Brown and Planning Commissioners,

| am writing in my personal capacity as a D2 resident and D5 commuter who comes through Hayes
Valley on my way to and from work in civic center every day. | bike by 555 Fulton frequently, usually
twice a day. If I'm not biking by it, I'm taking the #5 bus home on McAllister Street, right nearby. It
would be AMAZING to be able to stop at Trader Joe's on my way home from work. | come from a
town (Mill Valley) that also has a prohibition on chain establishments, and so | can say from
experience that | find such rules to be exclusionary and not a net positive to communities, despite
their intentions. | support small, local businesses when they are good to workers and contribute to
their communities, but not as a matter of course. Trader Joe's has a strong reputation of paying
workers well, supporting employees' professional and personal development, and contributing to
the local communities in which they operate. | think allowing Trader Joe's to come into the
neighborhood is still in keeping with the purposes behind the prohibition on formula retail grocery
stores, even though | don't necessarily agree that the ordinance is a good way to pursue those policy
goals.

| also want to note that | do not require any parking spaces to patronize this store. | do not own a car
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and will not drive to the proposed Trader Joe's. Even if | did own a car, | would take my groceries
home on the bus (#5 to the #24, or the #22 up Fillmore). | say this to highlight that the proposed
location is in a transit-rich area and patrons should be encouraged to bike or take transit to and from
the store. Please do not require Trader Joe's or the developer to make too many parking spaces. We
must encourage people to drive less in order to meet our state and local carbon emission reduction
goals.

Thank you,

Molly Alarcon
2202 Divisadero Street



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

Subject: FW: Support for File #190794, limiting new parking and revoking it as a use on Kern St

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:05:02 AM

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

From: Kathy Keller <kathy.keller44@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 7:49 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: glenparkurbanists@gmail.com

Subject: Support for File #190794, limiting new parking and revoking it as a use on Kern St

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

I am a resident of the Fairmount Heights area of Glen Park. Having lived here
for 26 years and regularly walked to the Glen Park BART station, I
enthusiastically support Supervisor Mandelman's proposal to limit parking
expansion.

Specifically, I vigorously oppose allowing Glen Park's largest developable parcel,
steps from our BART station, to remain a parking lot. The special dispensation
that permitted this travesty should be revoked.

Our neighborhood does not need a parking lot here. Indeed, when the site was
closed for construction earlier this year, there was no significant disruption to
our community. What is needed here, as in innumerable other areas in San
Francisco, is transit-oriented housing.

Sincerely,

Kathy Keller
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

Subject: FW: Supporting file 190794, limiting parking, revoking dispensation for parking lot in Glen Park

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:04:53 AM

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

From: Shawn Grunberger <shawn@deepstorm.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 8:08 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: glenparkurbanists@gmail.com

Subject: Supporting file 190794, limiting parking, revoking dispensation for parking lot in Glen Park

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

To the Planning Commission:

I live in the College Hill neighborhood and frequently walk, bicycle, ride BART, and occasionally drive
to/from/through nearby Glen Park. | want to express my support for Supervisor Mandelman's proposal to
limit the spread of off-street parking in San Francisco.

| also want to register my strong opposition to the continued use of the Kern Street parcel in Glen Park as
a parking lot. For reasons which should be obvious — climate danger, sustainability, air pollution, traffic
safety, housing accessibility, and livability — this site is far better suited for transit-oriented housing. The
lot is both harmful and unnecessary. | urge you to revoke the special dispensation allowing parking at this
site.

Thank you,

Shawn Grunberger
3918 Mission St, SF
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

Subject: FW: Trader Joes Grocery Store Proposal

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:04:40 AM

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

From: Emily Sun <gemsun621@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 9:30 PM

To: Brown, Vallie (BOS) <vallie.brown@sfgov.org>

Cc: Krywenko, Caleb (BOS) <caleb.krywenko@sfgov.org>; Simley, Shakirah (BOS)
<shakirah.simley@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>
Subject: Trader Joes Grocery Store Proposal

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Supervisor Brown,

| live in Hayes Valley in District 5 with my husband. We are fully in support of the legislation to allow
Trader Joe's to be brought into the neighborhood through the conditional permit. A grocery store is
the major thing this neighborhood lacks. Currently, we get our groceries once a week from the Civic
Center Farmer's Market on Sundays, and while we like and will continue to support our local
farmers, it is inconvenient that there are no other options for fresh food in the area. As was brought
up in the community meeting, | also want to ensure that the grocery store is committed to hiring
and training local workers and benefit the local community. | encourage the passing of this
legislation to bring a grocery option to our neighborhood. Thank you for your work to improve the
neighborhood!

Best,
Emily Sun
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

Subject: FW: Letter of support for Supervisor Brown’s proposed ordinance

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:04:33 AM

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

From: Rodney Jackson <rodneyearljacksonjr@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 1:15 AM

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
Subject: Letter of support for Supervisor Brown’s proposed ordinance

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Supervisor Brown,

My name is Rodney Earl Jackson Jr. and | live at 319 Buchanan st in District 5. I'm an artists and
theatre educator - at the Harvey Milk center, Brava center for women in the arts and at the African
American art and culture complex. | am in support of your legislation to allow a formula retail
grocery store to be conditionally permitted within the Fulton Street Grocery Store Special Use
District (SUD). Currently, Trader Joe's is interested in moving into 555 Fulton Street, my/our
community. There are several examples of people who look like me and don’t feel welcomed in their
own communities because of cost, including: availability to affordable housing, economics in
education, or the lack there of of good healthy and nutritious food, to name a few examples. The
ideological narrative for those like me is that we are not wanted and ultimately we leave or get
pushed out; Increasing the racial equity gap. | highly support this new grocery retail option, as our
neighborhood has lacked a healthy, full-service, and affordable grocery store for decades. District 5
is one of the most diverse and dynamic districts in San Francisco, racially and economically; adding
higher incentives to support those who deserve just as healthy affordable options as their neighbors.
Not only will Trader Joe’s provide affordable and fresh options in a neighborhood that has become
infamous for its $9 (80z) juices, but they are committed to hiring and training workers locally and
directly from this community. | highly encourage you to pass this legislation to bring a healthier and
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more accessible grocery option to our neighborhood. I've lived in this district for the majority of my
life and there has never been talks about health the way there are now. This is personal to me
because my grandmother passed of diabetes. She didn’t have the accessibility to be
healthy...financially, educationally, or socially. It's time to change that for the next generation so
young ones like my niece (a 2 year old black girl growing up in public housing in San Francisco) can
all reach their fullest potential. It all starts with What we put in our bodies and if we psychologically
believe we can afford it and still make ends meet.

-Rodney Earl Jackson Jr.



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

Subject: FW: Letter of Support - Affordable grocery store conditional formula retail use

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:04:19 AM

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

From: Dena Emmerson <dcemm16@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 6:48 AM

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
Subject: Letter of Support - Affordable grocery store conditional formula retail use

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Supervisor Brown,

My name is Dena Emmerson. My husband and | are residents in the 94102 zip code in District 5. 1 am
in support of the amendment of the Planning Code and of your amendment to allow a conditionally
permitted formula retail grocery store on Fulton Street between Laguna and Octavia Streets. While
there are a few small boutique stores in the area to purchase food items, our neighborhood lacks a
healthy, full-service, and above all, affordable, grocery store. The current Code has proven
prohibitive to entice non-formula retail grocery stores into the neighborhood and the time has come
to lift this ban, at least in this single case. This will make room for a larger company, who can afford
to provide lower cost groceries, into the space. The current interest expressed by Trader Joe's is
encouraging - they are committed to not only providing desperately needed low-cost food options,
but they also will hire and train workers directly from this community.

Thank you for your efforts to move this forward and bring our neighborhood the resources it needs.
Dena Emmerson
District 5 Resident
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

Subject: FW: Support for File #190794, specifically re: Kern St

Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:03:58 AM

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

From: Page Rockwell <pagerockwell@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 8:37 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: glenparkurbanists@gmail.com

Subject: Support for File #190794, specifically re: Kern St

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear members of the Planning Commission,

| am a resident of Glen Park, writing in support of Supervisor Mandelman's proposal to limit parking
expansion.

Parking is an emotional issue for many who have long experienced San Francisco as a driving city and
want to continue in familiar habits. But almost everyone seems to agree that the city's traffic is
increasingly insane. Designing the urban environment to prioritize cars is backward-looking policy.

Additionally, | want to reject specifically the idea that Glen Park's largest developable parcel, the
Kern St. site steps from our BART station, ought to remain a parking lot. Even if we set aside the
outrageous circumstances under which this lot received special dispensation, the neighborhood
does not need a parking lot here. We need transit-oriented housing with street-level business. The
special dispensation for the Kern parcel should be revoked. (I live on Lippard Avenue, a block from
the Kern site, so this is not a case of wishing for increased housing density but not in my backyard.
Please put it in my backyard.)

Respectfully,
Page Rockwell
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 463 Castro Street (Flying Falafel)
Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:03:35 AM

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

From: David Heflin <heflindavid.l@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 8:51 AM

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
David Heflin
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON 30th ANNIVERSARY OF LOMA PRIETA EARTHQUAKE
Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:02:41 AM

Attachments: 10.17.19 Loma Prieta 30th Anniversary.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309]Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 5:07 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON 30th ANNIVERSARY OF LOMA PRIETA
EARTHQUAKE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 17, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

**%* STATEMENT ***

MAYOR LONDON BREED ON 30" ANNIVERSARY OF
LOMA PRIETA EARTHQUAKE

San Francisco, CA — “On the 30th anniversary of the 1989 Loma Prieta Earthquake, we
remember those who lost their lives in San Francisco and the Bay Area, and we honor the
valiant efforts of the first responders and neighborhood volunteers who came together to
respond to the disaster. At 5:04pm this evening—the exact time of the Loma Prieta earthquake
—we will conduct a ceremony to commemorate this momentous event in our city’s history.

In the face of destruction and uncertainty, fire fighters, police officers, and neighbors worked
hand in hand to contain the damage and protect life and property. In the days, weeks, and
months following the earthquake, our communities worked tirelessly to rebuild San Francisco.
The earthquake and its aftermath was traumatic and challenging, however our city’s collective
response and recovery proved that when we work together, we can overcome the greatest of
obstacles.

In the thirty years since Loma Prieta, the City has made significant investments to ensure that
we’re ready for the next major earthquake. We all know that it is not a matter of ‘if’ the next
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

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON 30" ANNIVERSARY OF
LOMA PRIETA EARTHQUAKE

San Francisco, CA — “On the 30th anniversary of the 1989 Loma Prieta Earthquake, we
remember those who lost their lives in San Francisco and the Bay Area, and we honor the valiant
efforts of the first responders and neighborhood volunteers who came together to respond to the
disaster. At 5:04pm this evening—the exact time of the Loma Prieta earthquake—we will
conduct a ceremony to commemorate this momentous event in our city’s history.

In the face of destruction and uncertainty, fire fighters, police officers, and neighbors worked
hand in hand to contain the damage and protect life and property. In the days, weeks, and months
following the earthquake, our communities worked tirelessly to rebuild San Francisco. The
earthquake and its aftermath was traumatic and challenging, however our city’s collective
response and recovery proved that when we work together, we can overcome the greatest of
obstacles.

In the thirty years since Loma Prieta, the City has made significant investments to ensure that
we’re ready for the next major earthquake. We all know that it is not a matter of ‘if” the next big
earthquake strikes, but a matter of ‘when.” We’ve invested $20 billion to strengthen our critical
infrastructure, including neighborhood fire stations, district police stations, the Emergency
Firefighting Water System, and other essential facilities and infrastructure. These facilities are
critical for providing immediate assistance and relief for our City during the aftermath of a
disaster.

I am confident that our City government is prepared to swiftly respond in the event of a major
earthquake, but it’s up to each one of us to have a plan in place to ensure the safety and
wellbeing of ourselves, our families, and our neighbors. When disaster strikes, we all need to be
ready to help each other. It’s how we survived Loma Prieta 30 years ago, and it’s how we’ll
survive the next disaster that comes our way.”

Loma Prieta Commemoration Ceremony Neighborhood Resource Fair
4:30-5:30 pm 3:00-6:00pm
Marina Green, West End Marina Green, West End

For more information about earthquake safety and preparedness, please visit:
sf72.org/hazard/earthquake. For emergency alerts, text your zip code to 888-777 to sign up for
AlertSF.

HiH

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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big earthquake strikes, but a matter of ‘when.” We’ve invested $20 billion to strengthen our
critical infrastructure, including neighborhood fire stations, district police stations, the
Emergency Firefighting Water System, and other essential facilities and infrastructure. These
facilities are critical for providing immediate assistance and relief for our City during the
aftermath of a disaster.

I am confident that our City government is prepared to swiftly respond in the event of a major
earthquake, but it’s up to each one of us to have a plan in place to ensure the safety and
wellbeing of ourselves, our families, and our neighbors. When disaster strikes, we all need to
be ready to help each other. It’s how we survived Loma Prieta 30 years ago, and it’s how we’ll
survive the next disaster that comes our way.”

Loma Prieta Commemoration Ceremony
4:30-5:30 pm
Marina Green, West End

Neighborhood Resource Fair
3:00-6:00pm
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

HHHH
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Winslow, David (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: file no. 018-016955DRP - 220 San Jose Avenue
Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019 9:02:37 AM
Attachments: Dec of PB with Exhibits (endorsed) 10.15.19.pdf

LTR re 220 San Jose Ave 10.14.19.pdf

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

From: Julie Du <julie@zfplaw.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 4:19 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank
(CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>

Cc: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Sarah Hoffman <sarah@zfplaw.com>

Subject: file no. 018-016955DRP - 220 San Jose Avenue

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Members of the Planning Commission,

Attached please find Patrick Buscovich’s Declaration and a letter from Sarah Hoffman regarding file
no. 018-016955DRP. Hard copies will be provided at tomorrow’s hearing.

Sincerely,

Julie Du

Administrative Assistant

Zacks, Freedman & Patterson, PC
235 Montgomery Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94104
Telephone: (415) 956-8100
Facsimile: (415) 288-9755
www.zfplaw.com
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RECEIVED

0CT 15 2019
I, Patriék Buscovich, declare as follows: C‘EIA%N%ggQ%TaEN%E
1. I am a licensed Civil and Structural Engineer, practicing for more 'ﬁ%?nEi’J '}cl)é\ellr%*':igK

San Francisco, California. Almost 90% of my work relates to San Francisco Code issues. I make
this declaration in support of the above-captioned appeal. Unless otherwise stated, I have
personal knowledge of the facts stated herein and, if called as a witness, could and would testify
competently thereto.

2 [ have reviewed the permit history and city records for 220 San Jose Avenue, San
Francisco (the “Property”), as well as the proposed Project at issue in this appeal. I have also
made multiple site visits to the vicinity of the Project site.

3. In the course of my investigation, I reviewed the historic Sanborn maps for the
Property. Sanborn maps were prepared for the insurance industry showing building information,
including the number of dwelling units, so that insurance companies could write a fire policy
without going to the building. These maps had to be accurate to base a fire insurance policy on,
and were updated approximately every 15 years. With the internet, they are no longer updated.

4, An historic Sanborn map depicts the building at the Property as a three-unit
apartment building. (A true and correct copy of this map is attached hereto as Exhibit A.)
Moreover, a “Report of Permit of Occupancy and Building Research of Premises” issued by the
Health Department on August 28, 1962 confirms that the building was a 3-unit apartment
building. (A true and correct copy of this Report is attached hereto as Exhibit B.) At that time,
the San Francisco Health Department regulated housing issues.

3 I also reviewed the 3R report for this Property. (A true and correct copy of the 3R
report is attached hereto as Exhibit C). This report shows that on March 5, 1963, a permit was
issued with the description “revert to two family dwelling.” According to the permit application
itself, the description of the scope of work for that permit was “remove one kitchen change
building to two legal flats,” and the new “proposed” use was 2 units, plus 1 “HK”
(housekeeping) unit. (A true and correct copy of this permit application is attached hereto as
Exhibit D.) A housekeeping unit is equivalent to an accessory dwelling unit. The fact a

housekeeping unit was listed means that the Health Department made an administrative





determination that two units and one housekeeping unit were allowable at the property. As the
actual number of units at the Property exceeded the two-unit dwelling density, the City treated
the surplus unit as a “housekeeping” unit to make the Property compliant with the two-unit
density limit, without removing the third unit.

6. The background to why this 1963 permit was required is that, from 1945 until the
early 1960s, San Francisco was dealing with the issue of how to legalize units that had been built
without permits to meet the City’s urgent housing needs during World War II. San Francisco was
legalizing more units than the underlying density would allow. In around 1960, a group of
citizens sued the City to prevent it from legalizing more units than the zoning allowed, and the
City was forced to stop legalizing such units. As a result, Planning started describing units that
exceeded the density as “housekeeping” units, and thus were excluded from the dwelling density
count and, as a bonus, might not result in a change in the occupancy for Fire Department
purposes.1 That is, Planning allowed property owners to avoid the removal of units by re-
characterizing additional units as “housekeeping” units — my memory is that up to three
housekeeping units were allowed per legal unit. I believe this is what occurred here — the City,
working with the property owner, reclassified the third unit at the Property as a “housekeeping”
unit.

7. According to the 3R report the 1963 permit to remove the kitchen was never
finaled. However, a related second permit that references the 1963 permit was finaled. (A true
and correct copy of this permit application is attached hereto as Exhibit E.)

8. The permitting history contains no further reference to, or authorization for, the
removal of units at the Property. The legal unit count at the Property is therefore either three, or
two, plus one housekeeping unit. At best, the unit count is unknown — it is certainly nof legally a

single family home.

'During World War II, San Francisco was in a housing crisis, and during the war the City
allowed extra units to be added in some cases via a simple address change, which could be
legalized later. The process of classifying extra units as “housekeeping” units was one method of
legalizing the units built during WWIL.





9. I believe there was a dearth of additional available records for the Property
because until the mid-1960s, the Housing Insioection Division was under the San Francisco
Health Department and permit records were kept by the Health Department, which performed the
Housing Inspection Division functions that are now performed by DBI. When the Building
Department assumed these functions in the mid-1960s, many building records held by the
Housing Inspection Division of the Health Department were lost, destroyed, or not transferred to
DBI. Indeed, the 1962 Report of Permit of Occupancy for the Property, which described it as
including three units, was signed by the Department of Public Health.

10. I also visited the San Francisco Public Library to review historic city directories.
These directories list all phone landlines associated with a certain address, and can therefore
indicate how many households lived at that address. In the 1950s and 1960s, having a telephone
was a luxury. Based on my experience as being born in San Francisco and living here for almost
my entire life, it would be very unusual for one family to have two landlines.

11.  Here, the Polk’s San Francisco City Directory for 1955-56 shows that fwo
addresses are associated with 220 San Jose Avenue. I turned to the page that includes “San Jose
Avenue,” which listed two addresses and landline numbers associated with the Property:

o 220 duPreez Robt H.; and

o 220a Saska Thos J.
(A true and correct copy of a photograph I took of this page is attached
hereto as Exhibit F.)

12.  The San Francisco City Directory for 1960 also lists “220” and “220a” San Jose
Avenue, with the same occupants. (A true and correct copy of a screenshot of the relevant page
is attached hereto as Exhibit G.)

13.  Finally, the 1967 City Directory lists three different surnames and two landlines
for the Property. (A true and correct copy of a screenshot of the relevant page is attached hereto
as Exhibit H.)

14. It appears that a second unit or the housekeeping unit still exists at the rear of the

Property, where there is a suite of rooms with independent access from the street and a full





bathroom. This room is labeled on the plans as an “office,” but it is more accurately described as
a bedroom. It satisfies the size and light requirements for a bedroom, has two windows and a
closet, and a full bathroom attached to it. This is likely one of the WWII-era units.

15.  Accordingly, the Property is not a single-family home, and any official records or
CFCs referring to it as a single-family home are improperly issued.

16. A 2015 garage alteration permit purported to document the Property’s status as a
single family home. (BPA No. 201502067686.) This permit has nothing to do with the dwelling,
and should not be allowed to change the unit count. A garage alteration permit is nof an
acceptable mechanism to document or change the legal number of units at the Property. The
status of the Property should remain either: three; two plus one housekeeping unit; or
“unknown,” as there is no previous CFC or other records documenting the removal of units at the
Property.

17.  Attached hereto as Exhibit I is a true and correct copy of my curriculum vitae.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct, and that this was executed on %be 4,2019.

o
// /7//
-
; s
//;atrick Busco;ic‘f:gE.
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EXHIBIT B





Edwin M. Lee, Mayor

City and County of San Francisco
Tom C. Hui, $.K,, CB.0., Director

Department of Building Inspection

Report of Residential Building Record (3R)
(Housing Code Section 351(n))

BEWARE: This report deseribes the current legal use of this property as compiled from records of City Departments. 'There hos
been no physical examination of the property itself. This record contains no history of any plumbing or electrical permits. The
report makes no representation that the property is in compliance with the law. Any occupancy or use of the property other than
that listed as authorized in this report may be legal and subject to removal or abatement, and should be reviewed with the
Planning Department and the Department of Building Inspection, Errors or omissions in this report shall not bind or stop the
City from enforcing any and all building and zoning codes against the seller, buyer and any subsequent owner. The preparation
or delivery of this report shall not impose any liability on the City for any errors or omissions contained in said report, nor shail
the City bear any Hability not otherwise imposed by law.

Address of Building 220 SAN JOSE AV Block 6513 Lot 004

QOther Addresses

1. A, Present awthorized Occupancy or nse:  ONE FAMILY DWELLING
B. 15 this building classified as a residential condomintnn? Yes No «
C. Does this building contain any Residentin} Hotel Guest Rooms as defined in Chap. 41, $.F. Admin, Code? Yes No +

2. Zoning district in which Jocated: RH-3 3. Building Code Occupancy Classification: R3

4. Do Records of the Plunning Department reveul an expiration date for any non-conforming use of this property?  Yes No v
If Yes, wint date? The zoning for this property may have changed. Call Planning Deparrtment, (415) 558.6377, for the current status,

5. Building Construction Date (Completed Date): 1900
6. Original Qceupancy or Use: UNKNOWN

7. Construction, conversion or alteration permits issued, i any:

Permit # = Issue Date  Type of WorkDOne ... . SEALUS
22114 2114 Mar 06,1909  BUILDING MOVED TO FRONT PROPERTY LINE N
251360 225006 Jun 26, [961 TERMITE CONTROI, «
2T2585 248740 Mar 05, 1963 REVERT TO TWO FAMILY DWELLING X
275734 248741 Mar 05,1963  MINGR REPAIRS C
287599 256351 Aug 26,1963 ALUMINUM SIDINC AND ALUMINUM WINDOWS ¢
7906219 449478 Jun 18, 1979 REPLACE ORIGINAL VICTORIAN WINDOWS C
§010341 AH6A43 [ec 01, 1980 REPLACE STAIRS C
8404496 514755 Apr 27, 1984 REMOVE LATH & PLASTER IN KITCHEN x
8. A, Is there an active Franchise Tax Board Referral on fite? Yes No v
B. 1§ this property currently under abatement proceedings for code violations? Yes Na v
9. Nuinber of residential structures on property? 1
10. A. Has an energy inspection been completed? Yes v No B.If yes, has a proof of compliance been issued? Yes v No
H. A s the building in the Mandatory Earthquake Retrofit of Wood-Frame Building Program? Yes No
B. If yes, has the required wpgrade work been completed?  Yes No

Records Management Division
1660 Mission Street - San Francisco CA 84103
Office (415) 558-6080 - FAX (415) 558-6402 - www.sfdbl.org





Department of Building Inspection
1660 Misston Street - San Francisco CA 94103 - (415) 558-6080
Report of Residential Record (3R)

Page 2

Address of Building

Other Addresses

Date ol Tssuance:

Date of Expiration:

By:

Report No:

220 SAN JOSE AV Block 6513

21 FEB 2017

21 FEB 2018

ROCHELLE GARRETY Patty Herrera, Manager
201702153988 Records Management Division

THIS REPORT 15 VALID FOR ONE YEAR ONLY,  The faw requires that, prior to the consummation of the sale or axchange of

this property, the saller muat defiver this report to the buyer and the buyer
must sign L

(For Explanation of terminology, see attached)

Records Management Division
1660 Mission Street - San Francisco CA 94103
Office (415) 558-6080 - FAX (415) 558-6402 - www.sfdbi.org
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Patrick Buscovich & Associates s:uctural engineers, inc.

235 MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 823, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94104-3105 « TEL: (415) 788-2708 FAX: (415) 788-8653

Patrick Buscovich S.E. Oracle

Education: University of California, Berkeley ~ ~ Bachelor Science, Civil Engineering 1978
~ Master Science, Structural Engineering 1979
Organizational: State of California; Building Standards Commission
Commissioner 2000 - 2002

City & County of San Francisco; Department of Building Inspection (DBI)

Commissioner\Vice President 1995 — 1996

UMB Appeal Board 2005-2006.

Code Advisory Committee 1990-1992
Chair of Section 104 Sub-Committee.

Structural Engineers Association of Northern California (SEAONC)

President 1997 - 1998
Vice President 1996 — 1997
Board of Directors 1994 — 1999

College of Fellows
Edwin Zacher Award 1999

Structural Engineers Association of California (SEAOC)

Board of Directors 1996 — 2000

Applied Technology Council (ATC)

President 2007 — 2008
Board of Directors 2000 — 2009

License: California, Civil Engineer C32863, 1981

Structural Engineer S2708, 1985

Experience: Patrick Buscovich and Associates, Structural Engineer — Senior Principal (1990 to Present)
Specializing in existing buildings, seismic strengthening, rehabilitation design, building code/permit consultation/peer review, expert
witness/forensic engineering

Previous Employment

Expert Witness/Forensic Engineering/Collapse & Failure Analysis
Commercial Tenant Improvement.
Seismic Retrofit Consultation.
Peer Review/Building Code Consulting.
Permit Consultant in San Francisco (DBI, DCP, SFFD & BSUM).
Member of the following SEAONC/DBI Ad-Hoc Committees:
Committee to revise San Francisco Building Code Section 104F/3304.6.
Committee to draft San Francisco UMB ordinance.
1993 Committee to revise the San Francisco UMB ordinance.
Blue-Ribbon panel to revise earthquake damage trigger, 1998
Secretary, Blue Ribbon Panel on seismic amendments to the 1998 SFBC.
Secretary, Blue Ribbon Panel Advising San Francisco Building Department on CAPSS.
Co-Authored of the following SF DBI Code Sections.
EQ damage trigger
Coordinator for San Francisco UMB Seminars 1992, 1993 & 1994. SEAONC.
Seminar on San Francisco UMB Code 1850 to Present. SEAONC.
Member San Francisco UMB Bond Advisory Committee.
Speaker at numerous San Francisco Building Department Building Inspection Seminar on UMB, 1993.
Speaker at numerous code workshops for the San Francisco Department Building Inspection.
Co-author of 1990 San Francisco UMB Appeals Board Legislation.
Co-author of San Francisco Building Code Earthquake Damage Trigger for Seismic Upgrade, Committee Rewrite 2008.
As a San Francisco Building Commissioner, directed formulation of Building Occupancy Resumption Plan (BORP)
Chaired the 1995 update on the San Francisco Housing Code.
Directed formulation of UMB tenant protection program
Consultant to the City of San Francisco for evaluation of buildings damaged in the Loma Prieta October 17, 1989 earthquake to assist
the Bureau of Building Inspection regarding shoring or demolition of “Red-Tagged” structures.
Consultant to San Francisco Department of Building Inspection on the Edgehill Land Slide.
Consultant to numerous private clients to evaluate damage to their buildings from the October 17, 1989 earthquake.
Project Administrator for multi-team seismic investigation of San Francisco City-owned Buildings per Proposition A, 1989 ($350
million bond).
Project Manager for seismic strengthening of the Marin Civic Center.
Structural engineer for Orpheum Theater, Curran Theater and Golden Gate Theater.
Consultant on numerous downtown SF High Rise Buildings.
Rehabilitation & seismic strengthening design for 1000’s of privately owned buildings in San Francisco.
Structure Rehabilitation of Historic Building.
Structural consultant for 1000’s single family house alteration in San Francisco

Previous Employment 1979-1980 PMB, Senior Designer
1980-1990 SOHA, Associate

Public Service: Association of Bay Area Government — Advisory Panels
Holy Family Day Home — Board of Director
Community Action Plan for Seismic Safety (CAPPS) advisory panel.
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ZACI{S) FREEDMAN & PATTERSON 235 Montgomery Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, California 94104
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION Telephone (415) 956-8100

Facsimile (415) 288-9755

www.zfplaw.com

October 14, 2019

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND EMAIL

President Myrna Melgar

San Francisco Planning Commission
c¢/o Jonas Ionin, Commission Secretary
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Re: 220 San Jose Avenue, San Francisco
Discretionary Review Request — File No. 018-016955DRP

Dear President Melgar and Members of the Planning Commission:

The proposed project at 220 San Jose Avenue (the “Property”) should not be approved
because it would illegally remove at least one existing dwelling unit, without Conditional Use
authorization. The Project Sponsor has proposed a two-story rear addition to the existing home at
the Property and interior alterations (the “Project”). However, the Project sponsor has failed to
disclose that the Property is legally a two-unit building (at least), and that the Project would
illegally remove a unit or units by merging them into a single-family home.

As set out in our letter dated August 21, 2019, the Property includes a second unit —
namely, a suite of rooms including a full bathroom, with independent access from the street.
Even if these rooms do not currently satisfy the Planning Code definition of a “dwelling unit,”
this simply proves that a unit or units have already been illegally removed. If the permitting
history says this is a two or three unit building, and there is no record of a unit merger
authorization, the Project sponsor cannot now claim this is a single-family home.

The Property Is Legally a 3 Unit Building, and Has Been Occupied by Multiple Households
Simultaneously.

The Project application claims that the house is a “single family home.” However, the
permitting history reveals that the Property was previously a three unit building. An historic
Sanborn map depicts 220 San Jose as having “3 apts.” (Buscovich Decl., Exh A.)
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Historic telephone directories confirm that at least two households lived at the Property
simultaneously. (Buscovich Decl., Exhs. F — H.) For example, the Polk’s San Francisco City
Directory for 1955-56 shows that rwo names and fwo addresses are associated with 220 San Jose
Avenue:

o 220 duPreez Robt H.; and
o 220a Saska Thos J.
(Buscovich Decl., Exh. F.)

Similarly, the 1960 Directory lists 220 and 220a San Jose Avenue, with the same names:

(Buscovich Decl., Exh. G.)

The 1967 edition of the Directory lists three different surnames and two different
landlines at 220 San Jose Avenue:

(Buscovich Decl., Exh. H.)

In the 1950s and 1960s, having a telephone was a luxury. It would have been very
unusual for one family to have two landlines. (Buscovich Decl., § 5.) Here, it is clear from the
phone directories that more than one family lived at the Property at the same time.

The permitting history further confirms that the Property is legally a three unit building.
On August 28 1962, a Report of Permit of Occupancy was issued by the Department of Health
for a “3 unit building” at the Property. (At that time, the Department of Health performed the
Building Inspection Division functions that are now performed by DBI. (Buscovich Decl., §9.))
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In or around October 1962, the owner of the Property filed a permit application to
“remove 1 kitchen, change building to 2 legal flats.” (Buscovich Decl., Exh. D.) According to
the 3R report for the Property, a permit was issued in March 1963 to “revert [the Property] to

two family dwelling:”

Address of Building 220 SAN JOSE AV Hlock 6543 Lot 604
Otlier Addresies

LA Prosent suthocized Oocupancy o ster - ONE FAMILY DWELLING

B. 15 this building clawified se 3 residential comfominum? Yex No v
C. Does this bullding cortain uny Retidentis) Hotel Guest Rooms as defined in Chup. 41, S.6. Adain, Coule? Yos No v
3, Zosiig district in which bocated: RH-3 3. Building Code Qccupancy Clessifiestion: R3
4. Do Records of te Planning Department reveal an expiration date for any nov-conlorming e of this property? Yo No #
I Yoy, what daw? ‘The roning for This propeely moay have chinged. Colf Planndng Departroeat, (115) 4886377, for the carrent status,

5. Ouitding Cosstrucion Date (Corpleted Date): 1900
6. Origingl Oceupancy or User UNKNOWN
7. Comstrution, conversion or alteration peomnits fwued i any;

Applicution 4 Pernilt #  IssucDate  Type of Work Dony L Sules
204 LA Mat 06, 1909 BUILDING MOVED YO FRONT BROCEKTY LING N
251860 EALT S Jur 26, 1965 TERMITE CONTROL ¢
172585 248740 War 031083 ROVERT T TWO FAMEY DWELLING by
JT8T 245741 Mar 03,1063 MINOR REPAIRS ¢
WIST 256351 Aug 26,1063 ALUMINUM SHHNG AND ALUSINUM WINDOWS ¢
6219 449418 Jun 18, 1979 REFLACK ORIGINAL VICTORIAN WINDOWS ¢
#ias4y A66443 e 01, 1980 REPLACE STAIRS N
U 514755 Ape 27,1984 KEMOVE LA & PLASTER 4 RITCHER X
8. A 15 there un active Franchise Tax Board Referral on file? Yes No v
B, ¥ this peoperty currestly uler sbatemient procesdings for cods viokations? Yes No v
9. Nurehee of residentisl structures on progenty? 1
10. A, Hus an energy inspection been completed? Yoo v No B3 yes, bas a proof of complipnee been issed? Yex v Ko
11 AL 1s the buitding in the Mundatory Eanthquake Retrolit of Wood Frame Buddisg Progrom? Yoy No V¥
B, yes, hus the required upgrade work boen completed?  Yex Ne

(Buscovich Decl., Exh. B.)

The description of the scope of work for that permit was “remove one kitchen change
building to two legal flats,” and the new “proposed” use was 2 units, plus 1 “HK”
(housekeeping) unit. (Buscovich Decl., § 5.) This permit was never finaled. However, according
to the 3R report, a related permit for “minor repairs” was finaled. (Buscovich Decl., q 7.)!

Importantly, no permit exists authorizing the conversion of the Property into a single-
family home. The permitting history contains no further reference to the removal of units at the
Property. The legal unit count at the Property is therefore either three, or two plus one

! The background to these permits is that in the 1960s, the City was dealing with the issue of how to
legalize units that had been built without permits to meet the City’s urgent housing needs during World
War II. (Buscovich Decl., § 6.) Where the WWII-era units exceeded the permitted zoning density for a
property, the City allowed property owners to reclassify the additional units as “housekeeping” units,
which did not count towards the dwelling unit count for the purposes of density restrictions. (Buscovich
Decl., § 6.) This appears to be what occurred here.
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housekeeping unit. (Buscovich Decl., § 8.) A 2015 garage alteration permit purported to
document the Property’s status as a single family home. (BPA No. 201502067686.) However, a
garage alteration permit is not an acceptable mechanism to document or change the legal number
of units at the Property. (Buscovich Decl., § 16.)

The Project plans do not disclose that more than one unit exists at the Property. A second
unit still exists at the rear of the Property, where there is a suite of rooms with independent
access from the street and a full bathroom. This room is labeled on the plans as an “office,” but it
is more accurately described as a bedroom. (Buscovich Decl., § 14.) It satisfies the size and light
requirements for a bedroom and has a closet. (/d.) The plans propose to convert this unit to a
large kitchen — effectively removing a unit under the auspices of an alteration permit. Approval
of the Permit would result in this unit being illegally removed without Conditional Use
authorization, as required by Planning Code § 317.

Even if this space in its current configuration did not meet the definition of a “unit,” this
is simply evidence that a unit or units have already been illegally removed without a permit. The
Planning Commission should not ratify any illegal unit removal or merger, and should not
approve this Project unless it restores the removed unit(s) at the Property.

Conclusion

The Project would either remove at least one dwelling unit at the Property, or ratify an
unpermitted unit merger that has already occurred. On that basis, the Project cannot lawfully be
approved.

Very truly yours,

ZACKS, FREEDMAN & PATTERSON, PC

fetrze

Sarah M. K. Hoffman







This communication and its contents may contain confidential and/or privileged material for the sole
use of the intended recipient. Any review or distribution by others is strictly prohibited. If you are
not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete all copies. Unless expressly stated,
nothing in this communication should be regarded as tax advice.



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 463 Castro Street (Flying Falafel)
Date: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 2:57:19 PM

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

From: Evan Goldin <evan.goldin@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 2:51 PM

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
project as proposed.

| ate at Flying Falafel on Market today with my sister — who lives near Castro St — and we both
agreed they're a top-notch operation that other neighborhoods would be lucky to have.

This is very transparently an attempt on the part of one business to block a competitor from
entering the market and offering a better product. We should not be using our public processes to
enrich private interests at the expense of our residents, small businesses, and neighborhoods.

Thank you,
Evan Goldin


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Cathleen.Campbell@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Foster, Nicholas (CPC)

Subject: FW: CBPRC Letter in Opposition to Parcel F.pdf

Date: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 2:56:49 PM

Attachments: CBPRC Letter in Opposition to Parcel F.pdf

1989 Memo.pdf
2012 TDCP.pdf

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

From: Tan Chow <tandchow@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 2:40 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>

Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron
(BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>; Boe Hayward <Boe@lh-
pa.com>; Daniel Esdorn <Daniel.Esdorn@hines.com>; ccollins@urbanpacificsf.com; cjhigley@tbm.com;
cameron.falconer@hines.com; Phil Chin <chinphil43@gmail.com>

Subject: CBPRC Letter in Opposition to Parcel F.pdf

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear President Myrna Melgar,
San Francisco Planning Commission President -

Please see attachment for the Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown (CBPRC) Letter in
Opposition to Parcel F, sent on behalf of Phil Chin, Chair of CBPRC.

If you have any question, feel free to contact me. Thank you and have a great day!
Best,

Tan Chow,

CBPRC

Sent from my iPhone


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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mailto:Frank.Fung@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:nicholas.foster@sfgov.org
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Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown
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October 14, 2019

President Myrna Melgar

San Francisco Planning Commission
City Hall

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, California 94102

Re: Letter in Opposition to Parcel F
Dear President Melgar,

The Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown (CBPRC) opposes the
projects at Parcel F and Block 4. The developer for Parcel F proposes two projects: Parcel F will
be the “fourth tallest Tower” in San Francisco, primarily consisting of luxury condominiums, a
5-star hotel, and Class A office space (the “Parcel F Project”) and, as admitted by the developer,
will cast a shadow on Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground, a zero shadow tolerance park; and,
Block 4 will be a 713-unit residential project, including, 347 affordable housing units intended to
serve residents earning 40% to 120% of the Average Median Income for San Francisco (the
“Block 4 Project”). The Parcel F Project shadow will have a significant and adverse impact on
the most important park for active recreation in Chinatown, and, while having to bear the burden
of the Parcel F of the shadow impact, the Block 4 Project will not relieve the overcrowded
housing conditions in Chinatown since the residents will not qualify as the Average Median
Income for residents in Chinatown is less than 30% of the Average Median Income.

Founded in 1969, CBPRC has advocated for open space and recreation areas in Chinatown.
Because of Chinatown’s high density, open space and parks are an especially important and a
limited resource to our neighborhood. Our committee members have a long history of being
engaged and active in the community processes in Chinatown including the renovation of many
San Francisco Recreation and Park facilities and open spaces. Our members include volunteer
architects, district council staff, community youth organizations, community childcare providers,
and community members, as well as staff from neighborhood service providers like Chinatown
Community Development Center, Community Youth Center, and Self-Help for the Elderly. The
inspiration for the formation of CBPRC was the fight to stop a project’s shadow that would have
been cast on Willie Woo Woo Wong (formerly Chinese Playground).

While Asian American Pacific Islanders comprise about 35% of the population of San Francisco,
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Asian American Pacific Islanders are 42% of low-income residents in San Francisco.! In
Chinatown, the Chinatown household Average Median Income for Asian American Pacific
Islander households is $18,962, less than 30% of the Average Median Income for all of San
Francisco.? The vast majority of Chinatown residents are monolingual immigrants with little
access to public resources.

Chinatown is the most densely populated area in San Francisco. With over 52,000 residents,
Chinatown has three times San Francisco’s citywide density.® Housing in Chinatown has been
found to be unhealthy and overcrowded conditions.* Many residents live in single room
occupancy units or SROs, rooms barely 100 square feet with shared bathrooms and kitchens and
no living rooms, family rooms or backyards or open space.® The Recreation and Open Space
Element of the General Plan identifies Chinatown as a high needs neighborhood® The Recpark
Department even determined that Chinatown as an “Equity Zone” and Willie Woo Woo Wong is
an “Equity Zone Park.”” Public parks and open space are what we would otherwise take for
granted as our family room, living room, garden, or yard and must be preserved.

No new shadow is permitted on Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground. Under the 1989 Memo, a
shadow will have significant adverse impact if the shadow cast fails a quantitative test or a
qualitative test. The Parcel F Project shadow fails both tests. Under the 1989 Memo, the
Absolute Cumulative Limit for Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground is zero. The Parcel F Project
shadow is not permitted on Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground.

The Parcel F Project shadow report conclusion is wrong. The developer’s shadow report
identifies the new shadow cast by the Parcel F Project as hitting the northwest portions of Willie
Woo Woo Wong Playground. Despite the Absolute Cumulative Limit set forth in the 1989
Memo, the San Francisco Recreation and Park Commission Resolution Number 1210-001 (the
2012 Resolution”) for the Transit Center District Plan did artificially raise the “shadow budget”
for Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground. But, the new shadow approved was for “portions of the
southern sport court and the children’s play area along the Sacramento Street edge.” The new
Parcel F Project shadow is a different shadow than that approved by the 2012 Resolution and
must be considered separate from the 2012 Resolution. The 2012 Resolution provides no cover
for the new shadow cast by the Parcel F Project.

L API Council, Asian and Pacific Islanders in San Francisco: Income Snapshot 2017
2 API Council, Asian and Pacific Islanders in San Francisco: Income Snapshot 2017; see also, San Francisco
Planning Department, San Francisco Socio-Economic Profiles
3 San Francisco Planning Department and San Francisco Recreation and Park Department, Existing Conditions
Report 2014, San Francisco Chinatown Portsmouth Square and Vicinity
4 API Council, Asian Pacific Islander Health and Wellness: A San Francisco Neighborhood Analysis ° San
Francisco Chronicle, “Families live jammed into Chinatown rooms, with no hope of leaving” (November 29,
5

)
6 San Francisco General Plan, Recreation and Open Space Element, Map 7
7 San Francisco Recreation and Parks Department, Equity Metrics
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The developer and the Parcel F Project shadow report completely ignores the planned active
recreation uses and future active recreation uses for the new playground now under construction
at Willie Woo Woo Playground. The Recpark staff report and the shadow report (October 2018)
provide no analysis of how the new shadow cast by the Parcel F Project will impact the new
active recreation areas, the senior exercise equipment area or the future uses of those areas.
Neither the staff report nor the shadow report discusses how the elimination of sunlight in those
areas will impact the quality of the use of those areas or the diminution in the investment made
by the Recpark Department into the park improvements to Willie Woo Woo Playground.

As such, the new shadow cast by the Parcel F Project also fails the 1989 Memo qualitative test.
We have an obligation to preserve the sliver of available sunlight during days of the month and
times of day where there will be active recreation use. 8 As this Commission may know, the San
Francisco Recreation and Park Department will spend well over $10,000,000 build an exciting
and innovative new Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground. After extensive community meetings,
park users wanted a sports court for active recreation for senior exercise, badminton, tennis,
pickleball, and tai chi. There is already extensive shadow on Willie Woo Woo Wong
Playground, and the project architects created these active recreation areas in the places that still
benefit from the limited available sunlight, intentionally in the spots that the project architects
refer to as the “living room” or the “heart” of the playground. These active recreation areas were
specifically designed to take advantage of the now remaining sunshine that Willie Woo Woo
Wong enjoys. While the developer may think the impact is de minims, this will block the scarce,
remaining sunlight for active recreation use, and will take away from Chinatown seniors, SRO
families and other active users valuable sunlight hours during crucial days and time periods in
the coldest four winter months from Thanksgiving to Chinese New Year. The Parcel F Project
new shadow will have a significant and adverse qualitative impact on Chinatown’s Willie Woo
Woo Wong Playground.

We thank the developer of the Block 4 Project for its effort to provide affordable housing, but it
will not provide housing for Chinatown residents. The Block 4 Project minimum income
qualifications are 40% of the Average Median Income. As noted above, the Average Median
Income for Chinatown residents is below 30%. The Block 4 Project income will exclude
Chinatown residents from the project. Hence, while Chinatown will endure the burdens of the
Parcel F Project, Chinatown residents will not gain any new affordable housing in the either the
Parcel F Project or the Block 4 Project.

The scarce public parks and open space in Chinatown are the lungs of the community. Our
Chinatown parks and open space are the only areas of respite from overcrowded conditions. The
new shadow cast by the Parcel F Project chokes the active recreation of seniors and park users at
Willie Woo Woo Playground. Once you cast a shadow, the shadow will stay forever and there is
no going back. Protect the solar access at Willie Woo Woo Wong Playground,

8 San Francisco Recreation and Space Element, Policy 1.9
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CBPRC requests that you find that the new shadow cast by the Parcel F Project is a significant
and adverse impact.

Best,

Phil Chin
on behalf of Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown

Enclosures
1. 1989 Memo
2. 2012 Shadow Resolution

cc: Vice President Joel Koppel
Commissioner Frank Fung
Commissioner Milicent A. Johnson
Commissioner Kathrin Moore
Commissioner Dennis Richard
(c/o Commission Secretary Jonas P. lonin via email)

John Rahaim

Planning Director

San Francisco Recreation and Park Department
(via mail)

Supervisor Aaron Peskin
San Francisco Board of Supervisors
(via email)

Supervisor Matt Haney
San Francisco Board of Supervisors
(via email)

Boe Hayward
Lighthouse Public Affairs
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(via email)

Cameron Falconer
Dan Esdorn

Hines

(via email)

Chris Collins
Urban Pacific
(via email)

CJ Higley
Farella Braun + Martel LLP
(via email)






City and County of San Francisco 1660 Mission Street
he Planning Department San Francisco, CA 94103-2414
MEMORANDUM

February 3, 1989*
T0: The City Planning Commission
The Recreation and Parks Commission

FROM: Department of Parks and Recreation
Department of City Planning

RE: Proposition K—The Sunlight Ordinance

BACKGROUND '

The Sunlight Ordinance (Section 295 of the City Planning Code) requires
the Planning Commission, prior to the issuance of a permit for a project that
exceeds 40 feet in height, to make a finding that any shadow on property under
the jurisdiction of the Park and recreation Department cast by the project is
insignificant.

The Ordinance further requires that the Planning Commission and the Parks
and Recreation Commission jointly adopt the criteria to be used by the
Ptanning Commission in the impiementation of the Ordinance.

PROPOSED CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING SIGNIFICANCE

The approach recommended by staff involves two steps. The first step is
to set an absolute cumulative 1imit for new shadow allowed in an open space.
The Absolute Cumulative Limit is the additional shadow-foot-hours expressed as
a percentage of the total foot-hours for each park over a period of one year.
The second step is to determine individual building tmpacts and allocate a
portion of the additional allowable shadow among specific projects within the
Absolute Cumulative Limit.

Details on the methodology for measuring and modeling shadows are
explained in the memorandum to the Recreation and Parks Commission and the
Planning Commission on "Proposition K--The Sunlight Ordinance,” dated November

1, 1987.

Absolute Limit

It 1s recommended that a quantitative 1imit be set on the amount of new
shadow (summed up over a period of one year) which could be aliowed in each
park based on the current shadow conditions in the park and the size of the
park. A large park with littie shadow could be permitted a larger Absolute
Cumulative Limit than a smaller park with a lot of shadow, for example.

ADMINISTRATION CITY PLANNING COMMISSION PLANS AND PROGRAMS IMPLEMENTATION/ZONING
(415) 558-6414 (415) 558-6414 (415) 558-6264 (415) 558-6377 .
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This absolute cumulative 1imit could be used up by one or more new
buildings, but, the final determination of how much of this 1imit could be
used by an individual building and what form the new shadow will take should
be determined on a case by case basis. However, any shadow cast beyond this
1imit would be considered significant and could not be allowed.

Each open space has distinctive characteristics of existing shadows and
the shadow that would be created by a new building. Each potential shadow
also has distinctive characteristics. Depending on the proposed new
buitding's location the shadow could be fast or slow moving (shadows of
buildings near the open space will move through the open space slower than a
buitding farther away from the open space). The proposed new building's
height and location will also determine the size and shape of potential new
shadow 1n the park, when (e.g. time of day, time of season) and where in the
park the new shadow would be cast. Since a potential shadow may have
immensely varied impacts at different times of day, or different seasons, or
duration of the shadow, or the size or the location of the shadow, the
evaluation of impact depends on a variety of qualitative factors.

The factors to be considered in allocating additional shadow within the
Absolute Cumulative Limit will vary from park to park based on the
characteristics of that park and the pattern of its existing shadows.

Qualitative criteria for each park should be based on existing shadow
profiles, important times of day, important seasons in the year, size and
duration of new shadows and the public good served by buildings casting new
shadow. These bases are explained below:

Yalue of the Sunlight

Time of Day (morning, mid-day, afternoon)
Based on existing shadow conditions and location of a given park, the
time of day values of sunlight will have to be established. For
example, afternoon and morning sun resources may be more important
for preservation in neighborhood parks whereas mid-day sun may be
more important in downtown parks. Additionally, some parks may have
more shadow during certain times of the day when compared with other
parks.

Time of Year (Spring, Summer, Fall, Ninter)
In the same way that the time of day value of sunlight has to be
established, suniight value during times of year will also have to be
determined. '

Shadow Characteristics

Size of Shadow
Small shadows will generally be preferred to large shadows unless

they last for long periods of time or fall on parts of the park where
sunlight is particularly critical to users.





Duration of Shadow
Shadows lasting a short period of time will generally be preferred to
shadows which last a long time unless the fleeting shadows fall
during a critical time of day or season and/or are so large that they
disrupt use of the park. .

Location of Shadow
Efforts should be made to avoid shadows in areas of the park
where existing or future use of the park is intense and where a
new shadow could have detrimental effects on park vegetation.

Building Characteristics

Public Good Served By Shadow Caster -

Buildings in the public interest in terms of a needed use or buiiding
design and urban form may be allocated a larger portion of the
Absolute Cumulative Limit than other buildings. For example, the
Civic Center Urban Design Plan calls for a building at the same
height as the existing library to continue the cornice on Marshall
Square thus completing the gap in the framing of Civic Center Plaza.
A new library building to accommodate the growing needs of the Public
Library is proposed at that space. This new building would cast new
shadows in the morning hours on Civic Center Plaza. If the new
building could not cast shadows, the ability to use the site for the

 1ibrary would be severely limited. Most of the Civic Center Plaza
shadow "budget" could perhaps be allocated to be used by this 1ibrary.

STAFF PROPOSAL FOR CONSIDERATION BY BOTH COMMISSIONS

The Proposition K mandate is to minimize new shadow impacts and protect
the sun resource on San Francisco open spaces. On the basis of several public
hearings on the subject, the objective is to construe Proposition K very
strictly in terms of the additional shadow on parks. In order to accomplish
this objective an Absolute Cumulative Limit is proposed for each individual
park. This 1imit is the additional amount of shadow-foot-hours expressed as a_
Additionally, for each open space, criteria for the approval of
new buildings have been proposed to evaluate allocations within the Absolute
Cumulative Limit.

There are two major factors affecting the impact of shadow on the use of a
park which are relevant to setting standards. One 1s the size of the park and
the other is the amount of existing shadow on the park. Taking these two
factors into account the staff recommends that the following standards be

adopted.

In smaller parks (less than two acres) which are already shadowed 20% or
more of the time during the year, it is recommended that no additional shadow





be permitted. On this basis the Absolute Cumulative Limit should be set at
zero for the following parks: :

Name Of Park

Maritime Plaza

Embarcadero Plaza I (north)
Portsmouth Square

St. Mary's Square
Boeddecker Park

Chinese Playground

Sgt. Macaulley Park
Huntington Park

South of Market Park

333333333EE

In larger parks (two acres or more) which are shadowed between 20% and 40%
of the time during the year it {s recommended that up to an additional 0.1% of
the current shadow should be permitted if the specific shadow meets the
additional qualitative criteria for the park. On this basis the Absolute
Cumulative Limit for the following parks should be set at 0.1%:

Name of Park Absolute
Embarcadero Plaza II (south) 0.1%
Unfon Square ' 0.1%

Some parks, although within this category above, have surrounding height
1imits that preclude the possibility of any new shadow. Therefore, the
Absolute Cumulative Limit for these parks should be set at 0%X. These parks
are:

Name of Park ' Absolute

Cumylative Limit
Washington Square oL E—
North Beach 0%

In larger parks which are shadowed less than 20% of the time during the
year, it is recommended that additional shadow of up to 1.0% could be
permitted if the specific shadow meets the additional qualitative criteria for
that park. On this basis the Absolute cumulative criteria for the following
park should be set at 1.0%:

Name of Park Absolute
Civic Center Plaza 1.0%

For the three parks on which additional shadow is recommended, 1t is
further recommended that individual project shadows within the Absolute
Cumulative Limit be allocated according to the following qualitative criteria
for each park.





LOCATION:

SIZE:

CHARACTERISTICS:

Union Square

Geary, Post, Powell, Stockton
Located in the center of the City's retail district.

105,515 square feet
This park ranks as the third largest Downtown park.

The park is surrounded by tall buiidings to the east, west
and the south. This relatively flat formal park is )
s1ightly elevated from the surrounding streets. Features
include park furniture for sitting and lawn areas. The
greatest intensity of park use occurs during mid-day

hours. Users are downtown workers, shoppers, tourists.
Many pedestrians use the park as a mid-block crossing.

This park is the location for many civic demonstrations and
cultural activities. Union Square is near the Powell
Street cable car line and major hotels. A parking facility
fs located beneath the park. ‘

SUN AND SHADOW CONDITIONS:

rl

.

- 38.3% of the total year round sunshine
is used up by existing shadows. The
shadow profile for this park is
generally a "U" shaped shadow
distribution with significant shadows
in the morning and even greater shadows
in the afternoon hours. The "U" shaped
distribution is increasingly flat in
the Winter due to increased mid-day
shadows.

Seasonal Shadow:

Summer:

Least shadow impacts - greatest sun resource. Shadowed in
early morning and late afternoon with relatively more
shadow during the afternoon hours. Approximately 30% of
the sun resource is in shadows at the time of the Summer
Solstice.

Spring/Fall: Major shadow impacts during the early morning and late

Winter:

afternoon hours. Morning shadows increase as Fall
approaches. The least shadow impacts occur between 9:30 AM
and 2:30 PM. During Equinox approximately 35%L of the park
sun resource 1s in shade.

The greatest shadow impacts on Union Square occur during
the Winter months. In Winter, nearly 50% of the park is in
shadow for the entire day. There 1s very 1ittle sunlight
available before 9:30 AM and after 2:30 PM during the
winter. The Winter Solstice conditions are such that 60%
of the park sun resource is in shadow.





ADDITIONAL SHADOW

Increase of up to 0.1% of total
foot-hours for the park based on size
and amount of existing shadow.

A maximum of 392,663.5 new shadow
foot-hours could be allowed.

Absolute Limit:

Qualitative Criteria:
- Avold additional shadows during mid-day.





LOCATION:

SIZE:

CHARACTERISTICS:

Civic Center Plaza

Polk, Grove, Larkin, McAllister
In the Civic Center, with major government offices, library
and Brook Hall surrounding the open space.

222,995 square feet
Civic Center Plaza is the largest downtown park.

Heaviest use occurs during mid-day hours. Users are civic
center workers, tourists and street people. Features
include some park furniture for sitting, lawn area and
fountain. This park is the location for many civic
demonstrations, assemblies and cultural activities. This
is a relatively flat formal park. A parking garage is
located beneath the park. Adopted redesign of the park
will accommodate more use by neighborhood children and day
care providers.

SUN AND SHADOW CONDITIONS:

Yeay I! Shadow:

7.4% of the total year round sunshine
fs used up by existing shadows. Civic
Center is one of the sunniest of the
downtown parks. During most of the
year the daily shadow distribution
profile is that of a relatively flat
"U" shape with greater shadows in the
afternoon than in the morning. By
Winter the "U" shape has flattened
further by decreases in shadows early
and late and increased shadows at
mid-day.

Seasonal Shadow:

Summer:

Spring/Fall:

Winter:

Sunny all day except in the late afternoon hours when an
average of less than 40% of the park is in shade. Some
shadows very early in the morning and very late in the
afternoon. Almost no shadows from 9 AM to 4 PM.
Approximately 5% in shadows during the Summer Solstice.

In general summer shadow conditions continue from the
Spring and into the Fall. There are however less shadow
impacts during the early morning hours and more shadows in
the afternoon than occur during the Summer months.
Approximately 5% in shadows during the Equinox.

Nearly 75% of the park remains in sun during the Winter
months. In late afternoon hours there are increased shadow
fmpacts on the open space. Approximately 10% in shadows
during the Winter Solstice.





ADDITIONAL SHADOMW
Absolute Limit:

Qualitative Criteria:

Increase of up to 1.0% of total
foot-hours for the park based on size
of the park and the amount of existing
shadow.

A maximum of 8,272,486.1 new shadow
foot hours could be allowed.

Preserve afternoon sun, particularly on
seating areas and lawn areas. .





LOCATION:

SIZE:

CHARACTERISTICS:

Embarcadero Center 2

Embarcadero, Clay & Stevart
This open space is located at the Eastern edge of the
Financial District.

149,698 square feet
The second largest Downtown park.

This park is a plaza surrounded by large office buildings
with many ground floor restaurants opening on to the

space. The plaza contains a large fountain, open air cafes
and 1s predominately paved. There is a flat grass area at
the South end of the plaza. The space has excellent access
from Market Street and South of Market Street. During
Tunch hour the park is heavily used by workers from the
Financial District. Tourist use of the park is also heavy
due to its location at the base of Market Street, proximity
to the Ferry Building, California Street cable car 1ine and
the Hyatt Regency. Noon concerts, fashion shows and
performances create a great deal of day use of the park.

SUN AND SHADOW CONDITIONS:

Yearly Shadow:

Summer:

Spring/Fall:

This open space has significant sun resources during
the morning hours. Afternoon shadows are heavy. The
"J" shape to the shadow profile is consistent
throughout the Spring, Fall and Summer due to the
morning sun and the heavy afternoon shadows. The "J"
shaped shade curve disappears in the Winter. In the
Winter no more than 50% of the park is in the sun after
the noon hour. The shape of the curve in Winter is
represented by a shaft of sun in the morning and a
nearly solid block of shadow in the post morning
hours. Overall, 37.6% of the annual sun resource is
currently in shadow.

Between 8:30 am and noon there are almost no shadows in the
plaza. Before 8:30 am nearly 40% of the space is in the
shade. After the mid-morning sun the shadows gradually
increase until 100% of the park s in shadow at the end of
the day. 30% shaded during the Summer Solstice.

For two hours in the mid-morning there is 100% sun in the
park. After 11:30 am the shadows increase such that
mid-afternoon shadows are greater than in Summer but never
reach the 100% shadows of late afternoon Summer days. 60%
shaded during the Equinox.





Winter: During the Winter there is a brief two hour period where
the park is in the sun. After 10 am shadows fincrease
rapidly and by noon in mid-December 90% of the plaza is in
the shade. 80% shaded during the Winter Solstice.

ADDITIONAL SHADOW

Absolute Limit: Increase of up to 0.1% of total foot-hours for the park
based on size of park and amount of existing shadows.
A maximum of 557,086.1 new shadow foot-hours could be

allowed.

Qualfitative Criteria:
Avoid mid-day and Winter shadows.






CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
RECREATION AND PARK COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NUMBER 1210-001

JOINT RESOLUTION WITH THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO AMEND THE
SECTION 295 IMPLEMENTATION MEMO ADOPTED IN 1989 TO: (1) RAISE THE
ABSOLUTE CUMULATIVE SHADOW LIMITS ON SEVEN PARK PROPERTIES
(UNION SQUARE, ST. MARY'S SQUARE, PORTSMOUTH SQUARE, JUSTIN
HERMAN PLAZA, MARITIME PLAZA, WILLIE “WO0O WOO” WONG PLAYGROUND,
AND BOEDDEKER PARK) THAT COULD BE SHADOWED BY DEVELOPMENT
PURSUANT TO THE TRANSIT CENTER DISTRICT PLAN, AND (2) INCORPORATE
ADDITIONAL QUALITATIVE CRITERIA FOR NINE PARKS (THE PREVIOUSLY
LISTED SEVEN PARKS, PLUS WOH HEI YUEN PARK AND CHINESE RECREATION
CENTER) THAT DESCRIBE THE QUANTITY, COVERAGE AREA, DURATION, TIMES
OF DAY, AND TIMES OF YEAR OF NEW SHADOWS; AND TO ADOPT FINDINGS
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

PREAMBLE

Under Planning Code Section295, adopted pursuant to the voters’ approval of Proposition K in 1984,
a building permit application for a project exceeding a height of 40 feet cannot be approved if there is
any shadow impact on a property under the jurisdiction of the Recreation and Park Department,
unless the Planning Commission, upon recommendation from the General Manager of the Recreation
and Park Department, in consultation with the Recreation and Park Commission, makes a
determination that the shadow impact will not be significant or adverse,

Planning Code Section 295 states that “The City Planning Commission and the Recreation and Park
Commission, after a joint meeting, shall adopt criteria for the implementation of the provisions of this
Section.” The Commissions initially met on January 24, 1985 to discuss implementation of Proposition
K and methods to analyze properties that could be shadowed by new development. As part of that
hearing, the Commissions adopted a memorandum describing an analytical approach to this exercise
(the “1985 Memo”). '

On February 7, 1989, the Recreation and Park Commission and the Planning Commission jointly
adopted criteria establishing absolute cumulative limits ("ACLs") for additional shadows on fourteen
parks (Planning Commission Resolution No. 11595),as described in a staff memorandum (the “1989
Memo”). The ACL for each park is expressed as a percentage of the Theoretically Available Annual
Sunlight ("TAAS") on the park (with no adjacent structures present).

On May 26, 2012, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing and recommended
approval of the Transit Center District Plan (“TCDP” or “Plan”)along with
implementingordinances,to- the Board of Supervisors. The result of a multi-year public and
cooperative interagency planning process that began in 2007, the Plan is a comprehensive vision for






shaping growth on the southern side of Downtown to respond to and support the construction of the
new Transbay Transit Center project, including the Downtown Rail Extension. Implementation of the
Plan would result in generation of up to $590 million for public infrastructure, including over $400
million for the Downtown Rail Extension. Adoption of the Plan included height reclassification of
numerous parcels in the area to increase height limits, including a landmark tower site in front of the
Transit Center with a height limit of 1,000 feet and several other nearby sites with height limits
ranging from 600 to 850 feet.

On September 28, 2011, the Planning Department published a draft Environmental Impact Report
(EIR) for the Plan for public review. The draft EIR was available for public comment until November
28, 2011. On November 3, 2011, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing at
a regularly scheduled meeting to solicit comments regarding the draft EIR. On May 24, 2012, the
Planning Department published a Comments and Responses document, responding to comments
made regarding the draft EIR prepared for the Plan.

On May 24, 2012, the Planning Commission reviewed and considered the Final EIR and found that
the contents of said report-and the procedures through which the Final EIR was prepared, publicized,
and reviewed complied with the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resotrces
Code Sections 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"), 14 California Code of Regulations Sections 15000 et seq. ("the
CEQA Guidelines"), and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code ("Chapter 31").

The Planning Commission also found the Final EIR was adequate, accurate and objective, reflected
the independent analysis and judgment of the Planning Department and the Planning Commission,
and that the summary of comments and responses contained no significant revisions to the draft EIR,
and certified the Final EIR for the Plan in compliance with CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines and Chapter
3L

Before taking action on the TCDP Ordinances and other related actions, the Planning Commisston on
May 24, 2012, approvedMotion No. 18629,adopting environmental findings in accordance with
CEQA, including the rejection of alternatives and a statement of overriding benefits. As part of this
action on May 24, 2012, the Planning Commission also adopted a Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting program ("MMRP") for the Plan and made mitigation measures conditions of its approval.

The Final ElRprepared for the Plan analyzed and identified potential new shadows that could be
created cumulatively by likely development sites in the Plan area on up to nine open spaces (Union
Square, Saint Mary’s Square, Portsmouth Square, Justin Herman Plaza, Willie “Woo Woo” Wong
Playground, Maritime Plaza, Who ITei Yuen Park, Chinese Recreation Center, and Boeddeker Park)
that are under the jurisdiction of the Recreation & Park Department. Seven of these open spaces
(Union Square, Saint Mary’s Square, Portsmouth Square, Justin Herman Plaza, Willie “Woo Woo”
Wong Playground, Maritime Plaza, and Boeddeker Park) were assigned ACLs in the 1989 Memo.
Approval of these buildings would thus be subject to approval under the procedures of Planning
Code Section 295 (also known as ”Prdp K} by the Recreation & Park and Planning Commissions.





On July 24, 2012, the Board of Supervisors held a duly noticed public hearing, affirmed certification
of the Final EIR and approved the Plan, as well as the associated ordinances to implement the Plan,
on first reading.

On July 31, 2012, the Board of Supervisors held a duly noticed public hearing, and approved the Plan,
as well as the associated ordinances to implement the Plan, on final reading..

On August 8, 2012, Mayor Edwin Lee signed into law the cordinances approving and implementing
the Plan, which subsequently became effective on September 7, 2012.

On October 11, 2012, the Planning Commission and the Recreation and Park Cominission held a duly
noticed joint public hearing to consider raising the absolute cumulative shadow limits for seven open
* spaces under the jurisdiction of the Recreation & Park Department that cumulatively could be
shadowed by likely development sites in the Plan area.

The Planning Commission and the Recreation and Park Commission have reviewed and considered
reports, studies, plans and other documents pertaining to the Plan.

The Planning Commission and the Recreation and Park Commission have heard and considered the
testimony presented at the public hearing and has further considered the written materials and oral
testimony presented on behalf of the Project Sponsor, Department staff, and other interested parties.

The Planning Department, Linda Avery, is the custodian of records for this action, and such records
are located at 1650 Mission Street, Fourth Floor, San Francisco, California. The custodian of records
for the Recreation and Park Departiment and Commission is Margaret McArthur. For the Recreation
and Park Department and Commission actions, such records are located at 501 Stanyan Street, San
Francisco, California.

Therefore, having reviewed the materials identified in the recitals above, and having heard all
testimony and arguments, the Commissions find, conclude, and resolve as follows:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Proposition K was adopted by the voters over 25 years ago in 1984, and codified as
Planning Code Section 295 in 1985, with the general intent of preserving sunlight to open spaces
under the jurisdiction of the Recreation and Park Department; and,

WHEREAS, Planning Code Section 295 required the Planning and Recreation and Park Commissions
(“the Commissions”) to jointly develop implementation criteria to ensure that shadows that would be
adverse to the use of parks would not be created by new development. The Commissions jointly
adopteda memorandum in 1989 (the “1989 Memo") that included quantitative and qualitative criteria
and guidelines, including the adoption of Absolute Cumulative Shadow Limits (“ACLs") for 14 parks
within the larger downtown area. These ACLs were established based on considerations of the
existing shadow load of a park, size of the park, and other factors, including patterns and locations of
future development consistent with existing plans whose implementation was in the public interest.





The Commissions also adopted qualitative factors to consider when determining whether an
individual development project would have a significant adverse impact on use of such parks, based
on the time of year, time of day, location, and duration of new shadows, and the effect of these
shadows on usage patterns within parks; and,

WHEREAS, The Commissions recognized that they were vested with the administrative authority to
establish criteria and guidelines governing shadow on parks as set forth in the 1989 Memo. Neither
Proposition K nor Section 295 require the establishment of ACLs. They also do not mention any
particular quantitative mechanism or require the adoption of such mechanism. However, the
Planning and Recreation andPark Commissions decided jointly to create such limits in the 1989
Memo for certain parks in the downtown area in order to more deliberately manage the sunlight on
parks in the densest part of the City, which was situated north of Market Street at the time; and,

WIIEREAS, The ACLs are a creation of the joint action of the Commissions and are set forth in the
1989 Memo. The Commissions,under the authority delegated to them under Proposition K, have the
abilityto revise such limits from time to time in a manner they deem appropriate based on new
information and experience,provided that the revisions are consistent with the mandate of Section
295 that no new shadows may be permitted which are adverse to the use of the parks; and,

WHEREAS, The Downtown Plan was adopted in 1985, after the adoption of Section 295, with the
intention of shifting growth south of Market Street, particularly to the area around the Transbay
Transit Center, in order to reduce development pressure north of Market Street, preserve historic
buildings, and reduce the encroachment of the central business district into surrounding
neighborhoods to the north and northwest; and,

WHEREAS, The Transit Center District Plan (“TCDP” or the “Plan”)is a multi-year public and
cooperative interagency planning process that began in 2007 which supports and builds on the 1985
Downtown Plan’s vision for the area around the Transbay Transit Center as the heart of the new
downtown. Specifically, the Plan is a comprehensive vision for shaping growth on the southern side
of Downtown to respond to and support the construction of the new Transbay Transit Center project,
including the Downtown Rail Extension; and,

WHEREAS, The TCDP is consistent with the overarching policy objectives of the 1985 Downtown
Plan, but is a comprehensive revision and update to key aspects of the Downtown Plan based on
today’s considerations and how best to achieve the broadest improvements to livability, economic
development, and sustainability; and,

WHEREAS, Adoption of the TCDPincluded reclassification of numerous parcels in the area to
increase height limits and facilitate greater intensity and density for individual developments in
furtherance of the goals of the Plan. These reclassifications include a landmark tower site in front of





the Transit Center with a height limit of 1,000 feet and several other nearby sites with height limits
ranging from 600 to 850 feet; and,

WHEREAS, Each building proposed within the TCDP contributes to the Plan’s overall program of
public benefits, and the Plan cannot be reasonably evaluated for public interest on a building-by-
building basis. The Plan’s public benefit program would be obscured by a piecemeal evaluation of all
the established ACLs as part of each individual building’s approval process. Such an approach also
would undermine the purposes of doing comprehensive planning for development, open space, and
miscellaneous public benefits. As such, adjustments to the 1989 Memo should be considered
holistically in light of the newly adopted TCDP; and,

WHEREAS, The 1989 Memo provides that the Planning Commission and Recreation and Park
Commission may consider the public good served by development that would cast new shadows on
park properties, in terms of a needed use, building design, and urban form. The adoption and
implementation of the Plan is intended to shape regional growth patterns through the development
of an intense, employment-focused neighborhood situated within downtown San Francisco in an area
served by abundant existing and planned transportation infrastructure. As the tallest proposed
building within both the City and the Plan area, the Transbay Tower, at over 1,000 feet in total height,
would serve as the centerpiece of a new sculpted downtown skyline that marks the location of the
Transbay Transit Center, the future nexus of local, regional, and statewide transportation
infrastructure in San Francisco. The Transbay Tower will necessarily be flanked by nearby buildings
of 600 to 850 feet in height in order to provide a graceful skyline and provide transitions to the
Transbay Tower from the predominant existing skyline or 600 feet.

WHEREAS, The additional cumulative shadow that could be cast by development within the Plan
area on Union Square, Portsmouth Square, Saint Mary’s Square, Justin Herman Plaza, Maritime
Plaza, Chinese Recreation Center, Boeddeker Park, Willie “Woo Woo” Wong Playground, and Who
Hei Yuen Park is not expected to interfere with or adversely affect the use of these parks, for the
following reasons: (1) the new shadow would primarily occur in the morning hours during periods of
comparatively low park usage; (2) the new shadow would generally occur for a limited amount of
time on any given day, with durations ranging from five minutes to a maximum of approximately 60
minutes, depending on the specific park and the time of year; and (3) the new shadow would occur
during limited discrete periods of the year, which would vary depending on the specific park, and
would range from a minimum of a couple weeks to a maximum of approximately three months, with
fluctuations in the amount of new shadow that would be cast during these periods on a given park
property. These considerations are consistent with the analytical criteria and guidelinesin the 1989
Memo, which include qualitative criteria that recommend avoiding shadows that cover extensive
areas of a park for a substantial length of time, particularly in areas and during times of intense
usage; and,

WHEREAS, Development within the Plan area will generate substantial revenue for new
infrastructure and improvements to the public realm, including the creation of new open spaces,
Implementation of the Plan, if all major development sites are constructed, would generate up to $590





million for public infrastructure, including over $400 million for the Downtown Rail Extension. This
contribution of funds to the Downtown Rail Extension represents the vast majority of the City ’s
commitment to provide $450 million,memorialized in a regional agreement with the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission to leverage $2 billion in additional regional and federal funds to
construct the rail project; and,

WHEREAS, The Plan would create or help fund the creation of over 12 acres of new public open
space in the Plan Area, which currently has no publicly-owned open space. The 1989 Memo
considered the importance of distributing sunny open spaces throughout the larger Downtown area.
However, the Memo primarily focused on open spaces north of Market Street, and did not
contemplate the creation the type of extensive new public open space proposed by the Plan; and,

WHEREAS, Aportion of the projected revenues from implementation of the Plan are allocated to
improvements outside of the Plan area, in recognition that increased population in the Plan area
would have outward rippling effects on usage and demand for open space in nearby neighborhoods,
The Funding Program for the Plan specifically provides for up to $12.5 million from the Plan’s future
Open Space Fee revenue to fund open space improvements outside of the Plan area, including $9
million for open space improvements in the Chinatown area and $3.5 million for other downtown
area open space improvements; and,

WHEREAS, The 1989 Memo did not establish an ACL for either WohHei Yuen Park or the Chinese
Recreation Center; and,

WHEREAS, Adetermination by the Commissions to raise the ACLs for the seven specified parks in
amounts that would accommodate the additional shadow that could be cast by development within
the Plan area as reported in the Plan’s FEIR does not constitute an approval- of any specific project.
Through future action at public hearings, the Planning Commission, and Recreation and Park
Comumission (if it so desires), would analyze and consider the shadow impacts of individual
development projects within the Plan area, and determine whether a given project would result in an
adverse shadow impact on open spaces regulated by Section 295 and allocate available shadow to
that project; and

WHEREAS, CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15163 require a lead agency to prepare a
subsequent EIR or a supplement to an EIR when substantial changes fo the project, substantial
changes with respect to the circumstances under which the project would be undertaken, or new
information of substantial importance would require major revisions of the certified EIR. There have
been no substantial changes to the TCDP, no substantial changes in circumstances, and no new
information of substantial importance since the Final EIR was certified on May 24, 2012. Therefore,
no subsequent or supplemental environmental review is required.





DECISION

Now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, That based upon the Record andthe submissions by the staff of the Planning
Department, the Planning Commission and Recreation and Park Commission hereby amend the 1989
Memo to increase the Absolute Cumulative Shadow Limits (“ACLs") for the following specified

properties under the jurisdiction of the Recreation and Park Department, as specified below:

Current Cumulative ‘Total ACL after Transbay Tower Remalning ACL After

Open Space Avallabla ACL | Plan Shadow | Proposed ACL Increase | Proposed Increaso Shadow Transhay Tower Allocation
Union Square 0.080% 0.190% 0.110% 0.190% 0.011% 0.179%
St. Mary's Square 0% 0.090% 0.090% 0.090% 0,048% 0.042%
Portsmouth Square 0% 0.410% 0.410% 0.410% 0.133% 0.277%]
Justin Herman Plaza 0.007% 0.090% 0.083% 0.090% 0.046% 0.044%
Wilie "Woo Woo" Wong Playgreund 0% 0.020% 0.030% 0.030% N/A 0.030%
Marltime Plaza__ 0% 0.004% 0.004% 0.004% 0.004% 0%
‘Woh Hel Yuen Park NfA 0.001% N/A N/A 0.001% N/A|
Chinese Recreation Center N/A 0.008% N/A N/A 0.008% N/A
{Boedekker Park 0% 0.003% 0.003% 0.003% 0.003% 0%
I

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, The increases in the ACLs specified by this resolution are
limited to the general shadow profiles of the cumulative new shadows that could be cast by buildings
within the Transit Center District Plan, as identified in the FEIR prepared for the Plan and would not
be available for buildings outside the plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, The increases in the ACLs specified by this resolution are
accompanied by additional qualitative and quantitative criteria for the characteristics of potential
shadows within these ACLs, including the duration, time of day, time of year, and location of
shadows on the particular parks, as described in the Plan Final EIR and attached to this Resolution as
Exhibit A. Any future consideration of allocation of “shadow” within these newly increased ACLs for
projects must be consistent with these thecriteria set forth in Exhibit A.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, The “public benefit” of any project considered for allocation of
new shadow within these revised ACLs shall be considered in the context of the public benefits of the
Transit Center District Plan as a whole, provided that such project is within the Plan area.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, Any development project that seeks allocation of available ACL
within the limits newly established herein must adequately demonstrate a good faith effort to sculpt
the massing and architectural elements of the proposed building so that it: (1) is consistent with the
adopted building height limits and controls in the Plan,and {2) reduces the effect of the building’s





shadows on the parks protected by Section 295 in comparison to the building’s shadow as analyzed
in the Plan’s Final EIR. This requirement shall not apply to the Transbay Tower (101 1st Street) project,
however, which was analyzed at a project level in the Final EIR.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, The Planning Commission and Recreation and Park
Commission, for purposes of this action, rely upon and incorporate by reference as though fully set
forth herein, the findings, includinga Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program,set forth in
Exhibit B of this Motion as approved by the Planning Commission on May 24, 2012 in Motion No.
18629("CEQA Findings") and attached hereto as Exhibit B.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was ADOPTED by the Recreation and Park
Commission at its meeting on October 11, 2012

Iagonct ) ezt

Margaret McArthur
Commission Secretary

AYES: 6
NAYS: 0
RECUSED: 1

ADOPTED: October 11, 2012





EXHIBIT A

Additional Criteria for the Consideration of
New Shadows on Certain Parks

The qualitative and quantitaﬁve criteria for each of the listed parks below shall supplement any
evaluation criteria in the 1989 Memo. Times of day given for new shading should be considered
approximate, with tolerance for consideration plus or minus 10 minutes. The “maximum coverage”
criteria refers to the maximum coverage of new shading at the minute of greatest new shading.

Union Square

Existing Shadow Load: 38.3%. *

Revised ACL: _ 0.19%

Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Mid-March through Late September
Maximum Duration of Net New Shadow: 60 minutes

Time of Day: Between 7:10 - 8:40 am;

On Day of Maximum extent: 7:40 — 8:40am
Maximum coverage of new shading: 24.5% of the park '

Net new shadow may sweep across various parts of the park depending on the time of year, however
the shadows at times of maximum extent would occur in the southern edge of the park, on the
terraced steps, garage driveway, and adjacent landscaping and circulation areas. The maximum area
of new shadow shall not exceed approximately 24.5% of the park at 8:00am in early April and early
September. Shading on these particular days would begin at 7:40am at the southwest corner part of
the park, peak at 8:00am, and depart by 8:40am.

* After the adoption of the ACL in the 1989 Memo, the Macy's expansion project added sunlight fo Union

Square mmounting to approximately 0.05% of the theoretically available sunlight on the park. It should be
noted, however, that the ACL for Union Square was not formally increased to account for this added sunlight.

Portsmonth Square

Existing Shadow Load: 39.0%.

Revised ACL: 0.41%
Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Late-October to Mid-February
Maximum Duration of Net New Shadow: © 60 minutes

Time of Day: Between 8:00 ~ 910 amy;





On Day of Maximum Extent: 8:00 — 9:00am
Maximum coverage of new shading: 42.5% of the park

The net new shadow would sweep across various parts of the park depending on the time of year,
however the shadows at times of maximum extent would occur over the southwestern half of the
park, on the upper plaza and the playgrounds. The maximum area of new shadow is 42.5% of the
park at 8:30am in late November and mid-January. The shading on these particular days would begin
at 8:00am at the center of the park, peak at 8:30am, and depart by 9:00am.

St. Mary’s Square

Existing Shadow Load: . 51.9%.
Revised ACL: 0.09%
Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Mid-September to mid-October, late February to late
: March -
Maximum Duration of Net New Shadow: 40 minutes
Time of Day: Between 8:10 — 910 am;
On Day of Maximum Extent: 8:30 — 9:10am
Maximum coverage of new shading: 26.3% of the park

The net new shadow would sweep across various parts of the park depending on the time of year,
however the shadows at times of maximum extent would occur over the southwestern half of the
park, on the upper plaza and the playgrounds. The maximum area of new shadow is 26.3% of the
park at 8:45am in late September and mid-March. The shading on these particular days would being
at 8:30am at the southwest of the park, peak at 8:45am, and depart by 9:10am.

Justin Herman Plaza

Existing Shadow Load: 37.6%.

Potential TCDP Net New Shadow: 0.09%

Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Early November - Early February

Maximum Duration of Net New Shadow: 60 minutes total (coverage from different buildings

at  discrete times, each with a duration of
approximately 30 minutes)
Time of Day: Between 1:00 —2:40 pm;
On Day of Maximum Extent: 1:10 — 1:40pm
and 2:10 — 2:40pm
Maximum coverage of new shading: 10.1% of the park

The net new shadow would sweep across various parts of the park depending on the time of day;
however, the shadows at times of maximum extent would occur over the southern portion of the
sunken plaza, including part of the stage, the steps along the edge of the plaza, and small portions of
the landscaping and palm trees along the eastern and southern edges of the sunken plaza. No new’
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shading would be cast on the southern portion of the park south of the Market Street extension. The
maximum area of new shadow is 10.1% of the park at 1:15pm in early December and early January.
The shading on these particular days would beginat 1:10pm on the southern part of the sunken plaza
in the northern part of the park, peak at 1:15pm, and depart by 1:40pm, then reappear at 2:10pm over
the Market Street extension and disappear by 2:40pm. The two distinct periods are due to shadmg
from different buildings occurring at different times.

Willie “Woo Woo’f Wong Playground

Existing Shadow Load: : 52.8%.
Revised ACL: 0.03%
Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Early November - Early December; January
Maximum Duration of Net New Shadow: 20 minutes
Time of Day: Between 8:00 — 8:20 am;

On Day of Maximum Extent: 8:00 — 8:20am
Maximum coverage of new shading: 15.1% of the park

The net new shadow would sweep primarily over portions of the southern sport court and the
children’s play area along the Sacramento Street edge between 8:00-8:20. The maximum area of new
shadow is 15.1% of the park at 8:15 in late November and mid-January.

Maritime Plaza
Existing Shadow Load: 68.4%.
Revised ACL: 0.004%
Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Early to Mid-December; - Late December to Early
. January
Maximum Duration of Net New Shadow: 25 minutes
Time of Day: Between 10:40 — 11:05 am;
On Day of Maximum Extent: 10:40 - 11:05 am
Maximum coverage of new shading: 1.9% of the park

The shadow falls on the southern portion of a skinny and long north-south slice of sun that
tracks across the western half of the plaza in the morning as the shading building lines up
with the gap between Embarcadero Center towers. The area features circulation,
landscaping, sculpture, and informal seating areas. The maximum area of new shadow is
1.9% of the park at 10:45am in late December.

Chinese Recreation Center

ACL: N/A
Time/Date of Net New Shadow: Mid October; Mid February

(il





Duration of Net New Shadow:
Time of Day:

Maximum coverage of new shading:

5 minutes

8:25am

On Day of Maximum Extent: 8:25am
36.5% of the park

The shadow would predominantty fall on a portion of the roof of the Recreation Center building and
anorthern portion of the adjacent open recreation area.

Boeddeker Park

Existing Shadow Load:

Revised ACL:

Time/Date of Net New Shadow:
Duration of Net New Shadow:
Time of Day:

Maximum coverage of new shading:

37.7%

0.003%

Early June — Early July

5 minutes

6:47 - 7:00 am

On Day of Maximum Extent: 6:47 — 6:52am
2.9% of the park

The shadow would fall in two locations, both on small portions of the outer street edges of the park,
one along the Jones Street edge and one on the Ellis Street edge. In both cases, the shadow would fall
on service entries and raised planters, based on the proposed design for the park renovation. The

shadow would not touch any of the proposed active or passive recreational areas.

WohHei Yuen Park

Existing Shadow Load:

ACL:

Time/Date of Net New Shadow:
Duration of Net New Shadow:
Time of Day:

Maximum coverage of new shading:

" Unknown

N/A

Early November; Early February

<10 minutes

7:44-7:50am

On Day of Maximum Extent: 7:44-7:50am
1.9% of the park

The shadow falls on the John Street edge touching a small part of the plaza and part of the picnic

table area beneath the arbor, and a part of the western portion of the park.
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

Subject: FW: Support for Trader Joe"s (CU) at 555 Fulton St

Date: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 1:38:04 PM

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

From: Ben Zotto <ben@zotto.net>

Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 12:48 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: Support for Trader Joe's (CU) at 555 Fulton St

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

San Francisco Planning and Commission:

I'm a resident of Hayes Valley, and want to express unreserved support for an exception to the
Hayes Valley formula retail ban for the Trader Joe's grocery at 555 Fulton St. It's well beyond time for
HV to have a full-service grocery within its walk-shed area, and that scale of retail operation is ill-
suited to a one-off local provider. TJ's has shown itself in other locations to be an efficient user of
small footprint spaces to provide produce, dry goods, and all manner of other grocery items at
reasonable prices. They would be an asset to a neighborhood that quite desperately needs
something like it. | encourage you to approve whatever legislation and permits they require without
hesitation.

Thank you,

Ben Zotto

Hickory St.

Hayes Valley, San Francisco
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mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Veronica.Flores@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 463 Castro Street (Flying Falafel)
Date: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 9:32:09 AM

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

From: Ansh Shukla <self@anshukla.com>

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 4:25 PM

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

I'm writing to urge you to not take Discretionary Review on 463 Castro Street and approve the project as proposed. I
love felafel and am excited to have lots more options to eat great food. Also, the circumstances of this review are
extremely suspicious and suggest abuse of the process.

Thank you,
Ansh
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD EFFORT TO IMPLEMENT MENTAL
HEALTH SOLUTION IN CITY HALL

Date: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 9:31:29 AM

Attachments: 10.15.19 UrgentCareSF Leqislative Framework.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 4:38 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD EFFORT TO
IMPLEMENT MENTAL HEALTH SOLUTION IN CITY HALL

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 15, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD EFFORT TO
IMPLEMENT MENTAL HEALTH SOLUTION IN CITY HALL

Mayor commits to working out a plan legislatively to help those most in crisis while
maintaining flexibility to go to the ballot only as a last resort

San Francisco, CA — Today, Mayor London N. Breed moved forward with a process to
ensure that solutions to San Francisco’s mental health crisis are tackled in City Hall, not
unnecessarily at the ballot. Mayor Breed earlier today announced her initiative, UrgentCareSF,
to provide help to those most in crisis in our City—the 4,000 people who are homeless and
suffer from mental illness and substance use disorder. To move forward solutions in City Hall,
Mayor Breed will introduce a legislative framework for her initiative at the Board of
Supervisors, which would enshrine the main principles of UrgentCareSF’s approach to address
the City’s mental health crisis.

To preserve flexibility to protect the program if legislation does not move forward in City
Hall, the Mayor also submitted an initiative ordinance that would go before the voters in the
March 2020 election. This initiative ordinance can be withdrawn any time within the next six
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LONDON N. BREED
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

Mayor commits to working out a plan legislatively to help those most in crisis while maintaining
flexibility to go to the ballot only as a last resort

San Francisco, CA — Today, Mayor London N. Breed moved forward with a process to ensure
that solutions to San Francisco’s mental health crisis are tackled in City Hall, not unnecessarily
at the ballot. Mayor Breed earlier today announced her initiative, UrgentCareSF, to provide help
to those most in crisis in our City—the 4,000 people who are homeless and suffer from mental
illness and substance use disorder. To move forward solutions in City Hall, Mayor Breed will
introduce a legislative framework for her initiative at the Board of Supervisors, which would
enshrine the main principles of UrgentCareSF’s approach to address the City’s mental health
crisis.

To preserve flexibility to protect the program if legislation does not move forward in City Hall,
the Mayor also submitted an initiative ordinance that would go before the voters in the March
2020 election. This initiative ordinance can be withdrawn any time within the next six weeks,
and the Mayor introduced it to have as a last resort.

“I have been clear that we can and should be moving forward with solutions to help our most
vulnerable residents who need our help today,” said Mayor Breed. “Under UrgentCareSF, we are
already undertaking a broad and ambitious new approach to delivering treatment and housing for
those in crisis on our streets, including those who won’t accept our services. | believe our City
leaders can come together on a unified program to address our City’s most immediate challenge.
We were all elected to make the hard choices and to do the work to implement solutions, and
that’s what I’'m committed to doing.”

UrgentCareSF includes immediate actions and a long-term vision for a system where the people
who are most in need of care receive it in a way that meets them where they are. With
UrgentCareSF, treatment for mental health and substance disorders is available as soon as it is
desired, with no significant waits. The detailed elements of UrgentCareSF can be found at
http://sfmayor.org/urgentcaresf.

UrgentCareSF is based in clinical expertise, evidence-based programs, data analysis, and the
principles of harm reduction and compassion. The four priorities of the program are:

e Building a new system of care coordination, outreach, low-barrier services, and harm
reduction, including for those who cannot make decisions for themselves.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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e Expanding treatment capacity and reducing administrative barriers to eliminate wait
times for services.

e Focusing on the workforce needs that are required in order to provide mental health care
and substance use treatment to people.

e Providing housing options for people exiting treatment services in order to support
behavioral health chronic disease management.

In March 2019, Mayor Breed hired a Director of Mental Health Reform, Dr. Anton Nigusse
Bland, to evaluate the City’s behavioral health system and identify actions that the City and
Department of Public Health can take to improve the system. San Francisco’s existing mental
health system treats about 30,000 people per year, focused on people with Medi-Cal or who are
uninsured and in need of care for substance use and serious mental illness. For many of those
people, the system works well, however there are is a population of people for whom the system
is falling short.

Through his research, Dr. Nigusse Bland identified a population of about 4,000 people who are
experiencing homelessness, and have both a mental illness and a substance use disorder.

Hi#
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weeks, and the Mayor introduced it to have as a last resort.

“I have been clear that we can and should be moving forward with solutions to help our most
vulnerable residents who need our help today,” said Mayor Breed. “Under UrgentCareSF, we
are already undertaking a broad and ambitious new approach to delivering treatment and
housing for those in crisis on our streets, including those who won’t accept our services. |
believe our City leaders can come together on a unified program to address our City’s most
immediate challenge. We were all elected to make the hard choices and to do the work to
implement solutions, and that’s what I’'m committed to doing.”

UrgentCareSF includes immediate actions and a long-term vision for a system where the
people who are most in need of care receive it in a way that meets them where they are. With
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

o Expanding treatment capacity and reducing administrative barriers to eliminate wait
times for services.

e Focusing on the workforce needs that are required in order to provide mental health care
and substance use treatment to people.

» Providing housing options for people exiting treatment services in order to support
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
health system treats about 30,000 people per year, focused on people with Medi-Cal or who
are uninsured and in need of care for substance use and serious mental illness. For many of
those people, the system works well, however there are is a population of people for whom the
system is falling short.

Through his research, Dr. Nigusse Bland identified a population of about 4,000 people who
are experiencing homelessness, and have both a mental illness and a substance use disorder.
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES APPROVAL OF MARKET STREET
IMPROVEMENTS

Date: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 4:15:09 PM

Attachments: 10.15.19 Better Market Street Project Approval.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 3:29 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES APPROVAL OF MARKET
STREET IMPROVEMENTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 15, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES APPROVAL OF

MARKET STREET IMPROVEMENTS

Approved today by SFMTA Board, the Better Market Street project will enable immediate
safety and transit reliability improvements to begin in early 2020, including making Market

Street car-free east of 10 Street

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced final approval for the City’s
Better Market Street project, enabling transformational safety and streetscape improvements
along 2.2 miles of Market Street, one of the most traveled streets in the world. The final
approval for the project came today, when the San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency (SFMTA) Board of Directors approved the project’s proposed transportation changes.

Today’s highly anticipated decision provides a path forward for longer-term construction
improvements to widen sidewalks, add protected bike lanes, speed up Muni, and improve
loading and delivery for businesses. Given Market Street’s importance for transit, the project
features new Muni-only lanes and new rapid service stops that will result in a 25 percent time
savings for transit riders. While these long-term changes move forward over the next few
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

Approved today by SFMTA Board, the Better Market Street project will enable immediate safety
and transit reliability improvements to begin in early 2020, including making Market Street
car-free east of 10" Street

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced final approval for the City’s
Better Market Street project, enabling transformational safety and streetscape improvements
along 2.2 miles of Market Street, one of the most traveled streets in the world. The final approval
for the project came today, when the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)
Board of Directors approved the project’s proposed transportation changes.

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
savings for transit riders. While these long-term changes move forward over the next few years,
immediate safety changes will go into effect by early 2020, following a directive issued by
Mayor Breed earlier this year to move forward quickly with safety enhancements wherever
feasible.

In 2020, Market Street will become car-free east of 10th Street, benefiting the thousands of
people who ride transit, walk, or bike on Market Street on a daily basis. These improvements
will be paired with numerous safety enhancements at intersections and new loading zones on
cross-streets.

“Market Street is at the heart of our city, and we need to do everything we can to make it a safer,
more livable, and more vibrant place for our residents, workers, and visitors,” said Mayor Breed.
“Last year, there were 123 injury collisions on Market Street and the majority involved people
walking and biking. Better Market Street and the project’s near-term improvements are critical to
achieve our Vision Zero goals and ensure everyone can feel safe on our most traveled street.”

Today’s approvals conclude a comprehensive planning and decision-making process including
numerous City agencies. San Francisco Public Works is leading the multi-agency project in
partnership with SFMTA, San Francisco Planning, the County Transportation Authority, the
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development and the Mayor’s Office on Disability.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

“These project approvals mark a major milestone for the Better Market Street project,” said
Public Works Director Mohammed Nuru. “We are one step closer to delivering a makeover of
the City’s premier boulevard, bringing it into the 21st century with streetscape improvements
that will make the street safer, more accessible and more welcoming for San Francisco’s
residents, workers and visitors.”

“This truly transformational project will help create the Market Street our city deserves: one that
prioritizes safety, accessibility, transit and economic vitality,” said Tom Maguire, SFMTA
Interim Director of Transportation. “These important changes are designed to advance the City’s
Vision Zero goal of eliminating traffic deaths on one of our busiest corridors.”

“The Better Market Street project included an extraordinary amount of public engagement and
creativity that is reflected in the streetscape improvement designs,” said John Rahaim, Director
of San Francisco Planning. “With the continued growth from the surrounding neighborhoods, we
were committed to a unified thoroughfare by increasing the transit, pedestrian, and bike safety
options that support a safer and more diverse range of activities.”

“San Francisco won’t achieve Vision Zero without a bold vision for Market Street,” Brian
Wiedenmeier, Executive Director, San Francisco Bicycle Coalition. “We look forward to
working with Mayor Breed to get cars off Market Street as soon as possible and break ground
next year.”

“Cities around the world are creating car-free spaces and pedestrian boulevards in the urban core.
We can’t wait for San Francisco to join these leading cities,” said Jodie Medeiros, Executive
Director, Walk San Francisco. “The Better Market Street plan will make our city stronger, more
climate-friendly, and dramatically safer for the 500,000 people who walk down it each day.”

“I’m enthusiastic about the fact the Environmental Impact Report has been certified and the plan
is moving ahead with Quick Build in the first quarter of 2020. I’m looking forward to the
possibility of a shovel in the ground by the end of next year,” said Ron Miguel, chair of the
Better Market Street Community Working Group and past president of the San Francisco
Planning Commission.

For project updates, go to www.bettermarketstreetsf.org.

HiH
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years, immediate safety changes will go into effect by early 2020, following a directive issued
by Mayor Breed earlier this year to move forward quickly with safety enhancements wherever
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

“Market Street is at the heart of our city, and we need to do everything we can to make it a
safer, more livable, and more vibrant place for our residents, workers, and visitors,” said
Mayor Breed. “Last year, there were 123 injury collisions on Market Street and the majority
involved people walking and biking. Better Market Street and the project’s near-term
improvements are critical to achieve our Vision Zero goals and ensure everyone can feel safe
on our most traveled street.”

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

“This truly transformational project will help create the Market Street our city deserves: one
that prioritizes safety, accessibility, transit and economic vitality,” said Tom Maguire, SFMTA
Interim Director of Transportation. “These important changes are designed to advance the
City’s Vision Zero goal of eliminating traffic deaths on one of our busiest corridors.”

“The Better Market Street project included an extraordinary amount of public engagement and
creativity that is reflected in the streetscape improvement designs,” said John Rahaim,
Director of San Francisco Planning. “With the continued growth from the surrounding
neighborhoods, we were committed to a unified thoroughfare by increasing the transit,
pedestrian, and bike safety options that support a safer and more diverse range of activities.”

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

“Cities around the world are creating car-free spaces and pedestrian boulevards in the urban
core. We can’t wait for San Francisco to join these leading cities,” said Jodie Medeiros,
Executive Director, Walk San Francisco. “The Better Market Street plan will make our city
stronger, more climate-friendly, and dramatically safer for the 500,000 people who walk down
it each day.”



“I’m enthusiastic about the fact the Environmental Impact Report has been certified and the
plan is moving ahead with Quick Build in the first quarter of 2020. I'm looking forward to the
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
HitH
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

Date: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 11:08:21 AM

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

From: David Evans <devans@mac.com>

Sent: Saturday, October 12, 2019 5:54 PM

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

Hello,

| am a resident of Glen Park, and | would like to express support to the
Planning Commission for Supervisor Mandelman's proposal to limit parking
expansion.

And in particular, I live one block from Kern Street and I’'m upset that the
Kern Street parking lot was given a special dispensation to legally operate
as such. That block is blighted and deserves redevelopment. It has little
value as a chain link fenced parking lot that for the last year that has gone
mostly unused. It would add value as housing or mixed-use development
since it is literally a stone’s throw (if you have a good arm at least) from the
BART station. We need more transit-oriented housing and this lot is a prime
location for that kind of development, like the library project from ten
years ago. The parking lot use should be removed immediately or at least


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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sunset.

Thank you,
David Evans
775 Chenery Street



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

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Invitation - Loma Prieta Earthquake 30th Anniversary Commemoration (Please RSVP)
Date: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 11:07:15 AM

Attachments: pastedImagebase640.pna

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

From: Karunaratne, Kanishka (MYR) <kanishka.cheng@sfgov.org>

Sent: Saturday, October 12, 2019 7:47 PM

Cc: Peacock, Rebecca (MYR) <rebecca.peacock@sfgov.org>; Lee, Mason (MYR)
<mason.lee@sfgov.org>; Waugh, Natalie (ADM) <natalie.waugh@sfgov.org>; Anderson, Tara (DAT)
<tara.anderson@sfgov.org>; Arntz, John (REG) <john.arntz@sfgov.org>; Asay, Greg (ADM)
<greg.asay@sfgov.org>; Austin, Kate (ADM) <kate.austin@sfgov.org>; Badasow, Bridget (HSA)
<bridget.badasow@sfgov.org>; Blackman, Sue (LIB) <Sue.Blackman@sfpl.org>; Boomer, Roberta
(MTA) <Roberta.Boomer@sfmta.com>; Brown, Michael (CSC) <michael.brown@sfgov.org>;
Conefrey, Maureen (FIR) <Maureen.Conefrey@sfgov.org>; Corina Monzon (AIR)
<corina.monzon@flysfo.com>; Dick-Endrizzi, Regina (ECN) <regina.dick-endrizzi@sfgov.org>;
Donovan, Dominica (ECN) <dominica.donovan@sfgov.org>; Drain, Kahala (CFC)
<kahala.drain@first5sf.org>; Ekberg, Natalie (HSS) <natalie.ekberg@sfgov.org>; Ethics Commission,
(ETH) <ethics.commission@sfgov.org>; George Ishikata <george.ishikata@gmail.com>; Harris, Sonya
(DBI) <sonya.harris@sfgov.org>; Hom, Mary (CON) <mary.hom@sfgov.org>; Hood, Donna (PUC)
<DHood@sfwater.org>; Hosmon, Kiely (BOS) <kiely.hosmon@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; LaBarre, Elizabeth (HSA) <elizabeth.labarre@sfgov.org>; Larrick, Herschell
(WOM) <Herschell.Larrick@sfgov.org>; Ihathhorn@asianart.org; Liang, May (ECN)
<may.k.liang@sfgov.org>; Linda Martin <martinl@sfha.org>; McGee, Melissa (HSA)

<melissa.mcgee @sfgov.org>; Meyer, Catherine (HRC) <cathy.mulkeymeyer@sfgov.org>; Morewitz,
Mark (DPH) <mark.morewitz@sfdph.org>; Nelson, Eric (ADM) <eric.nelson@sfgov.org>; Norris,
Jennifer (WAR) <jennifer.norris@sfgov.org>; OCIl, CommissionSecretary (Cll)
<commissionsecretary.ocii@sfgov.org>; Page_Ritchie, Sharon (ART)
<sharon.page_ritchie@sfgov.org>; Pon, Adrienne (ADM) <adrienne.pon@sfgov.org>; Quesada, Amy
(PRT) <amy.quesada@sfport.com>; Rogers-Pharr, Emily (PUC) <ERogersPharr@sfwater.org>;
Rosenberg, Julie (BOA) <julie.rosenberg@sfgov.org>; Shore, Elena (ADM) <elena.shore@sfgov.org>;
Silva-Re, Pauline (JUV) <pauline.silva-re@sfgov.org>; Stewart, Crystal (ADM)
<crystal.stewart@sfgov.org>; Summers, Ashley (REC) <ashley.summers@sfgov.org>; Tom, Risa (POL)
<risa.tom@sfgov.org>; Tyson, Anthony (HSA) <anthony.tyson@sfgov.org>; Valdez, Anthony (ENV)
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cordially invites yeu te attend

1989 Loma Prieta Earthquake
30" Anniversary Commemoration Ceremony

on Thursday, the seventeenth of October,
two thousand and nineteen
from four-thirty to five-thirty P.M.

Marina Green, West End
San Francisco, California

Kindly reply by
mons@sfg





<anthony.e.valdez@sfgov.org>; Varner, Christina (RNT) <christina.varner@sfgov.org>; Vaughn, Carla
(PUC) <CVaughn@sfwater.org>; Walker, William (REG) <william.walker @sfgov.org>
Subject: Invitation - Loma Prieta Earthquake 30th Anniversary Commemoration (Please RSVP)

Dear Commissioners:

You are cordially invited to join Mayor London N. Breed at the 1989 Loma Prieta Earthquake

30t Anniversary Commemoration Ceremony:

e Date: Thursday, October 17, 2019
e Time: 4:30pm —5:30pm

¢ Location: Marina Green — West End

e RSVP: mons@sfgov.org

In addition to the ceremony, there is a Community Preparedness Fair from 3pm-6pm at
Marina Boulevard and Cervantes.


mailto:mons@sfgov.org

i .rf!';?ff%f Fheriiess yeit le attend

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

Kindly reply by October 15, 2019 to

maot ISQ*'Eﬁ{ﬂI .org

Kanishka



Kanishka Karunaratne Cheng F2 35/
Director of Commission Affairs
Office of Mayor London N. Breed



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 220 San Jose Avenue — File No. 018-016955DRP

Date: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 11:07:07 AM

Attachments: Dec of PB with Exhibits 10.14.19.pdf

LTR to Melger re 220 San Jose Ave 10.14.19.pdf

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

From: Sarah Hoffman <sarah@zfplaw.com>

Sent: Monday, October 14, 2019 5:13 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>
Subject: 220 San Jose Avenue — File No. 018-016955DRP

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Mr. lonin,

Please see attached, in advance of this week’s Planning Commission meeting, the DR Requestors’
supplemental materials in support of their DR Request. Hard copies will be delivered to the Planning
Department tomorrow morning. Thank you for your assistance with this matter.

Very truly yours,

Sarah Hoffman

Zacks, Freedman & Patterson, PC
235 Montgomery Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94104
Telephone: (415) 956-8100
Facsimile: (415) 288-9755
sarah@zfplaw.com

www.zfplaw.com

This communication and its contents may contain confidential and/or privileged material for the sole
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I, Patrick Buscovich, declar‘e as follows:

1. I am a licensed Civil and Structural Engineer, practicing for more than 40 years in
San Francisco, California. Almost 90% of my work relates to San Francisco Code issues. [ make
this declaration in support of the above-captioned appeal. Unless otherwise stated, I have
personal knowledge of the facts stated herein and, if called as a witness, could and would testify
competently thereto.

2. I have reviewed the permit history and city records for 220 San Jose Avenue, San
Francisco (the “Property™), as well as the proposed Project at issue in this appeal. I have also
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

5. I also reviewed the 3R report for this Property. (A true and correct copy of the 3R
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





THESE SANBORN MAPS

ARE DATED TO THE MID 1990's
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

P:\Com 2011\Patrick Buscovich Resume.doc 8/9/2011
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED, SUPERVISORS RONEN, HANEY, AND MANDELMAN ANNOUNCE
PLAN FOR ADULT RESIDENTIAL FACILITY

Date: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 11:06:27 AM

Attachments: 10.15.19 Adult Residential Facility.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 7:26 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED, SUPERVISORS RONEN, HANEY, AND MANDELMAN
ANNOUNCE PLAN FOR ADULT RESIDENTIAL FACILITY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 15, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR BREED, SUPERVISORS RONEN, HANEY, AND
MANDELMAN ANNOUNCE PLAN FOR ADULT
RESIDENTIAL FACILITY

Plan includes both long-term beds for the mentally ill and short-term psychiatric use of beds
while structural changes are implemented to address patient safety and quality of care

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Hillary Ronen, Supervisor Matt
Haney, and Supervisor Rafael Mandelman today announced a plan for the 55-bed Adult
Residential Facility (ARF) located in the Behavioral Health Center at Zuckerberg San
Francisco General Hospital. The plan will allow for 28 beds in the facility to be used for short-
term psychiatric respite while 27 beds will remain long-term care beds for current residents at
the Adult Residential Facility. The Department of Public Health (DPH) and staff will also be
implementing a long-term plan to address patient safety and quality of care at the ARF before
converting the beds back to long-term residential use.

This plan will be codified in an ordinance authored by Supervisors Ronen, Haney and
Mandelman, which will then be considered by the Board of Supervisors. DPH will begin
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
MANDELMAN ANNOUNCE PLAN FOR ADULT RESIDENTIAL
FACILITY

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
Residential Facility (ARF) located in the Behavioral Health Center at Zuckerberg San Francisco
General Hospital. The plan will allow for 28 beds in the facility to be used for short-term
psychiatric respite while 27 beds will remain long-term care beds for current residents at the
Adult Residential Facility. The Department of Public Health (DPH) and staff will also be
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
implementing the plan immediately upon Board approval, which means the temporary expanded
Hummingbird beds would be operable starting as soon as November. It also means that all the
severely mentally ill residents who choose to remain at the Adult Residential Facility will be able
to do so.

“This plan will provide badly needed short-term psychiatric respite for our most vulnerable
residents while we develop and implement policies and practices to maintain the long-term
viability of this facility,” said Mayor Breed. “Ultimately, our job is to make the best use of the
resources we have to help our most vulnerable while we also work to expand and grow our
mental health services to help those in crisis on our streets. | am pleased that we are doing just
that with this plan and | want to thank the Supervisors, the Department of Public Health, and
workers for their collaboration on this solution.”

“I am very thankful that we were able to come together and work out an agreement that will
support the stability and health of severely mentally ill residents of the Adult Residential
Facility, protect the long-term care beds that we desperately need, and at the same time address
the crisis on the streets,” said Supervisor Ronen. “As Board and Care homes close across the
City, it’s essential that we protect the long-term beds for severely mentally ill people that we do
have.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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“This is a solid compromise that protects essential long term care beds, while creating badly
needed short-term shelter beds to get people off the streets and immediately connected to
services,” said Supervisor Haney.

“This is a good outcome all around,” said Supervisor Mandelman. “We have a clear and realistic
path to the successful operation of the ARF as a high quality, long-term residence for people
with severe mental illness. Meanwhile, the plan ensures that we use every available bed to move
seriously ill folks off the street and into care.”

In August, DPH announced plans to convert 27 of the existing long-term residential beds in the
Adult Residential Facility for short-term psychiatric respite in the Hummingbird Place program.
DPH was proceeding in the interest of client safety and quality of care, and in response to
demand for psychiatric respite. However, concerns were raised by some in the community and
some staff members about what this meant for the future of the facility and its residents.

Both Supervisors Ronen and Mandelman introduced separate ordinances laying out a future plan
for the ARF, which were both pending at the Board. The Mayor, the Supervisors, and DPH
worked together to find a solution that would keep residents in their homes and improve the
long-term viability of the ARF, while allowing for expanded services for short-term psychiatric
respite while that work was being done.

“The San Francisco Department of Public Health’s top priority is patient care. We are grateful to
the Mayor and Supervisors Ronen, Haney, and Mandelman for working through this issue to find
a path that puts patients first, continues to provide services, and lays out long-term stability for
the residents of the ARF board and care,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “We share
the urgency to improve the lives of San Franciscans who are experiencing homelessness, mental
illness and substance use disorder. These residents are in great need of care and housing, and
their health affects our entire community.”

Specifically, the plan calls for the following in the short-term (next six months):

e 27 beds will continue to be used as long-term care beds in the ARF

e 28 beds will be used as Hummingbird beds

e DPH will work with staff on a plan to address patient safety and quality of care at the
ARF with the goal of converting 14 Hummingbird beds back to long-term care beds by
April 2020, if the plan is approved by the California Care Licensing Board.

e Final bed distribution will be 41 ARF beds, 29 Hummingbird beds, restoring the balance
from August 2019.

HiH
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implementing the plan immediately upon Board approval, which means the temporary
expanded Hummingbird beds would be operable starting as soon as November. It also means
that all the severely mentally ill residents who choose to remain at the Adult Residential
Facility will be able to do so.

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
mental health services to help those in crisis on our streets. I am pleased that we are doing just
that with this plan and I want to thank the Supervisors, the Department of Public Health, and
workers for their collaboration on this solution.”

“I am very thankful that we were able to come together and work out an agreement that will
support the stability and health of severely mentally ill residents of the Adult Residential
Facility, protect the long-term care beds that we desperately need, and at the same time
address the crisis on the streets,” said Supervisor Ronen. “As Board and Care homes close
across the City, it’s essential that we protect the long-term beds for severely mentally ill
people that we do have.”

“This is a solid compromise that protects essential long term care beds, while creating badly
needed short-term shelter beds to get people off the streets and immediately connected to
services,” said Supervisor Haney.

“This is a good outcome all around,” said Supervisor Mandelman. “We have a clear and
realistic path to the successful operation of the ARF as a high quality, long-term residence for
people with severe mental illness. Meanwhile, the plan ensures that we use every available bed
to move seriously ill folks off the street and into care.”

In August, DPH announced plans to convert 27 of the existing long-term residential beds in
the Adult Residential Facility for short-term psychiatric respite in the Hummingbird Place
program. DPH was proceeding in the interest of client safety and quality of care, and in
response to demand for psychiatric respite. However, concerns were raised by some in the
community and some staff members about what this meant for the future of the facility and its
residents.

Both Supervisors Ronen and Mandelman introduced separate ordinances laying out a future
plan for the ARF, which were both pending at the Board. The Mayor, the Supervisors, and
DPH worked together to find a solution that would keep residents in their homes and improve
the long-term viability of the ARF, while allowing for expanded services for short-term
psychiatric respite while that work was being done.

“The San Francisco Department of Public Health’s top priority is patient care. We are grateful
to the Mayor and Supervisors Ronen, Haney, and Mandelman for working through this issue
to find a path that puts patients first, continues to provide services, and lays out long-term
stability for the residents of the ARF board and care,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of
Health. “We share the urgency to improve the lives of San Franciscans who are experiencing
homelessness, mental illness and substance use disorder. These residents are in great need of
care and housing, and their health affects our entire community.”



Specifically, the plan calls for the following in the short-term (next six months):

o 27 beds will continue to be used as long-term care beds in the ARF

e 28 beds will be used as Hummingbird beds

o DPH will work with staff on a plan to address patient safety and quality of care at the
ARF with the goal of converting 14 Hummingbird beds back to long-term care beds by
April 2020, if the plan is approved by the California Care Licensing Board.

o Final bed distribution will be 41 ARF beds, 29 Hummingbird beds, restoring the balance
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPREHENSIVE MENTAL HEALTH PLAN
TO HELP CITY’'S MOST VULNERABLE RESIDENTS

Date: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 11:05:57 AM

Attachments: 10.15.19 UrgentCareSF.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2019 9:31 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPREHENSIVE MENTAL
HEALTH PLAN TO HELP CITY’S MOST VULNERABLE RESIDENTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 15, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPREHENSIVE
MENTAL HEALTH PLAN TO HELP CITY’S MOST
VULNERABLE RESIDENTS

Mayor Breed'’s initiative, UrgentCareSF, will focus on comprehensive care, services and
treatment for the 4,000 people who are homeless and suffering from mental illness and
substance use disorder in San Francisco

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a comprehensive plan—
UrgentCareSF—to provide mental health care for those suffering from homelessness, mental
illness, and substance use disorder. San Francisco’s Behavioral Health System serves 30,000
people every year, but is not working for the most vulnerable people on our streets. The plan
includes immediate actions and a long-term vision for a system where the people who are
most in need of care receive it in a way that meets them where they are. With UrgentCareSF,
treatment for mental health and substance disorders is available as soon as it is desired, with
no significant waits. The detailed elements of UrgentCareSF can be found at

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

Mayor Breed’s initiative, UrgentCareSF, will focus on comprehensive care, services and
treatment for the 4,000 people who are homeless and suffering from mental illness and substance
use disorder in San Francisco

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
includes immediate actions and a long-term vision for a system where the people who are most
in need of care receive it in a way that meets them where they are. With UrgentCareSF,
treatment for mental health and substance disorders is available as soon as it is desired, with no
significant waits. The detailed elements of UrgentCareSF can be found at
http://sfmayor.org/urgentcaresf.

“People are suffering on our streets, and we need to act now to get them connected to the mental
health care and substance use treatment that they desperately need,” said Mayor Breed.
“UrgentCareSF is a comprehensive plan that tackles this issue from all angles, from getting
people connected to care, to making sure we have enough qualified healthcare workers in our
City. We will work to meet people where they are with solutions and treatment, including for
those who refuse services. We need to help people right now—people we know need care can’t
afford to wait years for help.”

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
Bland, to evaluate the City’s behavioral health system and identify actions the City and
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

“We have a clear plan ahead for our behavioral health system, grounded in analysis of the data,
and investment in solutions for the people in greatest need,” said Dr. Anton Nigusse Bland,
Director of Mental Health Reform. “At the same time, we will strengthen and grow our
workforce, cultivating a culture of excellence in San Francisco. It’s exciting to see our
community, health leaders and city leaders coming together with compassion to embrace this
change.”

“UrgentCareSF is a bold transformation of our behavioral health system,” said Dr. Grant Colfax,
Director of Health. “The status quo for people experiencing homelessness, mental illness and
substance use disorder is not acceptable. Working together with the community—as we learned
from our experience with HIV—we will be relentless in finding solutions and making sound
investments that heal our patients and improve our city for everyone.”

In order to serve this population, UrgentCareSF will build a new system of care coordination,
outreach, low-barrier services, and harm reduction. UrgentCareSF is designed to meet the
specific needs of this population and has already begun by immediately serving the 230 people
of the 4,000 who are most in need.

The City will also work to expand treatment capacity and reduce administrative barriers to
eliminate wait times for services. This will include building on the Mayor’s efforts to add new
behavioral health treatment beds, creating new meth sobering centers and managed alcohol
facilities, and expanding access to existing city services, such as the Behavioral Health Access
Center, and the Behavioral Health Pharmacy.

UrgentCareSF also focuses on the workforce needs that are required in order to provide mental
health care and substance use treatment to people. The City will implement policy changes to
expand and support the behavioral health workforce to meet today’s needs. This element will
include wage increases for community based organizations, and working to ensure that mental
health and substance use treatment positions are fully staffed.

Finally, the City will provide housing options for people exiting treatment services in order to

support behavioral health chronic disease management. This will include increasing the payment

rate that Board and Care facilities receive and supporting the development of new permanent

supportive housing units. San Francisco has approximately 8,000 permanent supportive housing
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units, more per capita than any other city in the country, with over 1,000 units in the pipeline to
be built over the next few years. San Francisco also has over 300 new units of master-leased
housing that will be available in the next year.

“San Francisco has a history of not backing down when it comes to creating solutions to improve
the public’s health,” said Joe Hollendoner, CEO of the San Francisco AIDS Foundation.
“Through stakeholder engagement, community planning, targeted investments, and structural
interventions—the same approach that has made our city successful in responding to the AIDS
epidemic—UrgentCareSF has the opportunity to improve the quality of life and health of
countless people.”

“Subsidized housing is the key to ending homelessness. That said, there is strong evidence that
people who experience homelessness with behavioral health disabilities need additional
behavioral health services,” said Dr. Margot Kushel, Director of the UCSF Benioff Homeless
and Housing Initiative. “Intensive case management, combined with subsidized housing, has
been shown to keep people who struggle with mental health and substance use disorders housed
successfully. We know what types of services people need to thrive in the community; we just
need the resources to do it. | am pleased that the San Francisco Department of Public Health has
a plan to provide these crucial services.”

UrgentCareSF was designed based on public health data and a comprehensive assessment of the
City’s mental health system. Each element of the initiative is rooted in data analysis and clinical
expertise.

For more details on UrgentCareSF, visit http://sfmayor.org/urgentcaresf.
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“People are suffering on our streets, and we need to act now to get them connected to the
mental health care and substance use treatment that they desperately need,” said Mayor Breed.
“UrgentCareSF is a comprehensive plan that tackles this issue from all angles, from getting
people connected to care, to making sure we have enough qualified healthcare workers in our
City. We will work to meet people where they are with solutions and treatment, including for
those who refuse services. We need to help people right now—people we know need care
can’t afford to wait years for help.”

UrgentCareSF is based in clinical expertise, evidence-based programs, data analysis, and the
principles of harm reduction and compassion. The four priorities of the program are:

¢ Building a new system of care coordination, outreach, low-barrier services, and harm
reduction, including for those who cannot make decisions for themselves.

o Expanding treatment capacity and reducing administrative barriers to eliminate wait
times for services.

¢ Focusing on the workforce needs that are required in order to provide mental health care
and substance use treatment to people.

¢ Providing housing options for people exiting treatment services in order to support
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

“We have a clear plan ahead for our behavioral health system, grounded in analysis of the
data, and investment in solutions for the people in greatest need,” said Dr. Anton Nigusse
Bland, Director of Mental Health Reform. “At the same time, we will strengthen and grow our
workforce, cultivating a culture of excellence in San Francisco. It’s exciting to see our
community, health leaders and city leaders coming together with compassion to embrace this
change.”

“UrgentCareSF is a bold transformation of our behavioral health system,” said Dr. Grant
Colfax, Director of Health. “The status quo for people experiencing homelessness, mental
illness and substance use disorder is not acceptable. Working together with the community—
as we learned from our experience with HIV—we will be relentless in finding solutions and
making sound investments that heal our patients and improve our city for everyone.”

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
support behavioral health chronic disease management. This will include increasing the
payment rate that Board and Care facilities receive and supporting the development of new
permanent supportive housing units. San Francisco has approximately 8,000 permanent
supportive housing units, more per capita than any other city in the country, with over 1,000
units in the pipeline to be built over the next few years. San Francisco also has over 300 new
units of master-leased housing that will be available in the next year.

“San Francisco has a history of not backing down when it comes to creating solutions to
improve the public’s health,” said Joe Hollendoner, CEO of the San Francisco AIDS
Foundation. “Through stakeholder engagement, community planning, targeted investments,
and structural interventions—the same approach that has made our city successful in
responding to the AIDS epidemic—UrgentCareSF has the opportunity to improve the quality
of life and health of countless people.”

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
been shown to keep people who struggle with mental health and substance use disorders
housed successfully. We know what types of services people need to thrive in the community;
we just need the resources to do it. I am pleased that the San Francisco Department of Public
Health has a plan to provide these crucial services.”

UrgentCareSF was designed based on public health data and a comprehensive assessment of
the City’s mental health system. Each element of the initiative is rooted in data analysis and
clinical expertise.

For more details on UrgentCareSF, visit http:/sfmayor.org/urgentcaresf.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT);
Delumo, Jenny (CPC)

Subject: CPC Calendars for October 17, 2019

Date: Friday, October 11, 2019 12:30:24 PM

Attachments: 20191017 Int RecPark.docx

20191017 JInt RecPark.pdf
20191017 cal.docx

20191017 cal.pdf

CPC Hearing Results 2019.docx
Advance Calendar - 20191017.xlIsx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for October 17, 2019.

Please note that we have a Joint with Rec/Park at 11:00 am in our chambers. If you are unable to attend, please
advise ASAP. We are down to five again, with Joel out.

Enjoy the weekend,

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
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Commission Chambers - Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689





Thursday, October 17, 2019

11:00 a.m.

Special Meeting



PLANNING COMMISSION: 	President: 	Myrna Melgar 

	Vice-President: 	Joel Koppel

	Commissioners		Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

			                              	Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



[bookmark: _Hlk21421927]COMMISSION:	President: 		Mark Buell

	Vice-President: 	Allan Low

Commissioners:	Kat Anderson, Gloria Bonilla, Tom Harrison,

Larry Mazzola, Eric McDonnell 



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin



Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422



Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26



Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.

Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





ROLL CALL:	

	

PLANNING 

COMMISSION:		President:	Myrna Melgar		Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

Commissioners:		Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



COMMISSION:	President: 		Mark Buell

	Vice-President: 	Allan Low

Commissioners:	Kat Anderson, Gloria Bonilla, Tom Harrison,

Larry Mazzola, Eric McDonnell 

	

A. SPECIAL CALENDAR



1.	2019-016927CWP	(P. RACE: (415) 575-9132)

[bookmark: _GoBack]DOWNTOWN PARK FUND ALLOCATION – TURK HYDE MINI PARK AND WILLIE “WOO WOO” WONG PARK RENOVATIONS – Consideration of Allocation of $550,000 from the Downtown Special Park Fund for the renovation of Turk Hyde Mini Park, located on the blocks bounded by Hyde Street and Turk Street Assessor’s Block and Lot 0336/003, as required by Section 412.5 of the Planning Code, discussion and possible action to approve an allocation of $550,000 in funds from the Downtown Park Special Fund. Consideration of Allocation of $600,000 from the Downtown Special Park Fund for the renovation of Willie “Woo Woo” Wong Park, located on the blocks bounded by Hang Ah Street, Pagoda Place, and Sacramento Street Assessor’s Block and Lot 0225/018, as required by Section 412.5 of the Planning Code, discussion and possible action to approve an allocation of $600,000 in funds from the Downtown Park Special Fund.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve



ADJOURNMENT

Notice of Special Joint Hearing & Calendar 		      Page 3 of 3
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City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Thursday, October 17,2019
11:00 a.m.
Special Meeting

PLANNING COMMISSION: President: Myrna Melgar
Vice-President: Joel Koppel
Commissioners Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson,

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards

COMMISSION: President: Mark Buell
Vice-President: Allan Low
Commissioners: Kat Anderson, Gloria Bonilla, Tom Harrison,

Larry Mazzola, Eric McDonnell

Commission Secretary:
Jonas P. lonin

Hearing Materials are available at:
Website: http://www.sfplanning.org
Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4t Floor, Suite 400
Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422

Commission Hearing Broadcasts:
Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org
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

http://www.sfgovtv.org/

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City
operations are open to the people's review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415)
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may
inspect or copy.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist

Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415)
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6,9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisién de Planificacién. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato
para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 1 #| & B &g i . BB e L ants Bl S WBhal BRI ER M, 55303 415-558-6309, (LR E 81T 2 AiAd
/D48 /INREE H B R

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: NoBecTka aHst Komuccum no nnaHNpoBaHUIO. 3a nomouybio nepesoavunka nnun 3a scrnomMoratesibHbIM CI1yXOBbIM
yCTpOVICTBOM Ha BpeMA CJ'IyLLIaHI/II7I o6pau.|,a|7|Ter no Homepy 415-558-6309. 3anp00b| JOJKHbI AenaTtbcsa MUHUMYM 3a 48 YacoB
00 Havyana cnywaHus.
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San Francisco Planning Commission Thursday, October 17,2019

ROLL CALL:
PLANNING
COMMISSION: President: Myrna Melgar

Vice-President: Joel Koppel

Commissioners: Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards

COMMISSION: President: Mark Buell

Vice-President: Allan Low

Commissioners: Kat Anderson, Gloria Bonilla, Tom Harrison,

Larry Mazzola, Eric McDonnell
A. SPECIAL CALENDAR

1. 2019-016927CWP (P. RACE: (415) 575-9132)
DOWNTOWN PARK FUND ALLOCATION — TURK HYDE MINI PARK AND WILLIE “WOO WOOQ"
WONG PARK RENOVATIONS - Consideration of Allocation of $550,000 from the Downtown
Special Park Fund for the renovation of Turk Hyde Mini Park, located on the blocks
bounded by Hyde Street and Turk Street Assessor’s Block and Lot 0336/003, as required by
Section 412.5 of the Planning Code, discussion and possible action to approve an
allocation of $550,000 in funds from the Downtown Park Special Fund. Consideration of
Allocation of $600,000 from the Downtown Special Park Fund for the renovation of Willie
“Woo Woo” Wong Park, located on the blocks bounded by Hang Ah Street, Pagoda Place,
and Sacramento Street Assessor’s Block and Lot 0225/018, as required by Section 412.5 of
the Planning Code, discussion and possible action to approve an allocation of $600,000 in
funds from the Downtown Park Special Fund.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

ADJOURNMENT

Notice of Special Joint Hearing & Calendar Page 30f 3
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		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...

		San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

		Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report l...
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Commission Chambers, Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689



Thursday, October 17, 2019

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Myrna Melgar, President

Joel Koppel, Vice President

Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

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

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Myrna Melgar		Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

		Commissioners:                	Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

			Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards





A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2018-016625DNX	(A. PERRY: (415) 575-9017)

50 POST STREET – through-lot on the north side of Post Street and the south side of Sutter Street between Kearny and Montgomery Streets; Lots 015 and 016 in Assessor’s Block 0292 (District 3) – Request for a Downtown Project Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 309 and 137, to modify the existing Privately-Owned Public Open Space (POPOS) and renovate the existing structure located within a C-3-O (Downtown – Office) Zoning District and 250-S Height and Bulk District. The project proposes a minor relocation and design modifications of the rooftop open space but does not propose any reduction in usable area. Additionally, the project proposes interior and exterior alterations to the Crocker Galleria that would reduce the amount of retail space from 45,833 square feet (sf) to 24,544 sf, add 12,780 sf of office space at the third floor, and create a new two-level stair and interior public seating area that helps enhance the connection to the modified rooftop open space. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on August 22, 2019)

[bookmark: _GoBack](Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)



2.	2019-004451CUA	(M. CHRISTENSEN: (415) 575-8742)

2075 MISSION STREET – on a through lot between Mission and Capp Streets; Lot 048 in Assessor’s Block 3570 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 754 for the establishment a Cannabis Retail Use measuring 3,590 square feet at the ground and mezzanine levels of an existing three-story commercial building. The proposal will involve interior tenant improvements with no expansion of the existing tenant space or building envelope. The project includes a request for authorization of on-site consumption, including smoking and vaporizing cannabis products. The site is located within the Mission Street NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District, a Mission Alcoholic Beverage Special Use District, and 40-X and 80-B Height and Bulk Districts.  This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on July 25, 2019)

Note: On July 25, 2019, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to October 17, 2019 by a vote of +5 -0 (Richards absent).

(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)



B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



3.	2019-006948CUA	(A. LINDSAY: (415) 575-9178)

650 JACKSON STREET – on north side of Jackson Street between Becker Street and Cooper Alley, Lot 008 of Assessor’s Block 0177 (District 3) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 811 and 812, for the existing limited restaurant use (d.b.a. Pot & Noodle) to operate as a restaurant with a Type-41 On-Sale Beer and Wine for Bona fide Public Eating Place license. This project was reviewed under the Community Business Priority Processing Program (CB3P). The subject property is located within the CVR (Chinatown-Visitor Retail), CRNC (Chinatown-Residential- Neighborhood Commercial), and 50-N Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



4.	2018-004545CRV	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

351 12TH STREET – between Folsom and Harrison Streets, Lot 055 in Assessor’s Block 3521 (District 6) – Request for Waivers from Development Standards pursuant to Planning Code Section 206.6 and California Government Code Section 65915 to pursue the State Density Bonus Law. The project includes the removal of an existing automobile parking lot to and new construction of a six-story residential building (measuring approximately 15,559 gross floor area) with 48 group housing rooms. The proposal includes a community room on the ground story and a roof deck. The Project Site is located within the Western SoMa Mixed Use-General (WMUG), Eastern Neighborhoods (Western SoMa) Area Plan, and 55-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Adopt Findings for Requested Waivers



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



5.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for October 3, 2019 – Joint with Health

· Draft Minutes for October 3, 2019 – Regular 



6.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.



D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



7.	Director’s Announcements



8.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



9.	2019-014525PCA	(D. SANCHEZ: (415) 575-9082)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS – Planning Code Amendment introduced by Supervisor Mandelman to modify maximum amounts of parking permitted in certain Neighborhood Commercial, Residential-Mixed, Community Commercial, and Mission Bay zoning districts, to require that above-grade parking in all districts be designed for conversion to other uses, and to update outdated references, clarify existing requirements, and improve the organization of the Code; amending the Environment Code to update a Planning Code cross-reference; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302. 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Modifications



10.	2019-014960PCA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

FULTON STREET GROCERY STORE SPECIAL USE DISTRICT [BF 190839] – Planning Code Amendment to allow a grocery store use that is a formula retail use in the Fulton Street Grocery Store Special Use District (“District”), on Fulton Street between Laguna and Octavia Streets, subject to conditional use authorization, and adding criteria for such authorization; clarify the definition of a grocery store use within the District; eliminate square footage requirements for commercial uses in the District other than a grocery store and for subsequent uses in a location previously approved for a grocery store; extend the time period for effectiveness of controls for the District to five years from the effective date of the Ordinance; and making environmental findings, findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1, and findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Modifications



11.	2016-013312GPA	(N. FOSTER: (415) 575-9167)

542-550 HOWARD STREET (TRANSBAY PARCEL F) MIXED-USE PROJECT – located on the north side of Howard Street between 1st and 2nd Streets; Assessor’s Block 3721, Lots 016,135, 136, and 138 (District 6) – General Plan Amendment Initiation to revise Figure 1 of the Transit Center District Subarea Plan and revise Maps 1 and 5 of the Downtown Area Plan in association with the Parcel F Mixed-Use Project (“Project”).  The Project would construct a 750-foot-tall (800 feet inclusive of rooftop mechanical features), 61-story, mixed-use tower with a total of approximately 947,000 gross square feet of floor area.  The Project would include 165 dwelling units, 189 hotel rooms, approximately 274,000 square feet of office use floor area, approximately 79,000 square feet of floor area devoted to shared amenity space, approximately 9,000 square feet of retail space, approximately 20,000 square feet of open space, four below-grade levels that would accommodate up to 183 vehicle parking spaces, and 177 Class 1 and 39 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces.  The Project also would construct a pedestrian bridge providing public access to Salesforce Park located on the roof of the Salesforce Transit Center.

Preliminary Recommendation: Initiate and Schedule a hearing on or after November 21, 2019



12.	2017-000565CWP	(A. NELSON: (415) 575-8723)

COMMUNITY STABILIZATION: POLICY AND PROGRAM INVENTORY AND PRIORITIES – Informational Presentation on the Community Stabilization initiative is a multi-agency effort to assess the City’s existing portfolio of tools, unify efforts into one comprehensive inventory, and identify priorities. The initiative seeks to mitigate the impacts of ongoing displacement and help vulnerable populations thrive and contribute to the City’s economy and culture. It enables decision-makers to make strategic choices and support interagency coordination to help stabilize our communities most impacted by displacement. 

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational 



13.	2018-014774CUA	(X. LIANG: (415) 575-9182)

360 SPEAR STREET – south side of Spear Street between Folsom Street and Harrison Street; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 3745 (District 6) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 827.21, to establish a new non-residential use greater than 25,000 square feet at the site, involving a change of use of a portion of the Internet Services Exchange (ISE) use and its accessory vehicular parking area to Laboratory Use, within a RH-DTR (Rincon Hill Downtown Residential District) Zoning District and 105-X Height and Bulk District. The project would result in approximately 51,000 square feet of Laboratory and 58,500 square feet of Internet Services Exchange (ISE) uses. No change is proposed to the existing 49,909 square feet of Office use. The building is also undergoing various tenant and streetscape improvements under separate permits. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



14.	2018-016955DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

[bookmark: _Hlk10474033]220 SAN JOSE AVENUE – near 24th Street; Lot 004 in Assessor’s Block 6513 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.1214.8349 for construction of a two-story, rear horizontal addition to an existing two-story one-family house within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications

(Continued from Regular hearing on August 22, 2019)



15.	2017-012939DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

2758 23RD STREET – near Hampshire Street; Lot 019 in Assessor’s Block 4152 (District 9) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2017.0928.9889, proposing excavation of a basement to create habitable space; a one-story vertical addition; a two-story horizontal rear addition; and façade alterations to an existing 1,372 sf.  two-story, two-family house within a RM-1 (Residential Mixed, Low-Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.
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

CHINESE: 1 #| & B &g i . BB e L anws B S WBhel BRI ER M, 55203 415-558-6309, (LR E 81T 2 A Ad
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

President: Myrna Melgar
Vice-President: Joel Koppel
Commissioners: Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson,

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards

A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE

The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or
to hear the item on this calendar.

1.

2018-016625DNX (A. PERRY: (415) 575-9017)
50 POST STREET - through-lot on the north side of Post Street and the south side of Sutter
Street between Kearny and Montgomery Streets; Lots 015 and 016 in Assessor’s Block 0292
(District 3) — Request for a Downtown Project Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code
Sections 309 and 137, to modify the existing Privately-Owned Public Open Space (POPOS)
and renovate the existing structure located within a C-3-O (Downtown - Office) Zoning
District and 250-S Height and Bulk District. The project proposes a minor relocation and
design modifications of the rooftop open space but does not propose any reduction in
usable area. Additionally, the project proposes interior and exterior alterations to the
Crocker Galleria that would reduce the amount of retail space from 45,833 square feet (sf)
to 24,544 sf, add 12,780 sf of office space at the third floor, and create a new two-level stair
and interior public seating area that helps enhance the connection to the modified rooftop
open space. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on August 22, 2019)

(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)

2019-004451CUA (M. CHRISTENSEN: (415) 575-8742)
2075 MISSION STREET — on a through lot between Mission and Capp Streets; Lot 048 in
Assessor’s Block 3570 (District 9) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to
Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 754 for the establishment a Cannabis Retail Use
measuring 3,590 square feet at the ground and mezzanine levels of an existing three-story
commercial building. The proposal will involve interior tenant improvements with no
expansion of the existing tenant space or building envelope. The project includes a request
for authorization of on-site consumption, including smoking and vaporizing cannabis
products. The site is located within the Mission Street NCT (Neighborhood Commercial
Transit) Zoning District, a Mission Alcoholic Beverage Special Use District, and 40-X and 80-
B Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for
the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on July 25,2019)

Note: On July 25, 2019, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to October
17,2019 by a vote of +5 -0 (Richards absent).

(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)
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B.

C

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission. There
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or
staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and
considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing

3.

2019-006948CUA (A. LINDSAY: (415) 575-9178)
650 JACKSON STREET - on north side of Jackson Street between Becker Street and Cooper
Alley, Lot 008 of Assessor's Block 0177 (District 3) — Request for a Conditional Use
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 811 and 812, for the existing
limited restaurant use (d.b.a. Pot & Noodle) to operate as a restaurant with a Type-41 On-
Sale Beer and Wine for Bona fide Public Eating Place license. This project was reviewed
under the Community Business Priority Processing Program (CB3P). The subject property is
located within the CVR (Chinatown-Visitor Retail), CRNC (Chinatown-Residential-
Neighborhood Commercial), and 50-N Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2018-004545CRV (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)
351 12TH STREET - between Folsom and Harrison Streets, Lot 055 in Assessor’s Block 3521
(District 6) — Request for Waivers from Development Standards pursuant to Planning Code
Section 206.6 and California Government Code Section 65915 to pursue the State Density
Bonus Law. The project includes the removal of an existing automobile parking lot to and
new construction of a six-story residential building (measuring approximately 15,559 gross
floor area) with 48 group housing rooms. The proposal includes a community room on the
ground story and a roof deck. The Project Site is located within the Western SoMa Mixed
Use-General (WMUG), Eastern Neighborhoods (Western SoMa) Area Plan, and 55-X Height
and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings for Requested Waivers

COMMISSION MATTERS

5.

Consideration of Adoption:
e Draft Minutes for October 3, 2019 — Joint with Health
e Draft Minutes for October 3, 2019 — Reqular

Commission Comments/Questions

¢ Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of
the Planning Commission.
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D.

DEPARTMENT MATTERS
7. Director's Announcements
8. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic

Preservation Commission
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the
item is reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment
may be moved to the end of the Agenda.

REGULAR CALENDAR

The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal. Please be advised that
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors.

9. 2019-014525PCA (D. SANCHEZ: (415) 575-9082)
PARKING REQUIREMENTS - Planning Code Amendment introduced by Supervisor
Mandelman to modify maximum amounts of parking permitted in certain Neighborhood
Commercial, Residential-Mixed, Community Commercial, and Mission Bay zoning districts,
to require that above-grade parking in all districts be designed for conversion to other
uses, and to update outdated references, clarify existing requirements, and improve the
organization of the Code; amending the Environment Code to update a Planning Code
cross-reference; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California
Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the
eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public
necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications

10. 2019-014960PCA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)
FULTON STREET GROCERY STORE SPECIAL USE DISTRICT [BF 190839] — Planning Code
Amendment to allow a grocery store use that is a formula retail use in the Fulton Street
Grocery Store Special Use District (“District”), on Fulton Street between Laguna and Octavia
Streets, subject to conditional use authorization, and adding criteria for such authorization;
clarify the definition of a grocery store use within the District; eliminate square footage
requirements for commercial uses in the District other than a grocery store and for
subsequent uses in a location previously approved for a grocery store; extend the time
period for effectiveness of controls for the District to five years from the effective date of
the Ordinance; and making environmental findings, findings of consistency with the
General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1, and findings
of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications
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11.

12.

13.

2016-013312GPA (N. FOSTER: (415) 575-9167)
542-550 HOWARD STREET (TRANSBAY PARCEL F) MIXED-USE PROJECT - located on the
north side of Howard Street between 1st and 2nd Streets; Assessor’s Block 3721, Lots
016,135, 136, and 138 (District 6) — General Plan Amendment Initiation to revise Figure 1
of the Transit Center District Subarea Plan and revise Maps 1 and 5 of the Downtown Area
Plan in association with the Parcel F Mixed-Use Project (“Project”). The Project would
construct a 750-foot-tall (800 feet inclusive of rooftop mechanical features), 61-story,
mixed-use tower with a total of approximately 947,000 gross square feet of floor area. The
Project would include 165 dwelling units, 189 hotel rooms, approximately 274,000 square
feet of office use floor area, approximately 79,000 square feet of floor area devoted to
shared amenity space, approximately 9,000 square feet of retail space, approximately
20,000 square feet of open space, four below-grade levels that would accommodate up to
183 vehicle parking spaces, and 177 Class 1 and 39 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The
Project also would construct a pedestrian bridge providing public access to Salesforce Park
located on the roof of the Salesforce Transit Center.

Preliminary Recommendation: Initiate and Schedule a hearing on or after November 21,2019

2017-000565CWP (A. NELSON: (415) 575-8723)
COMMUNITY STABILIZATION: POLICY AND PROGRAM INVENTORY AND PRIORITIES -
Informational Presentation on the Community Stabilization initiative is a multi-agency
effort to assess the City’s existing portfolio of tools, unify efforts into one comprehensive
inventory, and identify priorities. The initiative seeks to mitigate the impacts of ongoing
displacement and help vulnerable populations thrive and contribute to the City’s economy
and culture. It enables decision-makers to make strategic choices and support interagency
coordination to help stabilize our communities most impacted by displacement.
Preliminary Recommendation: None — Informational

2018-014774CUA (X. LIANG: (415) 575-9182)
360 SPEAR STREET - south side of Spear Street between Folsom Street and Harrison Street;
Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 3745 (District 6) — Request for a Conditional Use Authorization,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 827.21, to establish a new non-residential use
greater than 25,000 square feet at the site, involving a change of use of a portion of the
Internet Services Exchange (ISE) use and its accessory vehicular parking area to Laboratory
Use, within a RH-DTR (Rincon Hill Downtown Residential District) Zoning District and 105-X
Height and Bulk District. The project would result in approximately 51,000 square feet of
Laboratory and 58,500 square feet of Internet Services Exchange (ISE) uses. No change is
proposed to the existing 49,909 square feet of Office use. The building is also undergoing
various tenant and streetscape improvements under separate permits. This action
constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San
Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR

The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff;
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project. Please be
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advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.

14.

15.

ADJOURNMENT

2018-016955DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
220 SAN JOSE AVENUE — near 24th Street; Lot 004 in Assessor’s Block 6513 (District 8) —
Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.1214.8349 for
construction of a two-story, rear horizontal addition to an existing two-story one-family
house within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and
Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications
(Continued from Regular hearing on August 22, 2019)

2017-012939DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
2758 23RD STREET — near Hampshire Street; Lot 019 in Assessor’s Block 4152 (District 9) —
Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2017.0928.9889,
proposing excavation of a basement to create habitable space; a one-story vertical
addition; a two-story horizontal rear addition; and facade alterations to an existing 1,372
sf. two-story, two-family house within a RM-1 (Residential Mixed, Low-Density) Zoning
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for
the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code
Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications
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Hearing Procedures
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year

and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.
¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder

sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases (CU’s, PUD's, 309’s, etc...) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects,
engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers. The intent of the 10
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the
organized opposition. The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted. Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three
(3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened
by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or
continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,

expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4, A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

w
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Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

N T

The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under
Discretionary Review. A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.

Hearing Materials
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. All submission packages must be
delivered t01650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part
of the public record for any public hearing.

Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.

Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.

These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650
Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to
the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.

Appeals
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission

hearing.

Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body

Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals**
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit | CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Development

Building Permit Application (Discretionary | DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Review)

EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ(P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals
Large Project Authorization in Eastern | LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Neighborhoods

Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown | DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals
Residential Districts

Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors

* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission
hearing). Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision
letter.

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.
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For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244.
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.

Challenges
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the

adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4)
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.

CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section
31.16. This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project. Typically, an appeal must be filed
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to
CEQA. For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184. If the Department’s Environmental Review
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.

Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in
accordance with Government Code Section 66020. The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development
referencing the challenged fee or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.

The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.
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To:             Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:            Hearing Results

          

[bookmark: _GoBack]NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20544

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 0668

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



October 10, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-009211CUA

		5538 3rd Street

		Jardines

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20537

		2018-012603CND

		1046 14th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 26, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20538

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street Project

		Delumo

		Certified

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20539

		2018-002179CUA

		350 Masonic Avenue, 2120-2122 & 2130 Golden Gate Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20540

		2016-009538CUA

		905 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20541

		2018-016600CUA

		2241 Chestnut Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Moore absent)



		M-20542

		2018-016040CUA

		3419 Sacramento Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20543

		2018-002060CUA

		258 Noe Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore absent; Richards recused)



		

		2018-016284DRP

		1299 Sanchez Street

		Pantoja

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 14, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)







October 3, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2012.0403W

		California Pacific Medical Center (CPMC) Annual Compliance Statement

		PURL

		Reviewed and Commented

		







October 3, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-014348PCA

		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable and Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities

		Merlone

		Continued to November 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2019-001694CUA

		1500 Mission Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to November 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2019-006951CUA

		1401 19th Avenue

		Campbell

		Continued to December 5, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2018-004614DRP

		16 Seacliff Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-005500CUA

		2934 Cesar Chavez Street

		Christensen

		Continued to November 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2019-012253DRP

		463 Castro Street

		Washington

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2018-009175DRP

		3610 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20529

		2019-000362CUA

		1501C Sloat Boulevard

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20530

		2019-005402CUA

		50 Beale Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20531

		2018-013963CUA

		855 Geary Street

		Tran

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20532

		2019-004164CUA

		1056-1062 Sanchez Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20533

		2019-005201CUA

		298 Munich Street

		Fahey

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 12, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 19, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2013.1535CUA

		450-474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		None - Informational

		



		

		2019-005575IMP

		555 Post Street

		Tran

		Closed the Public Hearing

		



		M-20534

		2014.0334SHD

		262 7th Street

		Samonsky

		Adopted Findings

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20535

		2014.0334ENX

		262 7th Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions, with material palette on sheet A.05.

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20536

		2019-014433CUA

		49 Duboce Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		DRA-0667

		2019-013111DRP

		240 Chenery Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved without property line windows and opaque treatment for the third window.

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Moore absent)







September 26, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Racial & Social Equity Training

		Flores

		None - Informational

		







September 19, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-002060CUA

		258 Noe Street

		Horn

		Continued to October 10, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-002545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-002545DRP-03

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20520

		2019-007313CND

		31-37 Camp Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-0665

		2018-013320DRP

		1520 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 5, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20521

		2019-003627PCA

		South of Market Planning Community Advisory Committee

		Snyder

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20522

		2019-011975PCA

		Jobs Housing Linkage Fee

		Sanchez

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-003559ENV

		3700 California Street

		Poling

		Received public comment

		



		

		2014.0926DNX

		1270 Mission Street

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20523

		2017-002136CUA

		340 Townsend Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a three year update memo.

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		M-20524

		2017-000263CUA

		20 - 22 Church Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended requiring a one-foot setback on the top floor.

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-000263VAR

		20 - 22 Church Street

		Young

		ZA Closed PC and took the matter under advisement.

		



		M-20525

		2016-001794SHD

		95 Hawthorne Street

		Foster

		Adopted Findings

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		M-20526

		2016-001794DNX

		95 Hawthorne Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		After a Motion of Intent to Disapprove and Continue to October 10th failed +2 -2 (Fung, Melgar against) and  a motion to Continue to November 14th failed +2 -2 (Richards, Koppel against)and no other motion was made; Disapproved.

		



		

		2018-002602VAR

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		ZA Closed PC and took the matter under advisement.

		



		M-20527

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Alexander

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Alexander

		ZA Closed PC and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20528

		2019-004691CUA

		1347 27th Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-009203DRP-02

		2880 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0666

		2018-012718DRP

		1980 Eddy Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions, requiring the rear shed roof be modified to a flat roof, providing nine-feet clear.

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)







September 12, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-006825CUA

		367 Hamilton Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to November 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards, Melgar absent)



		M-20517

		2019-005613CUA

		382 21st Avenue

		Phung

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 29, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards, Melgar absent)



		M-20518

		2016-004403CUA

		2222 Broadway

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		M-20519

		2018-011446CUA

		399 Fremont Street

		 Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0662

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions:

1. Eliminating the ADU and incorporating the square footage into the lower unit.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Richards, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0663

		2018-006557DRP-02

		20 Inverness Drive

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0664

		2018-001940DRP-02

		33 Capra Way

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions:

1. Reduce the roof deck; and

2. Encourage removal the stair penthouse.

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-007883ENV

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Poling

		Received public comment

		







September 5, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-008431DRP

		2220 Turk Boulevard

		Phung

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-008412DRP

		2230 Turk Boulevard

		Phung

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-013006DRP

		550 10th Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-013006VAR

		550 10th Avenue

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to September 25, 2019

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 22, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 22, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-010192CWP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		None - Informational

		



		R-20511

		2017-011878GPA

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after October 10, 2019

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		DRA-0660

		2018-013317DRP

		333 Camino Del Mar

		Winslow

		Did NOT Take DR and Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0661

		2017-013309DRP-04

		1 Winter Place

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20512

		2015-014028ENV

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Zushi

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20513

		2015-014028ENV

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Adopted Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

		+6 -1 (Richards against)



		R-20514

		2015-014028PCAMAP

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20515

		2015-014028DVA

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-20516

		2015-014028CUA

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0







August 29, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Continued to September 12, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-014849CUA

		220 Post Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2019-001568CUA

		101 Bayshore Boulevard

		Liang

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Acting ZA Continued to September 19, 2019

		



		

		2019-000297DRP

		1608-1610 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		M-20505

		2019-006116CUA

		2621 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		M-20506

		2019-014314CUA

		49 Hopkins Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Limit the GSF to 3280 sq.ft.;

2. Eliminate the roofdeck; and

3. Provide an ADU with a minimum of 1,000 sq. ft. and two bedrooms.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20507

		2019-014759PCA

		Allowing Long Term Parking of and Overnight Camping in Vehicles and Ancillary Uses at 2340 San Jose Avenue (Board File No.190812)

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20508

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions and modification, eliminating the fourth floor.

		+4 -2 (Hillis, Richards against, Johnson absent) 



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		

		2015-000878DNXCUAOFA

		300 Grant Avenue

		Alexander

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-000940ENV, 

2017-008051ENV, 

2016-014802ENV	

		The Hub Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, and Hub Housing Sustainability District

		White

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20509

		2019-000268CUA

		121 Gates Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2008.0023CUA

		461 29th Street

		Townes

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 7, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued September 19, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602VAR

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		ZA Continued to September 19, 2019

		



		M-20510

		2015-006356CUA

		336 Pierce Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-006356VAR

		336 Pierce Street

		Dito

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued October 24, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+4 -2 (Fung, Hillis against, Johnson absent) 



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to October 24, 2019

		



		

		2018-011962DRP

		869 Alvarado Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued November 14, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-0659

		2018-002777DRP

		4363 26th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications, eliminating the fourth floor.

		+4 -2 (Hillis, Koppel against, Johnson absent) 







August 22, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a motion not to disclose

		+7 -0







August 22, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Acting ZA Continued to August 29, 2019

		



		

		2017-003545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to October 17, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-001592CUA

		1190 Gough Street

		Dito

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20499

		2018-011004CUA

		146 Geary Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20500

		2018-017311CUA

		5420 Mission Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20501

		2017-013654CUA

		4720 Geary Boulevard

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 18, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 25, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 25, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2007.0903PHA

		Treasure Island Subphase 1C: C2.1 & C2.4

		Alexander

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Executive Directive on Housing (17-02) Report

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-016955DRP

		220 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to October 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 10, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 10, 2019

		+7 -0



		M-20502

		2017-002951ENX

		755 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20503

		2014-003160CUA

		3314 Cesar Chavez Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20504

		2019-012580CUA

		61 Cambon Drive

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		

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

		







July 25, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to NOT Disclose

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)







July 25, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-011975PCA

		Jobs Housing Linkage Fee

		Sanchez

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20490

		2018-013387CUA

		88 Perry Street

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20491

		2019-001013CUA

		375 32nd Avenue/3132 Clement Avenue

		Jonckheer

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended, directing the Project Sponsor to continue working with the community on security mitigation measures

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 11, 2019

		Ionin

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Koppel absent)



		

		

		SB 35 Projects

		Conner

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-012970IMP

		Forty-Three (43) Properties Owned or Leased by the Academy of Art University (AAU) Located in the City and County of San Francisco

		Perry

		Closed the Public Hearing

		



		

		2013.0208PHA

		Mission Rock Phase 1 (aka Seawall Lot 337 and Pier 48)

		Snyder, Christensen 

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20492

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended prohibiting corporate housing

		+5 -1 (Melgar against; Hillis absent)



		M-20493

		2015-012490ENX

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions with the necessary corrections

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20494

		2015-012490OFA

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions with the necessary corrections

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2015-012490VAR

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20495

		2014.1573CUA

		2050 Van Ness Avenue & 1675 Pacific Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended prohibiting corporate housing.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2014.1573VAR

		2050 Van Ness Avenue & 1675 Pacific Avenue

		May

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20496

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Sucre

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent) 



		M-20497

		2018-013122CUA

		2966 24th Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2019-004451CUA

		2075 Mission Street

		Christensen

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to October 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20498

		2018-010465CUA

		349 3rd Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-0656

		2018-009355DRP

		63 Laussat Street

		May

		Took DR and Approved as revised and noting on the plans the area of the roof to be unoccupied.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-0657

		2017-000987DRP-02

		25 17th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised reverting the property to its previous condition

		+5 -1 (Fung against, Hillis absent) 



		DRA-0658

		2017-000987DRP-04

		27 17th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised reverting the property to its previous condition

		+5 -1 (Fung against, Hillis absent)







July 18, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2017-013309DRP-04

		1 Winter Place

		Winslow

		Continued to September 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		R-20482

		2019-011895PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Units in New Construction [BF 190590]

		Flores

		Approved (with K. Moore comments)

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2018-003800CWP

		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines

		Francis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20483

		2017-000663PCAMAP

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20484

		2017-000663ENX

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20485

		2017-000663OFA

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20486

		2017-000663DVA

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20487

		2019-003787CUA

		3301 Fillmore Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20488

		2017-004654CUA

		1901 Fillmore (aka 1913 Fillmore) Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		M-20489

		2015-015199CUA

		562 28th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+4 -2 (Johnson, Richards against; Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		ZA After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		Adopted a Motion of Intent to Take DR and approve with two flats and a third ground floor unit, and Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Fung absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		ZA After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 29, 2019

		



		

		2018-007676DRP

		3902 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0655

		2017-013308DRM

		1 La Avanzada Street

		Lindsay

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Fung absent)







July 11, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Continued to August 22, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Acting ZA Continued to August 22, 2019

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



		

		2017-002545DRP

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

		Continued to October 3, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street

		Jardines

		Continued to July 25, 2019

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

		Acting ZA Continued to July 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to October 3, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-013582DRP

		215 Montana Street

		Hicks

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20478

		2017-001427CUA

		2187 Market Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 20, 2019 – Joint With BIC

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 20, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 27, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		M-20479

		2019-004597CUA

		1509-1511 Sloat Boulevard

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-000940CWP

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20480

		2015-011274ENV

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		M-20481

		2015-011274CUA

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-011274VAR

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		







June 27, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-011962DRP

		869 Alvarado Street

		Chandler

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

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



		M-20473

		2018-014378CUA

		733 Washington Street

		Phung

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20474

		2018-008277CUA

		952 Clement Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-008277VAR

		952 Clement Street

		Weissglass

		Acting ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 13, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2013.1753CXV

		1066 Market Street

		Adina

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Senate Bill 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		After hearing and closing public comment and a Motion to Approve with Conditions failed +3 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Johnson, Melgar absent); Continued to July 11, 2019

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20475

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Limiting the floor to ceiling height of the living room to 12’6”; and 

2. Increasing the setback of the living room portion from 7’6” to 10’.

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20476

		2015-005763CUA

		247 17th Avenue

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Provide five foot setbacks on the roof deck;

2. Provide an ADU behind the garage with direct access to the street; and

3. Eliminate the interior stair between ground and second level.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20477

		2016-006164CUA

		2478 Geary Boulevard

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended, to provide a six foot opaque privacy screen.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)







June 20, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017028PCA

		Controls on Residential Demolition, Merger, Conversion, and Alterations

		Butkus

		Reviewed and Commented

		







June 20, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 6, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		R-20469

		2019-006421PCA

		Temporary Uses: Intermittent Activities [BF 190459]

		Flores

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2000.0875CWP

		Downtown Plan Monitoring Report 2018

		Harris

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20470

		2014-000203ENX

		655 04th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved as amended by Staff and Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20471

		2014-000203CUA

		655 04th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved as amended by Staff and Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20472

		2016-015814CUA

		5400 Geary Boulevard

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Johnson against; Hillis, Richards absent)



		DRA-0654

		2018-016871DRP

		3600 Scott Street

		Wilborn

		Did NOT Take DR

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)







June 13, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20463

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Oceanview Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0



		M-20464

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street and 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Fung, Moore against)



		

		2017-000663PRJ

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20465

		2019-006418PCA

		North of Market Affordable Housing Fees and Citywide Affordable Housing Fund

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		ConnectSF

		Chan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-016313CWP

		Public Land for Housing and Balboa Reservoir

		Hong

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20466

		2018-009861CUA

		1633 Fillmore Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20467

		2019-004216CUA

		3989 17th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Koppel absent)



		M-20468

		2019-001048CUA

		1398 California Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Hillis, Koppel absent)







June 6, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2019-000183CUA

		435-441 Jackson Street

		Adina

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to July 18, 2019

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 16, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 16, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 23, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2011.1356

		Affordable Housing in Central SoMa

		Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-004406CRV

		Office Development Annual Limit

		Rahaim

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20457

		2015-010013IKA

		30 Otis Street

		Langlois

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20458

		2015-015203DNX-02

		135 Hyde Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20459

		2012.0640ENX

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and adding an 18 month update report

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20460

		2012.0640B

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and adding an 18 month update report

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		R-20461

		2012.0640PRJ

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Directed the Planning Director to enter into Agreement

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20462

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		ZA after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		







May 23, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Continued to June 6, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Acting ZA Continued to June 6, 2019

		



		

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

		Continued to June 13, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 9, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		R-20453

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses at 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Approved with Modification, permitting office uses to participate in the legitimization program for up to three years.

		+7 -0



		

		2015-005255CWP

		Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Consequences Assessment

		Varat

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2015-012490ENXOFA

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2014-000203ENX

		655 4th Street

		Hoagland

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20454

		2019-000189CUA

		1860 9th Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended, for Sponsor to continue working with Staff in order to strengthen the ADU entrance.

		+7 -0



		M-20455

		2019-000186CUA

		828 Innes Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Restricting a Type 8 license; and

2. Informational update presentation, one year from operation.

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		M-20456

		2019-000697CUA

		1370 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2016-009503DRP

		149 Mangels Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0653

		2018-008362DRP

		237 Cortland Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -1 (Moore against)







May 16, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to NOT Disclose

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)







May 16, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street And 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20451

		2018-016996CUA

		517 Clement Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 2, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2015-000937CWP

		Civic Center Public Realm Plan

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-003559PRJ

		3700 California Street

		May

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20452

		2018-014905CUA

		1711 Haight Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)







May 9, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses at 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-013230CUA

		2215 Quesada Avenue

		Christensen

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Durandet

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 25, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2019-006143CWP

		Youth Engagement in Planning

		Exline

		None - Informational

		



		R-20449

		2017-016416PCA

		Code Reorg. Phase 3: Chinatown [Board File TBD]

		Starr

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20450

		2019-003581PCA

		Upper Market NCT and NCT-3 Zoning Districts (Board File No. 190248)

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications including a recommendation that the Board consider:

1. Including Health Services within the definition of Formula Retail; and 

2. Eliminating the Philanthropic Administrative Services use category.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2011.1356

		Central SoMa Open Space

		Small

		None - Informational

		



		

		2012.0640

		598 Brannan Street

		Sucre

		None - Informational

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to July 18, 2019

		



		DRA-0652

		2017-013328DRP-02

		2758 Filbert Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+4 -1 (Moore against, Johnson, Richards absent)







May 2, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2017-001270CUA

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-001270VAR

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		

		2018-007366CUA

		838 Grant Avenue

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



		M-20441

		2019-001017CUA

		1700 Irving Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20442

		2019-003637CUA

		2200 Market Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		CASA

		Pappas

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20443

		2016-011011GPR

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20444

		2015-016326CUA

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20445

		2018-012709CUA

		990 Pacific Avenue

		Lindsay

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused, Melgar absent)



		M-20446

		2018-013395CUA

		10 29th Street

		Lindsay

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards recused; Moore, Melgar absent)



		M-20447

		2017-000280CUA

		915 North Point Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-000280VAR

		915 North Point Street

		Perry

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20448

		2018-015127CUA

		4526 Third Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)







April 25, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		

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

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20433

		2018-017254CUA

		2750 Jackson Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2016-000240DRP

		1322 Wawona Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 11, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20434

		2018-011653PCA

		Temporary Uses on Development Sites

		Butkus

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2015-010192CWP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		None - Informational

		



		R-20435

		2016-007303PCA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20436

		2016-007303DNX

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20437

		2016-007303CUA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20438

		2015-015789ENX

		828 Brannan Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to July 11, 2019

		



		M-20439

		2018-010426CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20440

		2017-012697CUA

		3944a Geary Boulevard

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		DRA-0651

		2018-003223DRP

		15 El Sereno Court

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0







April 18, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses At 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009224CUA

		601 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0



		

		2017-013841DRP

		295 Coso Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		

		



		M-20428

		2019-000475CND

		863 Haight Street

		Wilborn

		Approved 

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 4, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		1996.0013CWP

		2018 Housing Inventory Report

		Ambati

		None – Informational 

		



		M-20429

		2018-006127CUA

		201 19th Avenue

		Weissglass

		Disapproved

		+6 -0



		M-20430

		2018-016549CUA

		40 West Portal Avenue

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20431

		2018-012416CUA

		1345 Underwood Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20432

		2018-013332CUA

		1555 Yosemite Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0







April 11, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Continued to April 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003223DRP

		15 El Sereno Court

		Winslow

		Continued to April 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2015-016326GPR

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2015-016326CUA

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-016667CUA

		3307 Sacramento Street

		Ganetsos

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20417

		2018-017057CUA

		1226 9th Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 7, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20418

		2019-003571MAP

		915 Cayuga Avenue Project Zoning Map Amendments [BF 190251]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		R-20419

		2016-013850PCAMAP

		915 Cayuga Avenue Project Special Use District [BF 190250]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20420

		2016-013850DVA

		915 Cayuga Avenue Development Agreement [BF 190249]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20421

		2016-013850CUA

		915 Cayuga Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		R-20422

		2019-001604PCA

		Building Standards

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff Modifications and direction to Staff to pursue similar controls for RM districts.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		R-20423

		2013.4117CWP

		San Francisco Biodiversity Resolution

		Fisher

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20424

		2017-016416PCA

		Code Reorganization Phase 3: Chinatown

		Starr

		Initiated and Scheduled a Hearing on or after May 9, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-013156SRV

		Citywide Cultural Resources Survey

		LaValley

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to May 23, 2019 with direction from the Commission

		+6 -0



		M-20425

		2018-004711DNX

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20426

		2018-004711CUA

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20427

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include an update memo in one year.

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		DRA-0649

		2018-007006DRP

		2000 Grove Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0



		DRA-0650

		2017-010147DRP

		1633 Cabrillo Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and approved per private agreement

		+6 -0







April 4, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Acting ZA Continued to May 2, 2019

		



		

		2017-015590DRP

		4547 20th Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20409

		2019-000325CUA

		3600 Taraval Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 14, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20410

		2018-000532CUA

		468 Valley Street

		Ajello-Hoagland

		After being pulled off of Consent Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street

		Thomas

		Received Public Comment

		



		

		2019-004406CRV

		Office Development Annual Limit Program Update

		Teague; Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to May 23, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and Closing public comment; ZA Continued to May 23, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to June 6, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20411

		2018-013413CUA

		1001 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2018-013230CUA

		2215 Quesada

		Christensen

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20412

		2018-015071CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. No Amplified music outdoors;

2. Outdoor activities limited to 10 pm daily;

3. Outdoor activities with amplified music limited to 12 am on NYE, Castro Street Fair, Folsom Street Fair, Pride Week, and Halloween, only; and 

4. Provide a Community Liaison.

		+6 -0



		M-20413

		2018-017008CUA

		3512 16th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused)



		M-20414

		2017-010011CUA

		840 Folsom Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20415

		2018-003066CUA

		1233 Connecticut

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20416

		2018-003916CUA

		1326 11th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel absent)



		[bookmark: _Hlk5010645]DRA-0647

		2017-013473DRP

		115 Belgrave Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised per the private agreement

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel absent)



		DRA-0648

		2018-001541DRP

		2963 22nd Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+4 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)







March 14, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-007303PCA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-007303DNXCUA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-006127CUA

		201 19th Avenue

		Weissglass

		Continued to March 21, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-004711DNXCUA

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Continued to April 11, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-009503DRP

		149 Mangels Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.0655CUA

		1513A-F York Street

		Sucre

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.0655VAR

		1513A-F York Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		M-20402

		2018-003264CUA

		2498 Lombard Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 28, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		

		Senate Bill 50: Planning and Zoning: Housing Development: Equitable Communities Incentive (2019)

		Ikezoe

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20405

		2018-003593CUA

		906 Broadway

		Tran

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20406

		2018-007204CUA

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include fire access to the roof be replaced by a shipladder.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-007204VAR

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20407

		2018-007460CUA

		1226 10th Avenue

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20408

		2018-012687CUA

		657 - 667 Mission Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0645

		2017-014420DRP

		2552 Baker Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a three-foot setback of the third-floor terrace railing.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0646

		2016-006123DRP-02

		279 Bella Vista Way

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a condition to continue working with Staff on façade modifications.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)







March 7, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2015-015129DRP

		1523 Franklin Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20397

		2018-012727CUA

		3327-3380 19th Street

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20398

		2018-000813CUA

		939 Ellis Street

		Jimenez

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000813VAR

		939 Ellis Street

		Jimenez

		Assistant ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20399

		2016-005805CUA

		430 Broadway

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20400

		2017-008875CUA

		920 North Point Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 21, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20401

		2019-000048PCA

		Small Business Permit Streamlining

		Butkus

		Approved with modification, requiring CU for outdoor bar uses.

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 11, 2019.

		+6 -0



		

		2018-010552PCA

		Employee Cafeterias Within Office Space

		Sanchez

		Disapproved

		+3 -3 (Hillis, Johnson, Koppel against)



		R-20403

		2018-016401PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Units in New Construction

		Flores

		Approved with Staff modifications, except No. 2

		+5 -1 (Richards against)



		M-20404

		2018-007253CUA

		3356-3360 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 9, 2019.

		+6 -0



		DRA-0643

		2016-005189DRP

		216 Head Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the lightwell be extended to accommodate the bedroom and bathroom windows.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0644

		2018-001681DRP

		120 Varennes Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+6 -0







February 28, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-007204CUA

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Continued to March 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007204VAR

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Acting ZA Continued to March 14, 2019

		



		

		2019-000048PCA

		Small Business Permit Streamlining

		Butkus

		Continued to March 7, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 14, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20394

		2019-000931PCA

		Homeless Shelters in PDR and SALI Districts

		Conner

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20395

		2018-003324CUA

		2779 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Setback roof decks five feet from east and west property lines; and

2. Comply with the Planning Code.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Johnson absent)



		

		2018-003324VAR

		2779 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2009.3461CPW

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		None - Informational

		



		M-20396

		2017-016520CUA

		828 Arkansas Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Provide a matching lightwell in length; and

2. Provide a roof deck compliant with the Roof Deck Policy.

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)







February 21, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-003593CUA

		906 Broadway

		Tran

		Continued to March 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003916CUA

		1326 11th Avenue

		Dito

		Continued to April 4, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2017-009224CUA

		601 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Continued to April 18, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 7, 2019

		Silva

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20389

		2018-016400PCA

		Arts Activities and Nighttime Entertainment Uses in Historic Buildings

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20390

		2019-000592PCA

		C-3 Retail to Office Conversion [Board File No. 190030, Previously Board File No. 180916]

		Butkus

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street

		Perry

		None - Informational

		



		M-20391

		2016-011101CTZ

		Great Highway

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20392

		2016-015997CUA

		820 Post Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions as amended, to work with staff on wall coloring/treatment.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20393

		2017-009635CUA

		432 Cortland Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

3. Work with staff on façade design;

4. Add Construction Impact Mitigation Plan; and

5. Remove roof deck & stair penthouse.

		+6 -1 (Melgar against)



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Sucre

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 21, 2019.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-012929DRP

		830 Olmstead Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-004967DRP

		929 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0642

		2014-002435DRP

		95 Saint Germain Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Proposed

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







February 14, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Acting ZA Continued to April 4, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to April 4, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2017-005279VAR

		448 Valley Street

		Horn

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20380

		2018-013462CUA

		3995 Alemany Boulevard

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 24, 2019 – Joint with HPC

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 24, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 31, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20381

		2018-015439CUA

		205 Hugo Street

		Weissglass

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Limiting hours of operation to 9 pm; and 

2. Restricting amplified music outdoors.

		+7 -0



		

R-20382

		2018-015471CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Johnson absent)



		

		

		Executive Directive on Housing (17-02) Report

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

R-20383

		2019-001351CRV

		Nonprofit Organizations’ First-Right-To-Purchase Multi-Family Residential Buildings [BF 181212]

		Ikezoe

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended, encouraging the pursuit of incentives.

		+6 -0 (Fong absent)



		

R-20384

		2018-016562PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Fee for State Density Bonus Projects [Bf 181154]

		Bintliff

		Disapproved

		+6 -0 (Fong absent)



		M-20385

		2016-007303ENV

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Pollak

		Upheld the PMND

		+7 -0



		M-20386

		2018-007049CUA

		3378 Sacramento Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Hillis absent)



		M-20387

		2017-005279CUA

		448 Valley Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20388

		2018-014721CUA

		1685 Haight Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-639

		2016-005555DRP-02

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+4 -1 (Fong against; Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2016-005555VAR

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement.

		



		DRA-640

		2016-009554DRP

		27 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and approved with conditions:

1. Provide an open to the sky  privacy screen for acoustic mitigation; and

2. Continue working with staff on a more defined entry to the garden unit.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-641

		2017-014666DRP

		743 Vermont Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)







February 7, 2019 Special Off-Site Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1543

		1979 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 31, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-009635CUA

		432 Cortland Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

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



		

		2018-016494PCA

		Central SoMa “Community Good Jobs Employment Plan”

		Chen

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-010630DRP

		1621 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Continued to March 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-002409DRP

		1973 Broadway

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20376

		2018-012850CND

		3132-3140 Scott Street

		Wilborn

		Approved

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		M-20377

		2018-009587CUA

		3535 California Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 17, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-016562PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Fee for State Density Bonus Projects [BF 181154]

		Bintliff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to February 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Housing Strategies and Plans

		Chion

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20378

		2018-007259CUA

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-007259VAR

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20379

		2016-010079CUA

		3620 Buchanan Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-010079VAR

		3620 Buchanan Street

		Ajello

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-638

		2015-008813DRP

		2337 Taraval Street

		Horn

		Took DR and approved with modifications:

1. Eliminating the roof deck; and

2. Providing a clear breezeway for the rear unit.

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel, Melgar absent)







January 24, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Communication Between Commissions

		

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Retained Elements Policy

		

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 24, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20373

		2018-011935CUA

		2505 Third Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20374

		2018-010700CUA

		4018 24th Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 10, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2018-015471CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Racial & Social Equity Initiative

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20375

		2018-008877CUA

		1519 Polk Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-637

		2015-011216DRP

		277 Judson Avenue

		Kwiatkowska

		Took DR and reduced the depth of the top floor seven feet (allowing a deck to replace the proposed addition) and staff recommended modifications.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)



		

		2016-005189DRP

		216 Head Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 7, 2018 with direction for additional information.

		+5 -0 (Fong, Koppel absent)



		

		2017-013175DRP

		1979 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		







January 17, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-005555DRP-02

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2016-005555VAR

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Acting ZA  Continued to February 14, 2019

		



		

		2016-015997CUA

		820 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012092DRP

		299 Edgewood Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Continued to January 31, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2017-002545DRP

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Melgar – President;

Koppel - Vice

		+7 -0



		R-20369

		2018-015443MAP

		170 Valencia Street [Board File No. 181045]

		Butkus

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20370

R-20371

		2018-007888CWP

		Polk / Pacific Special Area Design Guidelines

		Winslow

		Adopted Guidelines and Approved Amendment

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Economic Trends and Housing Pipeline

		Ojeda

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-004568PRJ

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		None - Informational

		



		M-20372

		2018-006212CUA

		145 Laurel Street

		Lindsay

		Approved Staff’s recommended alternative with Conditions as Amended

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







January 10, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-007259CUA

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Continued to January 31, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007259VAR

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Acting ZA Continued to January 31, 2019

		



		

		2017-001270CUA

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-001270VAR

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued to February 14, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Perry

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-008351DRP-06

		380 Holladay Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007888CWP

		Polk / Pacific Special Area Design Guidelines

		Winslow

		Continued to January 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-012929DRP

		830 Olmstead Street

		Winslow

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20364

		2018-012050CUA

		927 Irving Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 13, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 20, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20365

		2016-007467CUA

		360 West Portal Avenue Suite A

		Hicks

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-017238CWP

		Tall Buildings Safety Strategy

		Small

		None - Informational

		



		M-20366

		2017-007943CUA

		3848 24th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused; Johnson absent)



		M-20367

		2018-009178CUA

		2909 Webster Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20368

		2018-001936CUA

		799 Van Ness Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-636

		2018-001609DRP

		144 Peralta Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Proposed

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)







image1.jpeg








Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				October 10, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Moore - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St. 				fr: 4/11; 5/23; 6/27		Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels		to: 10/24

		2016-010589ENXOFA		2300 Harrison Street 				fr: 4/25; 5/9; 6/6; 7/18; 8/22		Hoagland

						6-story vertical addition, office/24 unit mixed use building, including State Density Bonus		to: 11/14

		2018-012603CND		1046 14th Street				CONSENT		Pantoja

						6-unit Condo Conversion

		2016-009211CUA		5538 3rd Street 				CONSENT		Jardines

						vertical addition to expand an existing residential use within the M-1 

		2014.0012E  		Better Market Street Project 						Delumo

						Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report

		2018-002179CUA		350 Masonic Ave 						May

						San Francisco Day School 

		2016-009538CUA 		905 Folsom Street						Jardines

						Demo (e) auto service station, NC 8-story residential bldg

		2018-016600CUA		2241 Chestnut Street						Wilborn

						CUA to for an Outdoor Activity Area

		2018-016040CUA		3419 Sacramento Street						Young

						legalize an existing Professional Office Use  (d.b.a. Kendall Wilkinson Design) 

		2018-002060CUA		258 Noe Street 				fr: 9/19		Horn

						Retail Cannabis

		2018-016284DRP		1299 SANCHEZ ST						Washington

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 17, 2019 - Joint w/RP

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-005200CUAENX		1025 Howard Street						Samonsky

						Shadow

				October 17, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Koppel - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-016625DNX		50 Post Street 				fr: 6/6; 7/11; 8/22		Perry

						Crocker Galleria		to: 12/5

		2019-004451CUA		2075 Mission Street				fr: 7/25		Christensen

						cosmetic school to Cannabis Retail		to: 12/5

		2019-006948CUA		650 Jackson Street 				CONSENT		Lindsay

						Bona fide Public Eating Place license

		2019-014525PCA		Parking Requirements						Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-014960PCA		Fulton Street Grocery Store SUD						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2016-013312GPA		542-550 Howard Street						Foster

						General Plan Amendment (Initiation-only)

		2017-000565CWP		Community Stabilization: Policy and Program Inventory and Priorities						Nelson

						Informational

		2018-004545PRJ		351 12th Street						Flores

						State Density Bonus

		2018-014774CUA		360 Spear Street 						Liang

						Internet Service Exchange (ISE) to Laboratory use.   

		2018-016955DRP		220 SAN JOSE				fr: 8/22		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-012939DRP		2758 23RD ST.						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 24, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Melgar - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-001568CUA		101 Bay Shore Boulevard 				fr: 8/29		Liang

						Convenience store (d.b.a. Extra Mile) that sells beer and wine in an existing gas station.  		Withdrawn

		2018-016814CUA		2575 Mission St 				to: Indefinite		Liang

						change of use from Bar to Restaurant use

		2018-010555CUA		2412 Clay Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Macro wireless facilities

		2019-017266PCA		Medical Cannabis Dispensary Permits and Temporary Cannabis Business Permits						Starr

						One-Year Extension 

		2014.1063DNX		633 Folsom Street 						Tran

						Public Art Informational

		2016-006860AHBENVIKA		65 Ocean Av						Flores

						HOME-SF, PMND, and In-Kind Agreement

				Prop M						Teague

						Office Allocation

				Water Supply 						Kern

						Informational

		2017-000655CUA 		458 Grove St						Tran

						Informational

		2018-011004CUA		146 Geary St						Tran

						change of use from retail to office at upper floors 

		2017-014849CUA		220 Post Street				fr: 8/29		Adina

						Change of Use from Retail to Office on Floors 3-5

		2018-013158CUA		2956 24th Street						Jardines

						limited restaurant to full-service restaurant 

		2018-012392CUA		37 Saturn Street						Horn

						Corona Heights SUD

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St. 				fr: 4/11; 5/23; 6/27; 10/10		Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels

		2018-011717CUA 		1369 Sanchez Street						Cisneros

						Demo per PC Section 317

		2019-012253DRP		463 CASTRO ST				fr: 10/3		Campbell

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-009551DRPVAR		3847-3849 18TH ST				fr: 5/9; 7/18; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 31, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				November 7, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Johnson - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

				 		Initiation

		2019-014348PCA		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable & Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities				fr: 10/3		Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

				AAU						Perry

						Entitlements

		2008.0023CUA		461 29th Street 				fr: 8/29		Townes

						Residential Demo 

		2015-006825CUA		367 Hamilton Avenue				fr: 7/11; 9/12		Flores

						317 tantamount to demo

		2018-000468CUA		3945 Judah Street						Pantoja

						HOME-SF, 20 new dwelling units

		2018-011441CUAVAR 		1846 Grove Street						Dito

						new construction of five dwelling units 

		2019-004664CUA 		57 Wentworth St.						Asbagh

						Retail to a Cocktail Bar/ Lounge

		2018-009548CUA		427 Baden St						Pantoja

						a lot line adjustment and construction of a new SFH

		2018-011430CUAVAR		1776 Green St						May

						TBD

		2018-007267OFA		865 Market Street 						Vimr

						49,999 square feet of office space on levels 7-8

		2017-013155CUA 		230 Kirkham Avenue						Ajello

						Demo SFD/Construct new two-family dwelling

		2018-001485CUA		3360 Sacramento Street						Ajello

						legalize a 1,472 sq. ft. trade office use (dba Toboni Group) on the ground floor

		2019-002758CUA 		3501 Geary Boulevard						Young

						Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. T-Mobile)

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th St 						Sucre

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-015288DRP		1130 POTRERO AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 14, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Fire Drill @ 10:30 am				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-012281CUA		350 Pacific Avenue				CB3P		Weissglass

						reauthorization of a public parking lot in the C-2

		2019-016419CND 		3234 Washington Street 				CONSENT		Dito

						5 unit condo conversion

				Plan Bay Area Update 						Switzky

						Informational

		2019-001627CUA  		459 Clipper Street						Horn

						Residential Demo 

		2018-012642CUA		552-554 Capp St						Liang

						Conversion of existing Residential to Community Facility use

		2019-001694CUA		1500 Mission Street				fr: 10/3		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2017-004110CUA02		2867 San Bruno Ave						Durandet

						increase the dwelling unit density from 10 to 24 units

		2017-000140CUA		2299 Market St						Campbell

						ENF-Related CUA to Legalize Formula Retail Establishment

		2019-000745CUAVAR		1100 Thomas Street						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2019-001143CUA		1465 Donner Avenue						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2019-005500CUA		2934 Cesar Chavez Street				fr: 10/3		Christensen

						171 sq ft Retail to Cannabis Retail

		2017-002545ENVAPL		2417 Green St 				fr: 9/19		Poling

						PMND Appeal

		2017-002545DRP		2417 Green St 				fr: 7/11; 9/19		May

						Public Initiated DR

		2018-011962DRP		869 ALVARADO ST				fr: 6/27; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-004377DRP		1301-1311 40th Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 21, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2016-003351CWP 		Racial & Social Equity Action Plan						Flores

						Adoption

		TBD		100% Affordable Housing and Educator Housing Streamlining Program						Starr

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-003800CWP		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines						Francis

						Adoption

		2016-013312CUADNXMAP		542-550 Howard Street (“Parcel F”)						Foster

		OFAPCAVAR				Project Adoption 

		2016-003994CUA		55 Belcher Street 				fr: 6/13; 7/11; 10/3		Townes

						CUA

		2019-004849CUA 		2406 Bush Street						Ajello

						ENF-related CUA to legalize 2 to 1 DUM

		2019-015129CUA		333 Dolores St						Pantoja

						amendment of Motion No. 19041 for temporary structures for an additional seven years

		2018-007725DRP		244 DOUGLASS STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-003992DRM 		26 HODGES						Winslow

						Staff-Initiated DR

				November 28, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				December 5, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-006951CUA		1401 19th Ave				CONSENT		Campbell

						CUA Type 20 ABC License within an Existing Fuel Station Café/Retail Establishment

				Retained Elements Special Topic Design Guidelines						Small

						Adoption

		2018-012576CUA		1769 Lombard St						Weissglass

						1-year update on the CUA approved last year for the Kennel Use

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Initiation

		2015-010192CWP		Potrero Power Station 						Schuett

						FEIR certification and project approvals 

		2018-016625DNX		50 Post Street 				fr: 6/6; 7/11; 8/22; 10/17		Perry

						Crocker Galleria

		2019-000013CUA		552-554 Hill Street						Campbell

						Legalization of Dwelling Unit Merger & Relocation

		2019-004451CUA		2075 Mission Street				fr: 7/25; 10/17		Christensen

						cosmetic school to Cannabis Retail

		2017-012887DRP		265 OAK ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013559DRP-02		2517 PACIFIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 12, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

						Adoption

		2019-017957PCA		Geary-Masonic Special Use District						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Initiation

		2013.0655CUAVAR		1513A-F York Street						Liang

						5 new buildings for a total of 10 residential units

		2019-000503DRP-03		2452 GREEN ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-012442DRP		436 TEHAMA STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 19, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2017-005154CUASHD		1300 Columbus Avenue						Fahey

						4-story addition of 174 rooms and ground floor retail to an existing 4-story, 342 room hotel

		2018-010941DRP		2028 LEAVENWORTH ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011578DRP		2898 VALLEJO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-010655DRP-03		2169 26TH AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 26, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 2, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 9, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-003023DRP-02		2727 VALLEJO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013201DRP		500 JONES ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 16, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-002665DRP		801 SANCHEZ ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-005400DRP		166 PARKER AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2014.0243DRP-02		3927-3931 19TH ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 23, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				January 30, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				February 6, 2020 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Adoption

				February 6, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				February 13, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				February 20, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				February 27, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2017-003559ENV		3700 California St						Poling

						Certification

		2017-003559PRJ		3700 California St						May

						Project Approvals
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Delumo, Jenny (CPC)
Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: SUPPORT, Better Market Street, 2014.0012E -- Zipcar, Inc
Date: Friday, October 11, 2019 11:45:58 AM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

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

From: Jeffrey Hoover <jhoover@zipcar.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 10, 2019 12:07 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Olea, Cristina (DPW) <Cristina.C.Olea@sfdpw.org>; Delumo, Jenny (CPC)
<jenny.delumo@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>

Subject: SUPPORT, Better Market Street, 2014.0012E -- Zipcar, Inc

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Commissioners,

Thank you for your time addressing this issue at the October 10 Planning Commission hearing. My
name is Jeff Hoover and I'm writing from Zipcar, Inc.

Zipcar is the world’s leading car-sharing network, found in 500 cities and towns and at over 600
colleges and universities. Zipcar’s car-sharing service was created to provide city-dwellers with
access to a vehicle when they needed it without the cost or hassle of owning a car. We launched in
San Francisco in 2005, and the Bay Area has remained one of Zipcar’s most active markets since.

| am writing today on behalf of Zipcar to strongly support the Better Market Street plan and share
Zipcar’s opinion the EIR was thorough, complete, and substantive.


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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Zipcar supports Better Market Street because it prioritizes urban space for people, not for

cars. Zipcar is transforming cities like San Francisco by decreasing the need for personal car ownership,
which means less traffic, more curb space, cleaner air, and more land for people to enjoy. Zipcar
members walk, bike, and take public transportation more frequently after joining Zipcar than they
did before. Better Market Street shares a vision with Zipcar’s mission, to take cars off the road and
create a more sustainable and equitable for urbanites.

To advance San Francisco’s climate goals, meet Vision Zero challenges, and create more equitable
and affordable city, it is imperative to create an environment where people who walk, bike, and take
public transit are prioritized above those who personally-own vehicles.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment and support Better Market Street.

Sincerely,

Jeff Hoover

jeffrey hoover public partnerships specialist, west
191 2ND ST SAN FRANCISCO CA 94105

M 202.809.6246

E jhoover@zipcar.com // W www.zipcar.com

f] v ]in!
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Chris Foley; Lydia; Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);

Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda;
Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CLEANPOWERSF WINS PRESTIGIOUS C40 CITIES AWARD
Date: Friday, October 11, 2019 10:46:55 AM

Attachments: 10.11.19 CleanPowerSF C40 Cities Award.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, October 11, 2019 9:37 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CLEANPOWERSF WINS PRESTIGIOUS C40 CITIES AWARD

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, October 11, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
CLEANPOWERSF WINS PRESTIGIOUS C40 CITIES AWARD

San Francisco is one of seven cities internationally recognized for inspiring and innovative
climate action policies

San Francisco, CA — CleanPowerSF, the City’s local renewable energy program, has won a
(40 Cities Bloomberg Philanthropies Award, a prestigious honor that provides international
recognition for cities that are demonstrating climate action leadership. San Francisco was one
of only seven winners from across the globe who were announced yesterday at the C40 World
Mayors Summit in Copenhagen.

“When I first helped to launch CleanPowerSF as a Supervisor, I knew it had the potential to
make a transformative change for this City,” said Mayor London N. Breed. “We are seeing
significant reductions in emission levels and are well on our way to meeting our climate action
goals. We will continue to push forward, working with our allies in the C40 Cities coalition to
find new and innovative solutions to the challenge of climate change.”

CleanPowerSF has played a major role in San Francisco’s ability to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions 36 percent below 1990 levels. The program will also help the City realize its
ambitious climate action goals, including reaching 100 percent renewable electricity by 2030
and reducing net emissions to zero by 2050. Last month, Mayor Breed’s legislation to
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
C40 Cities Bloomberg Philanthropies Award, a prestigious honor that provides international
recognition for cities that are demonstrating climate action leadership. San Francisco was one of
only seven winners from across the globe who were announced yesterday at the C40 World
Mayors Summit in Copenhagen.

“When I first helped to launch CleanPowerSF as a Supervisor, | knew it had the potential to
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
emissions 36 percent below 1990 levels. The program will also help the City realize its ambitious
climate action goals, including reaching 100 percent renewable electricity by 2030 and reducing
net emissions to zero by 2050. Last month, Mayor Breed’s legislation to transition private
commercial buildings of 50,000 square feet and larger to 100 percent renewable electricity was
enacted into law. Earlier this week, the Board of Supervisors passed legislation requiring electric
vehicle charging stations in large commercial parking facilities.

Operated by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), CleanPowerSF launched
in 2016 with a mission to provide San Francisco residents and businesses with the choice of
having their electricity supplied from clean, renewable sources at competitive rates. Following
the largest and most recent enrollment period in April of this year, CleanPowerSF now serves
more than 376,000 customers in San Francisco, a 360 percent increase from the prior year. With
a 96 percent participation rate, the program is popular among businesses and residents.

“San Francisco is a global leader in sustainability, and we’re honored to be recognized with such
a respected award,” said San Francisco Public Utilities Commission General Manager Harlan L.
Kelley, Jr. “Building on our 100-year legacy of providing clean energy to San Francisco, we
launched CleanPowerSF to provide more power options to our residents and businesses, who
share our commitment toward a more sustainable future.”

CleanPowerSF was selected as the winner by C40 Cities in “The Future We Want Requires
Transformative Change” category. C40 Cities received 195 climate action project submissions

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

this year, which were evaluated on the following criteria: climate action, benefits, innovation,
governance, and sharing and scaling.

C40 Cities connects ninety-four of the world’s leading cities to take bold climate action towards
a healthier and more sustainable future. Representing 700 million residents and one quarter of
the global economy, mayors of the C40 cities are committed to delivering on the most ambitious
goals of the Paris Agreement at the local level.

“Cities worldwide are at the forefront of providing innovative solutions to the climate crisis
humanity is facing—demonstrated brilliantly by the inspiring examples showcased in Cities100,”
said Mark Watts, Executive Director of C40 Cities.

Along with CleanPowerSF, the SFPUC operates the Hetch Hetchy Regional Power System,
which provides 100 percent greenhouse gas free energy to public facilities, such as City Hall,
San Francisco International Airport, Muni buses, schools and libraries. Collectively, the two
programs meet approximately 80 percent of the electricity demand in San Francisco.

About the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is a department of the City and County
of San Francisco. It delivers drinking water to 2.7 million people in the San Francisco Bay Area,
collects and treats wastewater for San Francisco, and generates clean power for municipal
buildings, residents, and businesses. The SFPUC’s mission is to provide customers with high
quality, efficient and reliable water, power, and sewer services in a manner that values
environmental and community interests and sustains the resources entrusted to our care. Learn
more at www.sfwater.org.

About C40

C40 Cities connects 94 of the world’s leading cities to take bold climate action, leading the way
towards a healthier and more sustainable future. Representing 700+ million citizens and one
quarter of the global economy, mayors of the C40 cities are committed to delivering on the most
ambitious goals of the Paris Agreement at the local level, as well as to cleaning the air we
breathe. The current chair of C40 is Mayor of Paris Anne Hidalgo; and three-term Mayor of
New York City Michael R. Bloomberg serves as President of the Board. C40’s work is made
possible by our three strategic funders: Bloomberg Philanthropies, Children’s Investment Fund
Foundation, and Realdania. To learn more about the work of C40 and their cities, please visit
their website, or follow them on Twitter, Instagram, Facebook and LinkedIn.

HiH

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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transition private commercial buildings of 50,000 square feet and larger to 100 percent
renewable electricity was enacted into law. Earlier this week, the Board of Supervisors passed
legislation requiring electric vehicle charging stations in large commercial parking facilities.

Operated by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), CleanPowerSF
launched in 2016 with a mission to provide San Francisco residents and businesses with the
choice of having their electricity supplied from clean, renewable sources at competitive rates.
Following the largest and most recent enrollment period in April of this year, CleanPowerSF
now serves more than 376,000 customers in San Francisco, a 360 percent increase from the
prior year. With a 96 percent participation rate, the program is popular among businesses and
residents.

“San Francisco is a global leader in sustainability, and we’re honored to be recognized with
such a respected award,” said San Francisco Public Utilities Commission General Manager
Harlan L. Kelley, Jr. “Building on our 100-year legacy of providing clean energy to

San Francisco, we launched CleanPowerSF to provide more power options to our residents
and businesses, who share our commitment toward a more sustainable future.”

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

C40 Cities connects ninety-four of the world’s leading cities to take bold climate action
towards a healthier and more sustainable future. Representing 700 million residents and one
quarter of the global economy, mayors of the C40 cities are committed to delivering on the
most ambitious goals of the Paris Agreement at the local level.

“Cities worldwide are at the forefront of providing innovative solutions to the climate crisis
humanity is facing—demonstrated brilliantly by the inspiring examples showcased in
Cities100,” said Mark Watts, Executive Director of C40 Cities.

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

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is a department of the City and
County of San Francisco. It delivers drinking water to 2.7 million people in the San Francisco
Bay Area, collects and treats wastewater for San Francisco, and generates clean power for
municipal buildings, residents, and businesses. The SFPUC’s mission is to provide customers
with high quality, efficient and reliable water, power, and sewer services in a manner that
values environmental and community interests and sustains the resources entrusted to our care.
Learn more at www.sfwater.org.

About C40

(40 Cities connects 94 of the world’s leading cities to take bold climate action, leading the
way towards a healthier and more sustainable future. Representing 700+ million citizens and
one quarter of the global economy, mayors of the C40 cities are committed to delivering on
the most ambitious goals of the Paris Agreement at the local level, as well as to cleaning the


http://www.sfwater.org/
http://www.sfwater.org/

air we breathe. The current chair of C40 is Mayor of Paris Anne Hidalgo; and three-term
Mayor of New York City Michael R. Bloomberg serves as President of the Board. C40’s work
is made possible by our three strategic funders: Bloomberg Philanthropies, Children’s
Investment Fund Foundation, and Realdania. To learn more about the work of C40 and their
cities, please visit their website, or follow them on Twitter, Instagram, Facebook and
LinkedIn.
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